ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED
(Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953
ANNUAL REPORT -2024-25




INDEX OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

S.no Particulars Page Number
1 Corporate Overview 3
Corporate Information & Board details 4
Key Performance Highlights 5
Future Roadmap & Summary of the Objects of the IPO 6 N
Business of the Company 7
2 Statutory Reports 9
Directors’ Report & its annexures 10
Annual report on CSR 38
Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) 42
Secretarial Audit Report 47
3 Notice of Annual General Meeting 53
4 Financial Statements 73
Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements 74
Balance Sheet 86
Statement of Profit and Loss 87
Cash Flow Statement 89
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Standalone 90
Financial Statements
Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements 132
Consolidated Balance Sheet 141
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 142
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 144
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Consolidated 145

Financial Statements




CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Corporate Information

CIN:
U291007TG2020PLC141953

Registered Office Address:

8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court,
Road No. 5, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad 500 034,

Telangana, India

Website:
www.ardee.co.in

Details of Board of Directors

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Whole-Time Director

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Arundeep Moturu

Executive Director

Mr. Gorrepati Sundararama Sarma
Executive Director

Mrs. Sneha Sunkara

Independent Director

Mr. Ravikanth Mallina

Independent Director

Mr. Yalamanchili Visweswara Prasad
Independent Director

Mr. Ravinder Komaragiri
Independent Director

Mr. Srinivas Aravapalli

Independent Director -
Mr. Anjaneyulu Krothapalli
Independent Director




Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu

Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Whole-Time Director

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Arundeep Moturu

Executive Director

Mr. Gorrepati Sundararama Sarma
Executive Director

Mrs. Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and Compliance officer

Statutory auditors

C. Venkat Krishna & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

M S K C & Associates LLP (formerly known as M S K C & Associates),
Chartered Accountants

Secretarial Auditors

M/S. Chava & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Internal Auditors

M/s RCV and Co.
Chartered Accountants

Registrar And Share Transfer Agent

Bigshare Services Private Limited

S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park

Mahakali Caves Road, next to Ahura Centre

Andheri East, Mumbai 400 093,

Maharashtra, India

Tel: 491 22 6263 8200

E-mail: ipo@bigshareonline.com

Investor grievance e-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com




KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

{

Consolidated Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone Standalone
Particulars Units
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue  from | Rs. In 7,789.03 6,209.90 7,789.03 6,209.90 3,312.52 2,_168.64
Operations Millions
. 1 . L . . 248, .96
EBIDTA Rs. . In ,005.07 606.49 998.49 605.08 48.59 90
Millions
PBT Rs. In 672.57 414.63 665.99 413.22 147.93 17.55
Millions
PAT Rs. In 502.86 291.05 496.28 289.64 109.13 12.86
Millions
Rs. In 2,882.93 1,605.71 2,882.93 1,605.71 725.75 712.58
Net Debt .
Millions
. Rs. In 1,376.35 873.11 1,368.36 871.70 331.31 120.78
Total Equity -
Millions
Key Indicators
Earnings Per 12.57 7.65 12.41 7.62 4.70 0.71
Share
Net Debt to ] 2.09 1.84 2.11 1.84 2.19 5.90
. Times
Total Equity
EBIDTA Margin % 12.84% 9.74% 12.76% 9.71% 7.49% 4,18%
PAT Margin % 6.46% 4.69% 6.37% 4.66% 3.29% 0.59%
Return On % 36.54% 33.33% 36.27% 33.23% 32.94% 10.65%
Equity (ROE) ’
Return On 20.96% 20.97% 20.85% 20.92% 16.16% 7.80%
Capital o
Employed ’
(RoCE)

Note. The Company has made transition to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) during FY 2023-24, date of transition being April 01,
2022 and further has specifically prepared Restated Financial Information for inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Board of India in connection with the proposed initial public offer of equity shares of the
Company dated March 27, 2025 available at www.ardee.co.in/drhp.html. Therefore, the amounts included in the table above for the

FY 2023-24, FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22 are in reported in accordance with Ind AS framework.




FUTURE ROAD MAP & SUMMARY OF THE OBJECTS OF THE IPO

Ardee Engineering is focused on scaling its manufacturing footprint to support long-term
growth and fulfil rising demand by the proposed below mentioned 2 Projects. This strategic
expansion aims to enhance production capacity and strengthen the company’s manufacturing
presence in Pre-Engineered Buildings (PEB), Material Handling Systems (MHS), and integrated
engineering services. The Company proposed PO structure includes a Fresh Issue of up to
25,000.00 million and an Offer for Sale of ¥800.00 million by promoters. The net proceeds
from the Fresh Issue shall be utilised towards the following key objectives:

1. Project 1: New Manufacturing Facility in Telangana
e Funding the capital expenditure requirements towards setting up two new
manufacturing facilities at Seetharampur, Telangana.
e Estimated amount: ¥2,796.30 million
2. Project 2: New Integrated Manufacturing Facility in Andhra Pradesh.
e Funding the capital expenditure requirements towards setting up a new integrated
manufacturing facility at Parawada, Andhra Pradesh.
e Estimated amount: 3448.43 million
3. Debt Reduction
e Prepayment or repayment, in full or in part, of certain outstanding borrowings
e Estimated amount: 650.00 million
4. General corporate purposes

For detailed information, please refer to page 112 under the section 'Objects of the Offer'in our
Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP), available at www.ardee.co.in/drhp.html




Business of the Company

We are the fastest growing integrated design, engineering and manufacturing company based
on revenue CAGR between Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2024, among peers considered*. (Source:
CARE Report) We provide a diversified suite of end-to-end solutions across geographies and
end-user industries, with a focus on pre-engineered buildings (“PEB”), material handling
systems (“MHS”) and engineering services. Our business is divided into our primary business
lines: (i) PEB; (ii) MHS; and (iii) engineering services.

*Note: Peers include leading players operating in PEB, MHS and Engineering services segments such as Interarch
Building Products Private Limited, JSW Severfield Structures Limited (JSSL), Pennar Industries Limited, Everest
Industries Limited, Macmet Engineering Limited, Capacite Infraprojects Limited, PSP Projects Limited, Ahluwalia
Contracts (India) Limited and ISGEC Heavy Engineering Limited.

Our design and engineering capabilities are our core strength. We commenced our business in
2008, through our predecessor partnership firm Ardee Engineering Company, which converted
to our Company in the year 2020. During the past 16 years, we have successfully completed
projects across 13 states.

We are focused on producing unique and customized engineering solutions for our customers
by working with them throughout the product and process desigh and development to
establish optimal solutions. We endeavour to maintain high quality and safety standards by
leveraging the engineering expertise and technical know-how of our engineering team. Over
our nearly 16-year history, we have developed capabilities that have allowed us to secure
multiple projects from our customers.

Our business lines:
> Pre-engineered buildings: We offer comprehensive PEB solutions, including design and
engineering, manufacturing, on-site project management for the installation and
erection of PEBs and integrated pre-engineered steel structures. We believe that we
have created an established presence in the PEB industry in India and have undertaken
multiple PEB projects for prominent customers such as JK Cement Limited, RVR Projects
Limited, Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited, and SRR Projects Private Limited, among
others. In addition, we have also executed works for leading e-commerce and
infrastructure companies. As of December 31, 2024, we have executed over 100 PEB
projects, which include warehouses and fulfilment centres, data centres, logistics
infrastructure, manufacturing units, airport, infrastructure, schools and commercial
buildings. We attribute our presence in the PEB industry to our ability to deliver projects
within tight timelines, while ensuring high quality and engineering standards. We
believe that we are able to add significant value to the PEB projects and pre-engineered
steel structures through our engineering and design teams, which ensure strict quality
and safety control at every level of production through commissioning and handover
and as per specifications created by us and approved by our customers. We also ensure




that the projects undertaken by us meet the global standards of environment, health

and safety { “EHS” ), which is a key distinguishing factor and allows us to meet the
EHS compliance requirements of our prominent clients.

» Material handling systems: We design, engineer and construct customized material
handling systems and processing systems for our customers to solve complex problems
faced by our customers in respect of handling and processing bulk material during the
manufacturing process. Our engineering solutions are focussed at simplifying the
manufacturing process for our customers and enabling them to effectively process a
wide range of materials in various forms to get a final product in a seamless manner.
We have executed MHS projects for companies in the metals and mining sectors,
including a public sector undertaking (which has been granted Maharana status),
Hindustan Electro-Graphite’s Limited (“HEG”) and a company in the ports sector in
Nellore, Andhra Pradesh. We leverage our capabilities to design equipment which we
believe helps in automation of bulk material handling such as conveyor systems,
storage solutions, loading and unloading systems and crushing and screening
equipment. We also design, engineer, manufacture, commission and integrate material
processing systems such as crushing and screening systems, roller conveyor, feeder
breaker, suspended magnets, double roller, bucket elevator, belt conveyors, dust
extraction system and motorized slide gates, each tailored to handle diverse types of
materials efficiently and reliably.

» Engineering services: Our engineering services focuses executing projects in two areas
of (i) heavy structural and precision engineering equipment and (ii) electrical
instrumentation with automation. We believe that by leveraging our engineering
services capabilities, we have expanded to niche industries like defence and aerospace.
In the aerospace sector, we supplied three mobile launch pedestals for a national space
research organisation. Our engineering services also support our PEB and MHS
projects, which we believe allows for seamless design, development, and execution of
projects, ensuring that all engineering processes are controlled and customized to
meet the customer requirement of heavy structural and precision engineering.

For detailed information, please refer to page 219 under the section “Our Business” in our Draft
Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP), available at www.ardee.co.in/drhp.html
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Directors' Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors have the pleasure in presenting the 5th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company,
together with the audited financial statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

1. Financial Summary
The Summary of the Company’s financial result for the financial year 2024-2025 as compared to the previous

financial year 2023-2024 is given below:

(in millions)

Particulars Standalone Financials Consolidated Financials
31st March,2025 31st March,2024 31st March,2025 31st March,2024
Revenue from operations 7,789.03 6,209.90 7,789.03 6,209.90
Other Income 38.11 18.47 38.11 18.47
Total Income 7,827.14 6,228.37 7,827.14 6,228.37
Expenditure 6,828.65 5,623.29 6,828.65 5,623.29
Profit before exceptional items, finance 998.49 605.08 998.49 605.08

costs, depreciation, and taxes

Less: Expenses

Finance Cost 271.96 156.01 271.96 156.01
Depreciation and Amortization 60.54 35.85 60.54 35.85
Profits before exceptional items and tax 665.99 413.23 665.99 413.22
Share of profit from associates 6.58 1.41
Exceptional Items - - - -
Net Profit for the year before Taxes 665.99 413.22 672.57 414.63
?ss: Provision for Taxes
Current Tax 179.68 101.20 179.68 101.20
Deferred Tax Assets (9.97) 6.26 (9.97) 6.26
Prior Year tax = 16.12 - 16.12
Profit after tax 496.28 289.64 502.86 291.05
Other Comprehensive Income 0.38 0.75 0.38 0.75
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 496.66 290.39 503.24 291.80
Appropriation - - - =
Retained Earnings after appropriation 1,168.36 671.70 1,176.35 673.11
Retained Earnings Balance brought 429.55 139.91 430.96 139.91
forward from previous years
Add: Balance in Securities Premium 240.00 240.00 240.00 240.00
Account*
Add: Balance General Reserve 481.28 289.64
Add: Balance Other comprehensive 2.53 2.15 2.53 2.15
income

AN
()
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2. Accounting standards and Statements

e Accounting Policies
The Company complied with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) while preparing the annual
financial statements for the accounting year under review as envisaged in Companies (Indian Accounting Standard
Rules) 2015 and its subsequent amendments and directive issued in this regard.

e Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 (“Companies Act”) and the
indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the
relevant rules issued thereunder.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared based on the audited financial statements of the
Company and its associate, as approved by their respective Boards of Directors.

3. Financial Performance Overview

¢ Standalone Performance
During the FY 2024-25, the Company reported a Standalone Total Income of Rs. 7,827.14 million compared to Rs.
6,228.37 million in the previous financial year. The Standalone Net Profit After Tax of the Company increased
significantly to Rs. 496.28 million compared to Rs. 289.64 million in the previous year.

e Consolidated Performance
During the FY 2024-25, the Company reported a Consolidated Total income of 7,827.14 million compared to Rs.
6,228.37 million in the previous year. The Consolidated Net Profit After Tax of the Company stood at Rs. 502.86
million compared to Rs. 291.05 million in the previous year.

The improved financial performance reflects the Company’s effective operational execution, expanding business
scale, and continued emphasis on long-term value creation. The management remains focused on strengthening
its core business fundamentals to support sustained growth and profitability in the future.

4. Business Overview/ state of Company’s Affair

We are an integrated design, engineering and manufacturing company in India with business in three key segments:
(i) pre-engineered buildings (“PEBs”) where we provide comprehensive PEB solutions, including design,
engineering, manufacturing, on-site project management for the installation and erection of PEBs and integrated
pre-engineered steel structures with an aggregate installed capacity of around 44,144 metric tons per annum; (ii)
material handling systems where we design, engineer and construct customized material handling systems and
processing systems for our customers; and (iii) engineering services where we focus on executing projects in two
areas of heavy structural and precision engineering equipment, and electrical instrumentation with automation.
During the past 16 years, we have successfully completed projects across 13 states.

e Changes In the Nature of Business
During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company and there have been
no material changes or commitments that occurred after the close of the financial year till the date of this report,

11
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which would affect the financial position of the Company.

5. Transfer To General Reserve

During the financial year, the Company has not transferred any amount to general reserves. The net profit of Rs
496.28 million has been retained in the retained earnings, as reflected in the financial statements. Additionally, an
amount of Rs 15.00 million has been transferred to the Debenture Redemption Reserve.As of March 31, 2025, the
Securities Premium Reserve stands at ¥240.00 million. Accordingly, the total reserves (Other Equity) of the
Company amount to %1,168.36 million.

6. Dividend

In view of the business operations and upcoming business opportunities, your directors have not considered
dividend for the year under review.

e Transfer To IEPF

The company has not declared any dividend in previous years so no amount was required to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under review.

7. Dividend Distribution Policy

Your Company has adopted Dividend Distribution Policy in terms of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to set out parameters and
circumstances that will be taken into account by the Board while determining the distribution of dividend to the
shareholders for bringing transparency in the matter of declaration of dividend and to protect the interest of
shareholders. The Policy is available on the website of  the Company at
https://www.ardee.co.in/images/policies/Dividend Distribution-Policy.pdf

8. Corporate Conversion

In preparation for filling the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP), the Company was converted into a public limited
company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following the passing of a special resolution by the
shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 5, 2024.

Subsequently, the name of the Company was changed to “ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED”, and a fresh certificate
of incorporation reflecting the new name and status was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Telangana at
Hyderabad, on August 5,2024.

9. Initial Public Offering of Equity shares

The shareholders of the Company, in their meeting held on March 10, 2025, granted their consent to the Company
and its Board of Directors to undertake an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of up to %6,000.00 million, comprising both
a fresh issue of equity shares and an offer for sale.

Pursuant to the proposed public offering, the Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) dated March
27,2025, with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), BSE Limited (BSE), and the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (NSE), for an issue size of up to 25,800 million

12
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The proposed IPO comprises the following components:

o A Fresh Issue of equity shares aggregating up to ¥5,000.00 million; and

« An Offer for Sale of equity shares aggregating up to ¥800.00 million by Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu (the “investor
Selling Shareholder”).

The Offer is being made in accordance with Regulation 6(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

Further, the Company has received in-principle approvals for the listing of its Equity Shares from BSE and NSE,
pursuant to their letters dated May 14, 2025.

10.Pre- IPQ Private Placement:

11.

The Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers (BRLMs), has undertaken a Pre-IPO Placement
of 4,10,000 Equity Shares at an issue price of *425 per equity share (including a premium of 2420 per equity share),
aggregating to ¥ 174.25 million. This Pre-IPO Placement was executed by way of a preferential allotment in
accordance with the provisions of Sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, each as amended. The Pre-IPO Placement was undertaken pursuant to approvals granted by the Board of
Directors and Shareholders at their respective meetings held on July 4t 2025 & July 9™, 2025. In line with applicable
regulatory requirements, the amount raised through the Pre-IPO Placement has been reduced from the size of the
Fresh Issue, subject to compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1857

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board at its meeting held on July 24, 2025, the Equity Shares under the
Pre-IPO Placement were allotted in the following manner:

Date of allotment| Name of the Investors Number of shares [lssue price per Equity Share (Rs.)
July 24,2025 Atluri Kishore Dutt 2,60,000 Rs 425
July 24,2025 Padma Veerapaneni 50,000 Rs 425
July 24,2025 Yerra Umanadh 25000 | Rs425
luly 24,2025 Gautam Nimmagadda 50,000 Rs 425
July 24,2025 Vegesana Narasaraju 25000 Rs 425

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting the Financial Position of The Company.

Subsequent to the end of the financial year on 31* March, 2025, the Company has completed a pre-IPO allotment
of equity shares aggregating to 174.25 million on 24t July 2025. This has resulted in an increase in the Company’s
paid-up share capital and securities premium account. Apart from this, there have been no other material changes
and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial year and the
date of this Report.

12.Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits within the meaning
of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
Accordingly, the details required under Rule 8(5)(v) and Rule 16 of the said Rules are as follows:

13
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. Deposits accepted during the year: Nil
ii. Deposits remaining unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year: Nil

iii. Default in repayment of deposits or any deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
V of the Companies Act, 2013: Not Applicable

Further, the Company has obtained certain unsecured loans from its directors out of their personal funds.
Declarations to this effect have been duly obtained by the Company. These loans are considered exempt under the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

13.Holding Company, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

As on March 31, 2025, your Company had two (2) Associate Companies. The Company did not have any Subsidiary
or Joint Venture as on March 31, 2025.During the year under review, Ardee Yantrik Private Limited was
incorporated on November 27, 2024. Your Company holds 40% of the equity share capital in Ardee Yantrik Private
Limited, thereby classifying it as an Associate Company under applicable laws.

Apart from the above, there has been no change in the number of Subsidiaries, Associate Companies, or Joint
Ventures of the Company during the financial year 2024—25. The Company continues not to have any Subsidiary or
Joint Venture as on the date of this report. Form AOC 1 is attached as Annexure- A of the Director’s Report.

14. Changes in Share Capital

e Authorized Share Capital
The Authorized Share Capital of your company as on 31st March, 2025 stood at Rs. 35,00,00,000/- divided in to
7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 5/- each.

* Paid up/ Issued/ Subscribed Share Capital of the Company
The Paid up/ Issued/ Subscribed Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 stood at Rs. 20,00,00,000/-
divided in to 4,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 5/- each.

* During the year under review the Company has undertaken the Sub- Division of Every 1 {One) Equity Share of The Face
Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) Each Into 2 {Two) Equity Shares of the Face Value of Rs. 5/- (Rupees One Only) Each, Fully
Paid Up.

e Pursuant to the Pre IPO-Placement as mentioned above, paid up/ Issued/ Subscribed Share Capital of the Company
had increased to Rs 20,20,50,000.

15. Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs):

The Company has issued and allotted 1,500 Series A 15.25% Secured, Unrated, Unlisted, Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value %1,00,000 each, aggregating to a total of 215,00,00,000 (Rupees
Fifteen Crores only), to RevX Capital Fund | (acting through its trustee, MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services

Limited).

The issuance was carried out pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on
February 18, 2025, and in accordance with the terms specified in Private Placement Offer cum Application Letter
dated February 27, 2025, and the Debenture Trust Deed dated February 27, 2025, executed among the Company
and Axis Trustee Services Limited, acting as the Debenture Trustee. As on March 31, 2025, all 1,500 NCDs are held
by RevX Capital Fund I (acting through its trustee, MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited).

14
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16.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel (SMP):

» Board of Directors

The Company hds « balanced Board comprising a mix of Independent and Non-Executive Directors. As on date of
this report, the Board currently comprises of 11 (eleven) Directors including one executive woman director and 6
(six) Independent Directors which includes one Independent Woman Director.

During the year under review, after the corporate conversion to comply with the Companies Act,2013, following
Changes were undertaken:

Appointment of Independent Directors:
Mr. Ravikanth Mallina (DIN: 00297186), Mr. Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili (DIN: 01830782), Mr. Komaragiri
Ravinder (DIN: 08877012), and Mr. Srinivas Aravapalli (DIN: 10248373) were appointed as Additional Independent
Directors at the Board Meeting held on August 12, 2024. Their appointments were subsequently regularized by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 30, 2024, for a term of five years as
Independent Directors of the Company.

Appointment of Directors:

Oh recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, Mr. Chandra
Sekhar Moturu (DIN: 02010969), Mr. Ragdeep Moturu (DIN: 07587747) and Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati
(DIN: 10122348) were appointed as Chairman and Managing Director, Whole-Time Director, and Non-Executive
Director (in a professional capacity), respectively, with effect from August 25, 2024, as per the resolution passed in
the Board Meeting held on August 21, 2024. These appointments were approved by the shareholders at the AGM
held on September 30, 2024, for a term of three years.

e Appointment of Additional Executive Directors:
On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, Mrs. Krishna
Kumari Moturu (DIN: 10376709) and Mr. Arundeep Moturu (DIN: 10566391) were appointed as Additional
Directors with effect from August 25, 2024, pursuant 1o the Board Meeting held on August 21, 2024. Their
appointments were regularized by the shareholders at the AGM held on September 30, 2024, for a term of three
years.

Further Appointment of Independent Directors:

On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Anjaneyulu Krothapalli (DIN:
02908525) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director at the Board Meeting held on September 17,
2024. His appointment was regularized by the shareholders at the AGM held on September 30, 2024, for a term of
five years.

On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mrs. Sneha Sunkara (DIN: 10289148)
was appointed as an Additional Independent Director at the Board Meeting held on January 28, 2025. Her
appointment was confirmed by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on January 29,
2025, for a term of five years.

o Appointment of Chairman:
On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu {DIN:
02010969) was appointed as the Chairman of the Company and its Board of Directors with effect from February 1,
2025, pursuant to the Board Meeting held on January 28, 2025. This appointment was approved by the
shareholders at the EGM held on January 29, 2025.

Changes in Director Liable to Retire by Rotation:
On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee Mr. Ragdeep Moturu (DIN: 07587747)
was included among the Directors liable to retire by rotation, effective October 1, 2024, as per the resolution
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passed at the Board Meeting held on January 28, 2025. This was subsequently approved by the shareholders at the
EGM held on January 29, 2025.

The Directors of the Company are eminent persons of proven competencies and integrity. Besides experience,
strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree of
commitment towards the Company and devote adequate time to the meetings. The Company recognizes and
embraces the importance of a diverse board in its success.

The Company believes that a truly diverse board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, knowledge, skill,
industry experience and gender, which will help the Company to retain its competitive advantage.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, none of the above directors are disqualified
under Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other Statutory authority for holding office of a Director.

» Statement Regarding Opinion of The Board with Regard to Integrity, Expertise and Experience (Including the
Proficiency) of the Independent Directors Appointed During the Year

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, persons having an independent standing in their respective
field / profession and who can effectively contribute to the Company’s business and policy decisions, for
appointment, as an Independent Director on the Board. The Board, inter alia, considers qualification, positive
attributes, area of expertise, integrity and experience (including proficiency) and number of Directorship(s) and
Membership(s) held in various committees of other companies by such persons in accordance with the Company’s
Policy for Selection of Directors and determination of Directors’ independence, and accordingly recommends to
the Board for their appointment. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the attributes of
integrity, expertise and experience as required to be disclosed under Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied Company’s
Code of Conduct.

> Declaration of independence from Independent Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Act, the Company has received the following declarations from all the Independent
Directors confirming that:

* they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read with the Schedules and
Rules issued thereunder

e In terms of Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, they have
registered themselves with the Independent Director’s database maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs.
The declarations were placed and noted by the Directors present in the meeting of the Board held on April 10,2025.

> Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act (including any
statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Ragdeep Moturu, whole-time Director and Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu, Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible has
offered themselves for re-appointment. Your Board recommends their re-appointment.

A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment along with other required details, forms part of
the AGM Notice.
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» Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, the following Changes were undertaken:

e Mr. Raveendragouda Geedigoudra (Membership Number: A67512) resigned from the position of Company
Secretary with effect from June 1, 2024, by submitting his resignation letter dated June 1, 2024.The Board
took note of the resignation in the Board Meeting held on June 3,2024.

e Ms. Disha Jindal (Membership No. A65058) was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with
effect from June 5, 2024, as approved in the Board Meeting held on June 3, 2024.Additionally, she was
appointed as Compliance officer in Board Meeting held on October 23,2024.

e On recommendation made by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, Mrs.
Krishna Kumari Moturu, who was appointed as Additional Director in the Board Meeting held on August
21,2024, was also appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect from August JAS)
2024 in the same meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51), 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
as on 31st March 2025 comprised of Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu (DIN: 02010969),Chairman and Managing
Director Mr. Ragdeep Moturu (DIN: 07587747), Whole Time Director, Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati (DIN:
10122348), Executive Director ,Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu (DIN: 10376709) , Executive Director, Mr. Arundeep
Moturu (DIN: 10566391) Executive-Director and Ms. Disha Jindal, Company Secretary and Compliance officer.

> Senior Management Personnel (SMP)

During the year under review, following persons were identified as Senior Management Personnel (SMP) of the
Company in the Board Meeting held on October 23,2024:

S.No ‘Name Designation

1 Koduri BNV Siva Prasad Chief Operating Officer

2 Polamarasetti L Murty General manager - Proposals &
Engineering

3 Konduru Srinivasa Vice-President Engineering

Raghavan

4 Srinivas Karri Vice President - Project Execution

5 Kottapi Naresh Sr. Manager - Electrical & Instrumentation

6 Ashok Kumar Kancharla Assistant general manager - Commercial &
Procurement

7 | Govardhana Rao Pentala Assistant general manager - Electrical

3 Hemanth Loya Finance Controller

9 Satyajit Saha Quality Assurance Head

10 Jayaraj Menon President - Manufacturing & Projects

11 Kalluri Sambasivarami General manager - Finance and accounts

Reddy

12 Murali Krishna Paleti Deputy general manager - Procurement &

Commercial

17.Committees of the Board of Directors
After the corporate conversion to comply with the Companies Act,2013, the Company has constituted the following
Committees in the Board Meeting held on August 12, 2024:
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~ S.No Name Position Chairperson/Member
il Srinivas Aravapalli Independent Director Chairperson
Yalamanchili Visweswara
2 Prasad Independent Director Member
3 Ravikanth Mallina Independent Director Member
Executive Director cum
4 Krishna Kumari Moturu* CFO Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

* The Audit Committee was reconstituted on 215" August 2024 with the inclusion of Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu
as a member of the committee.

S.No Name Position Chairperson/Member

1 Srinivas Aravapalli Independent Director Chairperson

2 Ravikanth Mallina independent Director Member

3 Ravinder Komaragiri Independent Director Member

Corporate Social and Responsibility Committee

S.No | Name Position Chairperson/Member
1 Chandra Sekhar Moturu Managing Director Chairperson

2 Ragdeep Moturu Whole Time director Member

3 Srinivas Aravapalli Independent Director Member

4 Yalamanchili Visweswara Prasad Independent Director Member

Stakeholder Relationship Committee

S.No Name Position Chairperson/Member
1 Ravikanth Mallina Independent Director Chairperson
2 Yalamanchili Visweswara Prasad Independent Director Member
3 _Ravinder Komaragiri Independent Director Member

The Company has constituted the Risk Management Committee in its Board Meetings held on August 21, 2024:

S. No Name Position Chairperson/Member
Chairman and
1 Chandra Sekhar Moturu Managing Director Chairperson
2 Ragdeep Moturu Whole Time director Member
3 Yalamanchili Visweswara Prasad Independent Director Member
4 Arundeep Moturu Executive Director Member
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»

>

S. No Name | Position Chairperson/Member |
1 Ragdeep Moturu Whole Time director Chairperson -
Executive Director and
2 Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu CFO Member
3 Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili Independent Director Member

Additionally, the Board, at its meeting held on October 23, 2024, revised the roles, responsibilities and terms of
reference of the following Committees — Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Stakeholders Relationship Committee —
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

Recommendations of the Committees: There were no instances where the Board did not accept the
recommendations of the Committees.

18.Meetings of the Board and Committees and Independent Directors

General Body Meetings

During the year under review, the following shareholders' meetings were convened as detailed below:

Date Location Mode Type of the Meeting —\
24-05-2025 Registered Office of the Company Physical Meeting Extra Ordinary General Meeting T
05-06-2024 Registered Office of the Company Physical Meeting Extra Ordinary General Meeting
30-09-2024 Registered Office of the Company Physical Meeting Annual General Meeting
29-01-2025 Registered Office of the Company Physical Meeting Extra Ordinary General Meeting
10-03-2025 Registered Office of the Company Physical Meeting Extra Ordinary General Meeting

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met 27 (Twenty-Seven) times. The details of the meetings
of the Board of Directors of the Company convened and attended by the Directors during the financial year 2024-
25 are given Annexure-B.

Committee Meetings

The details of the meetings of the committees of the Company convened and attended by the Directors during the
financial year 2024-25 are given Annexure-B.

Independent Directors Meeting

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was convened on January 29, 2025 which reviewed the
performance of the Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors and the Chairman.
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19.Familiarization Program of Independent Directors

The Company has instituted a structured system to familiarize its Independent Directors. During the year under
review, the Independent Directors were apprised of recent amendments to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder. Independent Directors are also issued an appointment letter detailing their role, duties and
responsibilities.

20. Evaluation Of Board’s Performance

In accordance with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV of the Act, companies having
a paid-up share capital of 25 Crores or more are mandatorily required to conduct an annual evaluation of the
Board, its Committees, and individual Directors.

Although this provision is not applicable to the Company, as its paid-up share capital stands at 320 Crores, the
Company has voluntarily undertaken the annual evaluation process in line with good corporate governance
practices and keeping in mind the future plans of the Company in regards to Initial Public Offer and as per the policy
adopted by the Board in its meeting held on August 12, 2025.

Accordingly, the Company has conducted an annual performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, its
committees, and individual Directors, including Independent Directors. The evaluation of the Non-Independent
Directors, including the performance of the Chairman, Managing Director, and Whole-Time Director, was carried
out in a separate meeting of the Independent Directors.

21.Policies of the Company

» Remuneration Policy:

The Company has adopted the Policy on Appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), including
the Criteria for Remuneration in its Board meeting held on August 12, 2024. Additionally, the Policy on Payment to
Non-Executive Directors was also adopted at the Board meeting held on August 12, 2024.

> Vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy

The company has efficiently built up its internal vigil mechanism to effectively manage breach of conducts, abuse
containment, financial irregularities, sensitive information sharing other than for legitimate purposes, unethical or
unfair business practices in regard to mala-fide manipulation of the business processes. Your directors have
adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy in the Board meeting held on August 12, 2024. None of the
company’s personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. During the year under review, nothing has
been reported under the policy. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company can be accessed on the website of the
Company at https://www.ardee.co.in/Policies-and-Code-af-Conduct.html

> Risk Management Policy

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated and adopted a Risk
Management Policy in the Board meeting held on August 12, 2024. Furthermore, the Company has constituted a
Risk Management Committee (RMC), consisting of Board members of the Company. The Company has in place a
Risk Management framework to identify, evaluate business risks and challenges across the Company both at
corporate level as also separately for each business division. As of now, there are no risks which in the opinion of
the Board that threaten the existence of the Company. However, some of the risks which may pose challenges are
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.
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» Other Statutory Policies:

As part of its journey towards becoming a listed entity and in alignment with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has also adopted and implemented several other governance policies which are
available on the Company’s website at hitps:/www ardee.co.in/Policies-and-C ode-ot-Conduct bt

22. Particulars Of Employees and Related Disclosures

Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 it is hereby confirmed that none of the employees of the
Company were in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits specified under Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 during the financial year.

23.Adequacy of internal financial controls and compliance with laws

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility for ensuring that
the Company has implemented a robust system and framework of Internal Financial Controls. This provides the
Directors with reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness of controls with regards
to reporting, operational and compliance risks. The Company has procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures,
which are reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee from time to time. Additionally, the Company receives a

half-yearly internal audit report from its Internal Auditors, which supports continuous monitoring and improvement
of internal control systems.

e Internal Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13(1) of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 made there under, M/s. RCV & CO, (Firm Registration No. 01718S), Mr. Ch Raju, Chartered Accountants
has been appointed to conduct the internal audit of the company.

24.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The details relating to loans given, guarantees or securities provided, and investments made by the Company under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review, form part of Note No. 8 of the Balance Sheet
under the heading 'Investments' and Note no 35 in the Financial Statements.

25. Related Party Transactions

The transactions with related parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and atarm’s
length basis, and hence did not attract the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of
materiality thresholds. Accordingly, Form AOC-2 is not applicable and has not been annexed to this Report.

In line with the requirements of the Company Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions adopted in the Board meeting held on August 12, 2024 and the same is available on the website of
the Company at https://www.ardee.co.in/Policies-and-Cade-of-Conduct.html.

26. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
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The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange Earnings and outgo

as required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure-C and is attached to this report.

27. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee had formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy)
indicating the activities to be undertaken. A copy of CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company and can
be accessed on the Company’s website at the link https://wvsvw.ardes n/Policies- “ode-pf-Canduct.html.”.
The policy encompasses the philosophy of the Company for delineating its responsibility as a corporate citizen and
lays down the guidelines and mechanisms for undertaking socially useful programs for the welfare of the

community at large and for under underprivileged community in the area of its operation in particular.

The Annual Report on CSR containing the composition of the CSR Committee, salient features of the CSR Policy,
details of activities, and other information as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure-D annexed to Director's Report.

28. Alteration of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association (Moa & Aoa):

During the year, the Company has undertaken the following transactions with respect to MOA & AOA of the
Company:

e Conversion into a Public Limited Company:

The Company was converted into a Public Limited Company and accordingly, the Name Clause of its Memorandum
of Association (“MoA”) was altered. Further, a new set of Articles of Association (“AoA”) was adopted in substitution
of the earlier version, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. These changes were affected
pursuant to the special resolution passed by the shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June
5, 2024. Consequently, the name of the Company was changed to “ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED”, and a fresh
Certificate of Incorporation dated August 5, 2024, was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Telangana at
Hyderabad (“RoC”)

® Sub-Division of Equity Shares:
The Company undertook a sub-division of its equity shares, whereby each equity share having a face value of 10/-
(Rupees Ten only) was sub-divided into two equity shares of ¥5/- (Rupees Five only) each, fully paid-up. The Share
Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association (MoA) was accordingly altered pursuant to the special resolution
passed by the members at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on January 29, 2025.

* Adoption of New Articles of Association for IPO Compliance:
In preparation for its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO), the Company was required to align its Articles of
Association with the requirements and directions prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
and the relevant stock exchanges. This included incorporating provisions applicable to a listed company as per the
Companies Act, 2013, and related rules. Accordingly, the Company adopted a new set of Articles of Association, in
substitution of the earlier version, pursuant to a special resolution passed by the members at the Extra-Ordinary

General Meeting held on January 29, 2025.
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29. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Company has voluntarily disclosed the compliance with respect to the provisions of the Management
Discussion & Analysis Report pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Report as a part of lhe Annudl Report as Annexure-L.

30. Annual Return

The Annual Return of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 as required under Section 92(3) & 134(3)(a) of
the Companies Act, 2013 is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed on the Company’s
website at the link https://www.ardee.co.in/annual-return.html.

31. Auditors And Auditors’ Report

» Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions and relevant rules of the Companies Act,
2013, C Venkat Krishna & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004599S) were appointed as the
auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years, i.e., from the financial year 2021 to 2026.

Additionally, at the 4™ Annual General Meeting (AGM), the shareholders approved the appointment of MSKC and
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 001595S) as one of statutory auditors among the joint
Auditors from the conclusion of 4" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of gt Annual General Meeting.

The joint auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as statutory auditors under Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or any other applicable laws, and that their appointment is within the
prescribed ceiling limits. Further the Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

> Auditor’s Report: The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or
disclaimer. Further, no fraud has been reported by the auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,
which requires disclosure in the Board’s Report.

» Cost Records and Cost Auditors

We would like to inform that pursuant to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Notification dated 31st December 2014,
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 were amended, and the Company’s business activities have
since been included within the purview of cost audit requirements. Accordingly, the Company is maintaining proper
accounts and cost records. Further, the Board of Directors appointed M/s. Gopal Jasti, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 005822) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. They have
subsequently conducted the Cost Audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Cost Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, or adverse remark and requires no further comments.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has re-appointed M/s. Gopal Jasti, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 005822), to conduct the Cost Audit for the financial year 2025-26. The Cost Auditors have
confirmed their eligibility for the said appointment. The remuneration of Rs. 1.25 lakhs payable to the Cost Auditors
is subject to ratification by the members as per the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, a resolution for the ratification of the
remuneration of the Cost Auditors has been included in the notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting foryour
approval.
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> Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of your Company had appointed Mr.
Chava Sai Krishna (Membership No.: F13258, C.P. No.: 18854), Sole Proprietor of M/s. Chava & Associates (Sole
Proprietorship Firm No.: S2017TL520300), Company Secretaries in Practice, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25.

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, as issued by the Secretarial Auditor, forms part of the Annual Report
and is annexed herewith as Annexure-F. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year under review does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

32. Other Disclosures by the Board:
> Reclassification of Promoters

The Company, in its Board Meeting held on September 17, 2024, approved the reclassification of its promoters by
including Ms. Krishna Kumari Moturu, Director and CFO and Mr. Arundeep Moturu ,Director of the Company — as
promoters, in addition to the existing promoters, Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu and Mr. Ragdeep Moturu.

Details In Respect of Frauds Reported by Auditors Under Sub-Section (12) Of Section 143 Other Than Those Which
Are Reportable to The Central Government: -

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment(s) for the

time being in force.

Disclosure Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working
in the Company'’s premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavours to create
and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment. The
Company has adopted a policy against sexual harassment in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. The
Company has duly complied with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. In accordance with the requirements of the
Act, the Board of Directors has constituted Internal Complaints Committees (“ICC”) at both the Head/Corporate
Office and at Centre/Branch levels to address and redress complaints of sexual harassment in a timely and effective
manner. Status of Complaints under the POSH Act during the Financial Year 2024-25 is detailed below: -

Particulars No. of Complaints

Compliant pending at beginning of Financial Year 0

Compliant pending at beginning of Financial Year

Compliant resolved during Financial Year

Compliant pending at end of Financial Year

o |O |O |O

Compliant pending at Ending of Financial Year

Note: The Company maintains strict confidentiality in dealing with such matters and ensures timely redressal in
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accordance with applicable laws and internal policies.

» Details of Application Made or Any Proceeding Pending Under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 During
the Year

No applications have been made and no proceedings are pending against the Company under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

» Details Of Difference Between Amount of the Valuation Done at the Time of One Time S_ettlement and The
Valuation Done While Taking Loan from The Banks or Financial Institutions Along with The Reasons Thereof

The disclosure under this clause is not applicable as the Company has not undertaken any one-time settlement
with the banks or financial institutions.

» Orders, If Any, Passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern
status and Company’s operations in future.

» Compliance With Maternity Benefit act, 1961

The company has complied with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and the disclosure as required are details

hereunder:
Particulars No. of
Employees
Employees who availed Maternity leave 0
Employees who returned to work till March 31,2025 after maternity leave ended N. A
Employees who returned after maternity leave ended and who were still employed 12 N. A
months after their return

> Statement on Compliance with Secretarial Standards

During the financial year 2024-25, your Company has complied with applicable secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of the Company Secretaries of India.

» Compounding

During the year under review, the Company has not made any application for compounding of offences under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, no penalties or fines were imposed by the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, or any other regulatory authorities during the year.

> Human Relations

The Company recognises human resources as its most valuable asset, and it has built an open, transparent and
meritocratic culture to nurture this asset. The Company is of the firm belief that Human Resources is the driving
force that propels a Company towards progress and success. The Company has a team of able and experienced
professionals to look after the affairs of the Company. The Company's employees at all levels have extended their
whole-hearted co-operation for the excellent performance of the Company.
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33.

Insurance

The Company's assets are adequately insured against the loss of fire and other risk, as considered necessary by the
Management from time to time. The Company has also taken adequate insurance cover for all movable &
immovable assets and for all such types of risks, as considered necessary by the management from time to time.

Credit Rating

During the year, the Company’s credit facilities were rated by CareEdge Ratings. For detailed information on the
credit ratings assigned, stakeholders may refer to the disclosure available on the Company’s website at
https://www.ardee.co.in/images/pdf/credi—rating—report-dated—30-07-2024‘r.pdlc

Disclosure of Loans and advances and guarantees in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are
interested:

The details relating to Disclosure of Loans and advances and guarantees in the nature of loans to firms/companies
in which directors are interested under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review,
form part of the Notes 35 to the Financial Statements.

Dematerialization Of Securities

Your Company has established connectivity with both the Depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) to facilitate the holding of securities in electronic form.
As on 31st March, 2025, 100% of the total Equity Share Capital of the Company has been dematerialized. Further,
the Company has appointed M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited, as Registrar for Share Transfer and Electronic
connectivity. Accordingly, all the shareholders, Inyestors, Depository Participants and all other concerned are
requested to send all communication in respecﬁ:-féfﬁff;"ﬁare transfer/transmission, demat/remat, change of address
etc., to our registrar at below below-mentionedi‘aﬁdﬁﬁgs;:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

S6-2, 6" Floor, Pinnacle Business Park \

Mahakali Caves Road, next to Ahura Centre

Andheri East, Mumbai 400 093,

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6263 8200

E-mail: ipo@bigshareonline.com

[nvestor grievance e-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com

In case any query/complaint remains unresolved with our Registrar, please write to the Company Secretary at the

Registered Office of the Company.

W)

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, hereby confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
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as at March 31, 2025, and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) The Company had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

34. Acknowledgement

Your directors thank various departments of the Central and State Government, Organizations and Agencies for
the continued help and co-operation extended by them to your Company. Your directors also gratefully
acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz.,, members, customers, dealers, vendors, financial institutions,
banks and other business partners, for the excellent support received from them during the year. Your directors
place on records their sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and
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For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited
(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

’7( [WSM

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 02010969

Whole Time Director
DIN: 07587747

Date: September 26,2025
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure -A

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Details of Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1.Number of Subsidiaries:
The Company does not have any subsidiary companies.
Block-1:
1 CIN/any other registration number of the Subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable
company
Name of the subsidiary Not Applicable Not Applicable
2 The date since when subsidiary was acquired Not Applicable Not Applicable
Provisions pursuant to which the company has Not Applicable
become a subsidiary {Section 2(87)(i)/Section 2(87)(ii))
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if From Not Applicable
different from the holding company's reporting
period
To
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last Reporting Currency Not Applicable
date of the relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
Exchange Rate
4 Share capital Not Applicable
5 Reserves & surplus Not Applicable |
6 Total assets Not Applicable
7 Total Liabilities Not Applicable
8 Investments Not Applicable
9 Turnover Not Applicable
10 Profit before taxation Not Applicable
11 Provision for taxation Not Applicable
12 Profit after taxation Not Applicable
13 Proposed Dividend Not Applicable
14 % of shareholding Not Applicable

2. Number of subsidiaries which are vet to commence operations

SI. No.

CIN / any other registration number

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to
commence operations

NIL
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3. Number of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or have ceased to be a subsidiary during the year

number

Sk. No. CIN / any other registration Names of subsidiaries ‘]

NIL

Part “‘B” Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

1.Number of Associate / Joint Venture: _
The Company does not have any joint ventures but holds interests in two associate companies: Ardee Yantrik Private
Limited and Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited

Block-1
1 Name of associate/4eint-\enture Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited
2 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31,2025
3 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated June 23,2023
or acquired
4 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end March 31,2025
A Number 90,870
B Amount of Investment in Associates 5.45 million
C Extend of Holding% 21.62%
5 Description of how there is significant influence Control of more than 20% of total
share capital
6 Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated NA
7 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Rs. 67.95 million
Balance Sheet
8 Profit/Loss for the year Rs. 35.32 million
8A Considered in Consolidation Rs. 6.62 million
8B Not Considered in Consolidation
1 Name of associate fleitVenture Ardee Yantrik Private Limited
2 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date March 31,2025
3 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated November 27, 2024
or acquired
4 [Shares of Associate/loint Ventures held by the company on the year end March 31,2025
A Number of shares 20,000
B Amount of Investment in Associates Rs. 0.20 million
C Extend of Holding% 40.00%
5 Description of how there is significant influence Control of more than 20% of total
share capital
6 Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated NA
7 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Rs. 0.43 million
Balance Sheet

30




ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED

(FORMELY KNOWN AS ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMTED)

CIN: U29100TGZOZOPLC141953 (Previous: U29100TG2020PTC141953)
Registered office address: 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court,
Road No. 5, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500034

IE Profit/Loss for the year Rs.-0.07 million
8A Considered in Consolidation Rs. -0.04 million
8B | Not Considered in Consolidation

Block-2

2. Number of associates which are yet to commence operations:
Sno CIN / any other registration number Names of Associates and Joint Ventures
which are yet to commence operations

NIL

3. Number of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or have ceased to be associate
or Joint Venture during the year:

Sl. No. CIN / any other registration Names of Associates and Joint Ventures
number

NIL

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited
(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

}"(W&'ﬂ

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 0

Rag Tu
Whole Time Difector
DIN: 07587747

(T Doolely?-

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Diokn Jiudal

Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No. A65058

Date: September 26,2025
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure-B

Details of Board and Committee Meetings Held During the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2025

A. BOARD MEETING

(ATTENDANCE OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: -

During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, twenty-seven (27) meetings of the Board
of Directors were held. The details of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Chandra Krishna Kumari Arundeep
Sekhar . Moturu- Moturu-
Gorrepati . .
Moturu- Sundararama Executive Executive
Chairman Ragdeep . Director And Director
and Moturu- Sarma. -Executive CFO
Managing | Whole Time Direstar
S. No Date Director Director

1 05.04.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
2 27.04.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
3 29.04.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
4 10.05.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
5 22.05.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
6 31.05.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
7 03.06.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
8 24.06.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
9 20.07.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
10 24.07.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
11 27.07.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable
12 05.08.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable | Not Applicable
13 12.08.2024 Present Present Present Not Applicable Not Applicable

14 21.08.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

15 17.09.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

16 23.10.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

17 11.11.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

18 11.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

19 12.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

20 20.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

21 22.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present

22 28.01.2025 Present Present Present Present Present

23 18.02.2025 Present Present Present Present Present

24 28.02.2025 Present Present Present Present Present

25 17.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Present

26 27.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Present

27 29.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Present
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ATTENDANCE OF NON-EXECUTIVE -INDEPENDENT-DIRECTORS: -

S. Yalamanchili )
; ) Ravikanth . . .
N Visweswara Ravinder Mallina Srinivas Anjaneyulu
0 Date Prasad Komaragiri Aravapalli Krothapalli | Sneha Sunkara
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
.04.2
1 o Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
57 04.2024 Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
2 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable |
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
.04.2
| 3 et Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
4 10:05.200 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
5 | 22105200 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
6 SR Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
03.06.2024 Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
7 Applicable Applicable | Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
.06.2024 . . . .
R s Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
9 e Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
10 24.07.2024 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
11 207 2928 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Not Not Not Not Not Not Applicable
12 | 05.08.2024 Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
Present Not Not Applicable
13 . Present Present Present Applicable
Present Not Not Applicable
14 21.08.2024 Present Present Present Applicable
Present Appointed Not Applicable
15 SRS Present Present Present In Meeting
16 | 23.10.2024 Present Present Present Present Present Not Applicable
17 | 11.11.2024 Present Present Present Present Present Not Applicable
18 | 11.12.2024 Present ~ Present Present Present Present Not Applicable
19 | 12.12.2024 | Present Present Present Present Present Not Applicable
20 | 20.12.2024 Present Present Present Present Present Not Applicable |
Present Present Not Applicable
22.12.2024
21 Present Present Present
Present Present Appointed In
22 RSl eles Present Present Present Meeting
23 | 18.02.2025 Present Present Present Present Present Present
24 | 28.02.2025 Present Present Present Present Present Present
25 | 17.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Absent Present
26 | 27.03.2025 Present Present Present Present Absent Present
27 | 29.03.2025 Present Absent Absent Present Absent Absent
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B. COMMITTEE MEETINGS

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, six (6) meetings were held. The details
of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Visweswara Krishna
Srinivas Prasad Kumari Ravikanth
Aravapalli- Yalamanchili- Moturu- Mallina-
S.No Date Chairman Member | Member Member
Not
1 ISODEET Present Present Applicable Present
Not
2 A Present Present applicable Present
3 17.09.2024 Present Present Present Present
4 28.01.2025 Present Present Present Present
5 17.03.2025 Present Present Present Present
6 27.03.2025 Present Present Present Present

(b) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, four (4) meetings were held. The
details of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Srinivas Aravapalli- Komaragiri Ravikanth Mallina-
S.No Date Chairman Ravinder-Member Member
1 12.08.2024 Present Present Present
2 21.08.2024 Present Present Present
3 17.09.2024 Present Present Present
4 27.01.2025 Present Present Present

(c) STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, one (1) meeting was held. The details
of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Ravikanth Mallina- Komaragiri Vsisweswara Prasad
~ S.No Date Chairman Ravinder-Member Yalamanchili-Member
1 27.01.2025 Present Present Present

(d) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, two (2) meeting were held. The
details of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below:
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Chandra Visweswara
Sekhar Ragdeep Srinivas Prasad
Moturu- Moturu- Aravapalli- Yalamanchili-
S.No Date Chairman Member Member Member
1 17.09.2024 Present Present Present Present
2 29.03.2025 Present Present Present Present

(e) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, two (2) meetings were held. The
details of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Visweswara
Prasad Arundeep
Chandra Sekhar Moturu- Yalamanchili- Moturu- Ragdeep Moturu-
S.No Date Chairman Member Member Member
1 27.01.2025 Present Present Present Present
| 2 29.03.2025 | Present Present Present Present

(f) 1IPO COMMITTEE
During the reporting period, i.e., for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, two (2) meetings were held. The details

of the meetings, including dates and attendance of Directors, are provided below: -

Visweswara ]
Prasad
Ragdeep Moturu- Yalamanchili- Krishna Kumari
S.No Date Chairman Member Moturu-Member
1 23.10.2024 Present Present Present
- 2 27.03.2025 Present Present Present

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited
(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

’72 [ Lo LL@;
Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director

02010969

DIN: 07587747

Date: September 26,2025
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure-C

The details regarding Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required
by section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given

below:

A. Conservation of Energy
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

The growth of the industry and its rapid industrialization is putting tremendous pressure on the available energy
resources. As such the need of the hour is to conserve energy and maximize output. Energy conservation is an ongoing
process in our organization. The company carries out continuous monitoring, planning, development and modification
in our all units to conserve energy. The company always select latest art of technology, machinery and equipment
having low energy consumption. The company always select latest art of technology, machinery and equipment having
low energy consumption. Specific initiatives include the widespread use of LED lighting and promotion of energy-
efficient practices throughout operations. These efforts are aimed at ensuring that operations are not only productive
but also environmentally responsible, thereby contributing to the mitigation of global warming and climate change

impacts.

(ii) the steps taken by the company for Utilizing alternate sources of energy;

During the year under review, the Company did not undertake any specific initiatives related to the utilization of
alternate or renewable sources of energy. However, the Company continues to focus on energy efficiency and
minimizing wastage through the use of energy-efficient equipment and monitoring systems.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment; Nil

B. Technology Absorption

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;

The Company has invested in automation and robotics across its manufacturing facilities through its associate
company.

Additionally, the Company undertakes technological upgrades from time to time, as and when required.

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution;

The continuous technology upgradation has resulted in improved product quality, reduced turnaround times, and the
ability to meet custom engineering requirements of large infrastructure clients.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial
year)-Nil

(a) the details of technology imported;

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology has been fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

(

iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
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C. Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo:
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Earnings -

Outgo -

During the financial year under review, the company has not entered into any foreign exchange transaction, as a result
of which the company has not earned any income or made any expenditure in terms of Foreign Exchange.

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited

(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

IZWS\V

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
Dl 010969

Ra p Motjyru
Whole Time Director
DIN: 07587747

Date: September 26,2025
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure--D

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) activities for the financial year 2024-25

1. Brief autline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The objective of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is to benefit the society by improving the quality of
individuals, their families and local cornmunity at large. Ardee Engineering Limited (hereinafter to be referred as
"the Company") through its CSR activities intends to participate in the overall development of the society and
encourage alignment with Social Development Goals (SDGs) related to gender sensitivity, skill enhancement,
entrepreneurship development, research in education, Hygiene & Water etc.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Number of Number of meetings
meetings of CSR of CSR committee
Designation/Nature of committee held attended during the
S.No Name Directorship during the year year
Chairman and Managing
Chandra Sekhar Moturu Director 2 2
Ragdeep Moturu Whole Time director 2 2
3 Srinivas Aravapalli Independent Director 2 2
Yalamanchili Visweswara
4 Prasad Independent Director 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company:

CSR Committee: - https://www.ardee.co.in/composition-of committee.htm|

CSR Policy: - https://www.ardee.co.inf/images/policies/CSR-Palicy.pdf

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable

As per sub-rule (3)(a) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company
is not required to undertake impact assessment, through an independent agency of their CSR projects.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135({5): Rs. 228 million
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs 4.56 million

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
{d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+{c)-(d)]: Rs 4.56 million

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs 2.70 million
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e Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil

e Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) {7) (8)
SI. [Name of thelltem from|Local| Location of | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
No| Project [the list of|area| the project. [spent for|implementation|  Through implementing
activities |(Yes/| the - Direct agency.
in No). roject Yes/No).
- lstate |pistrict| P (ves/No) Name. CSR
schedule (inRs.). istrati
Vi to the regis rs et
Act. number.
1. | Suppert for (1) Yes | Nizamabad 1.2 No Gracy (C5R00029395
improving Telangana | million Organisation for
the Developmental
standards Services
and needs of
Deaf &
Dumb
children in
the
Educational
institution
2. | Eradicating (M Yes | Hyderabad 1.0 No Akshay Patra JCSRO0000286
Hunger Telangana | million Foundation
3 [Maintenance| (Il Yes | Hyderabad 0.5 No Sanchaara  |CSRO0086589
of homes Telangana | million Ardha
and Sanchaara
hostels for Vimuktha
women and Jaathula
orphans Sankshema
Sangam
Total 2.7
million
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL
{c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [{a)+(b) +(c)]: Rs 2.7 million
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total amount spent Amount unspent
for the financial
year
Rs 2700000 Total amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VIl as per
Section 135(6) of the Act 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
Transfer Fund transfer
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1.51 million April 29,2025 PM Care 0.35 million | August
11,2025
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:
SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Rs 4.56 million
section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs 2.7 million
(iif) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-{i)] NIL
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previgus financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years NIL
Li)-(v)
7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SI. | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred to | Amount Deficiency,
No | Financial transferred | Amount in | Spent in | a Fund as specified | remaining to | if any
Years to Unspent | Unspent the under Schedule VIl as | be spent in
CSR CSR Financial | per second proviso to | succeeding
Account Account Year (in | subsection (5) of | Financial Years
under under Rs) section 135, if any (in Rs)
subsection | subsection
(6) of | (6) of
section 135 | section
(in Rs.) 135 (in Rs.)
Amount Date of
Transfer
NIL

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount

spent in the Financial Year:

Not applicable

I
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9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5):
Not applicable

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited
(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

mmcwda&w

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
Chairman of the Committee

DIN: 07587747

Date: September 26,2025

Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure-E

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Overview

We are the fastest growing integrated design, engineering and manufacturing company based on revenue CAGR between
Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2024, among peers considered*. {Source: CARE Report) We provide a diversified suite of end-to-end
solutions across geographies and end-user industries, with a focus on pre-engineered buildings (“PEB”), material handling
systems (“MHS”) and engineering services. Our business is divided into our primary business lines: (i) PEB; (i) MHS; and (iii)
engineering services.

*Note: Peers include leading players operating in PEB, MHS and Engineering services segments such as Interarch Building Products Private Limited, JSW
Severfield Structures Limited (JSSL), Pennar Industries Limited, Everest Industries Limited, Macmet Engineering Limited, Capacite Infraprojects Limited, PSP
Projects Limited, Ahluwalia Contracts (India) Limited and ISGEC Heavy Engineering Limited.

Our design and engineering capabilities are our core strength. We commenced our business in 2008, through our
predecessor partnership firm Ardee Engineering Company, which converted to our Company in the year 2020. During the
past 16 years, we have successfully completed projects across 13 states.

We are focused on producing unique and customized engineering solutions for our customers by working with them
throughout the product and process design and development to establish optimal solutions. We endeavor to maintain high
quality and safety standards by leveraging the engineering expertise and technical know-how of our engineering team, which
had a strength of 311 qualified engineers as on March 31,2025. Over our nearly 16-year history, we have developed
capabilities that have allowed us to secure multiple projects from our customers.

Our business lines:

> Pre-engineered buildings: We offer comprehensive PEB solutions, including design and engineering, manufacturing, on-site
project management for the installation and erection of PEBs and integrated pre-engineered steel structures. We believe
that we have created an established presence in the PEB industry in India and have undertaken multiple PEB projects for
prominent customers such as JK Cement Limited, RVR Projects Limited, Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited, and SRR Projects
Private Limited, among others. In addition, we have also executed works for leading e-commerce and infrastructure
companies. As of December 31, 2024, we have executed over 100 PEB projects, which include warehouses and fulfilment
centers, data centers, logistics infrastructure, manufacturing units, airport, infrastructure, schools and commercial buildings.
We attribute our presence in the PEB industry to our ability to deliver projects within tight timelines, while ensuring high
guality and engineering standards. We believe that we are able to add significant value to the PEB projects and pre-
engineered steel structures through our engineering and design teams, which ensure strict quality and safety control at every
level of production through commissioning and handover and as per specifications created by us and approved by our
customers. We also ensure that the projects undertaken by us meet the global standards of environment, health and safety
(“EHS”), which is a key distinguishing factor and allows us to meet the EHS compliance requirements of our prominent clients.

> Material handling systems: We design, engineer and construct customized material handling systems and processing systems
for our customers to solve complex problems faced by our customers in respect of handling and processing bulk material
during the manufacturing process. Our engineering solutions are focused at simplifying the manufacturing process for our
customers and enabling them to effectively process a wide range of materials in various forms to get a final product in a
seamless manner. We have executed MHS projects for companies in the metals and mining sectors, including a public sector
undertaking (which has been granted Maharana status), Hindustan Flectro-Graphites Limited (“HEG”) and a company in the
ports sector in Nellore, Andhra Pradesh. We leverage our capabilities to design equipment which we believe helps in
automation of bulk material handling such as conveyor systems, storage solutions, loading and unloading systems and
crushing and screening equipment. We also design, engineer, manufacture, commission and integrate material processing
systems such as crushing and screening systems, roller conveyor, feeder breaker, suspended magnets, double roller, bucket
elevator, belt conveyors, dust extraction system and motorized slide gates, each tailored to handle diverse types of materials
efficiently and reliably.
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>  Engineering services: Our engineering services focuses executing projects in two areas of (i) heavy structural and precision
engineering equipment and (i) electrical instrumentation with automation. We believe that by leveraging our engineering
services capabilities, we have expanded to niche industries like defense and aerospace. In the aerospace sector, we supplied
three mobile launch pedestals for a national space research organization. Our engineering services also support our PEB and
MHS projects, which we believe allows for seamless design, development, and execution of projects, ensuring that all

engineering processes are controlled and customized to meet the customer requirement of heavy structural and precision
engineering.

Industry Structure and Developments

The Pre-Engineered Buildings (PEB) sector is experiencing robust growth, currently expanding at a Compound Annual Growth
Rate (CAGR) of 17%. A significant driver of this growth is the Indian infrastructure market, which itself is growing at a CAGR of
9%. This upward trend is further supported by the increasing dominance of PEB in warehousing solutions and the rising adoption
of steel-centric infrastructure, including composite high-rise structures. The resurgence of mining operations across the country
has led to a notable increase in demand for material handling and processing systems. In addition, the Government of India has

announced plans to commission a minimum of 80,000 MW of coal-based thermal power capacity, further fueling the need for
such systems.

The National Steel Policy, which aims to enhance per capita steel consumption, presents a significant opportunity for the
company. It closely aligns with our strategic focus on promoting steel-centric infrastructure across multiple verticals.

Our robust orderbook also signals to Lhe increase in opportunities in this verlical.

Opportunities

The Indian economy demonstrated a robust growth rate. This growth can be attributed to various government initiatives,
including the PVi Gati Shakti Yojana and PLI schemes and a renewed emphasis on job creation. Increased exports and a revival
of private capital expenditure also contributed to this economic upturn. Currently, the industry possesses ample capacity to
meet demand for the next five years. Additionally, the rising purchasing power in rural India augurs well for the industty’s
prospects. Everest remains positioned as a dominant player in the market.

The real estate sector is on track with a growing adoption of dry construction techniques. This trend is expected to grow
exponentially in the total building market. Furthermore, with the resurgence of the capital expenditure cycle and global
companies pursuing a ‘China + 1’ strategy, the Pre-Engineered Building (PEB) industry is projected to expand at a. Notably, there
is substantial demand emanating from various sectors, including defense, data centers, and warehousing, in addition to
traditional sectors like automotive, chemicals, and manufacturing.

Threats and Outlook

India, despite encountering distinctive challenges and inherent risks within the current global economic landscape, maintains
its position as a promising economy. The implementation of key reforms like the Goods and Services Tax (GST) and the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) has significantly enhanced the efficiency, transparency, and financial discipline of the
Indian economy, leading to overall improvement in its functioning.

While the overall sector outlook remains positive, several macroeconomic risks warrant close monitoring:

e Global Supply Chain Disruptions: Ongoing geopolitical tensions and export tariff fluctuations continue to impact the global
supply chain. This could resuft in increased volatility in the prices of critical raw materials such as steel and cement, potentially
affecting cost structures and project budgets.

e Irregular Monsoon Patterns: Unpredictable weather, especially irregular monsoons, hampers construction schedules by
disrupting site planning and on-ground execution. This could lead to project delays and increased holding costs.

o Risk of Overcapacity: All top five players in the Pre-Engineered Buildings (PEB) industry are currently pursuing capacity expa nsion
initiatives. While this indicates strong confidence in market growth, it also introduces the possibility of overcapacity. In such a
scenario, excess supply could put downward pressure on industry margins and asset utilization rates in the near to medium
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> Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed.

Our headcount has grown from 558 to 692 during the 2025 fiscal. We have been able to strengthen our Product, Technology and
Sales. We have streamlined HR processes and policies including Employee Branding, Talent Acquisition, Rewards & Recognition,
Employee Policies, Employee engagement, HR Standard Operating Processes etc. We have redesigned the organization structure
and managed to build a strong mid- senior leadership team across functions.

» Details of significant changes ( i. e change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial
ratios, along with detailed explanations therefore including

March-25 March-24
i Numerator Denominat | Numerat | Denomin
Particulars | 2024-25 22(2123_ cha/r:goefs Remarks |Formula or or ator
Net
Credit
Sales/
Not Averag
Do 3.98 518 | -2321% | major e
Turnover .
variance | Accoun
ts
Receiva
bles 7,789.03 1,958.70 6,209.90 | 1,199.19
Variance
on
account of|
increase in
Inventory inventory | Cost of
Turnover 5.36 7.23 -25.91% | as on| Goods
March Sold/
31, 2025| Averag
compared e
to March | Invento
31, 2024 ry 5,078.09 947.91 4,085.40 565.05
Not EBIT/
nterest 1 345 365 | -548% | major | Merest
Coverage Ratio variance Expens
e 937.95 271.96 569.23 156.01
Current
Not Assets/
Current Ratio 1.02 1.10 -7.59% major Current
variance | Liabiliti
es 4,882.93 4,786.17 3,702.15 | 3,353.53
Total
. Not
Debt Equity |, ,q 2.12 781% | major | D€PY
Ratio R Total
Equity 3,131.72 1,368.36 1,850.59 871.70
Change in
ratio on
Operating éccount gf
Profit Margin | 0.12 0.09 31.37% | noeasemn
(%) revenug
and profit| EBIT/
in current Net
year 14 cales Q3745 7,789.03 £5a 23 £,209.90
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Risk and Concerns

Financial Risk

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, including interest rate fluctuations, foreign exchange volatility, credit risk,
and liquidity risk. Rising interest rates may increase the cost of capital and affect debt servicing. Foreign exchange fluctuations,
especially for companies with import or export exposure, may impact profitability. Credit risk arises from potential defaults by
customers or counterparties, while liquidity risk pertains to the availability of adequate funds to meet short-term operational
and financial obligations.

To mitigate these risks, the Company follows prudent financial management practices, including robust cash flow monitoring,
conservative leverage, and diversified funding sources. In addition, credit evaluations of counterparties and efficient working
capital management are continuously undertaken to maintain financial stability.

Legal and Regulatory Risk

The Company operates in a highly regulated environment and remains fully compliant with applicable laws, regulations, and
industry standards. At present, there are no material regulatory or legal issues that could adversely impact our operations.
However, the business remains subject to potential changes in regulatory frameworks, taxation policies, labor laws, and
environmental norms. The Company proactively monitors developments in the legal and regulatory landscape to ensure timely
compliance and mitigate any emerging risks.

However, we are understanding additional internal processes to ensure compliance with ICDR regulations as well along with
other regulations that we were already in compliance with

» Internal Control System and their Adeguacy:

As per Section 134(5)(e) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors have an overall responsibility for ensuring that the Company
has implemented a robust system and framework of Internal Financial Controls. This provides the Directors with reasonable
assurance regarding the adequacy and operating effectiveness of controls with regards to reporting, operational and
compliance risks. The Company has procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures, which are reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee
from time to time. Additionally, the Company receives a six-monthly internal audit report from its Internal Auditors, which
supports continuous monitoring and improvement of internal control systems.

Internal Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
made there under, M/s. RCV & CO, (Firm Registration No. 01718S), Mr. Ch Raju, Chartered Accountants has been appointed
to conduct the internal audit of the company.

» Segment —wise or product wise performance & Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational
performance:

The Company is engaged in a suite of end-to-end solutions across geographies and end-user industries, with a focus on pre-
engineered buildings (“PEB”), material handling systems (“MHS”) and engineering services. Our business is divided into our

primary business lines: (i) PEB; (i) MHS; and {iii) engineering services. Accordingly, segment-wise reporting is not applicable as
per the relevant accounting standards.

The Company earned other income amounting to Rs 38.11 million in FY 2024-25, compared to Rs 18.47 million in the previous
year. This income primarily includes Interest income earned on financial assets, Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL,

Liabilities no longer required written back, gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and Miscellaneous income. The
variation is mainly due to Interest income earned on financial assets.

45




ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED
(FORMELY KNOWN AS ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMTED)
'CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953 (Previous: U29100TG2020PTC141953)
Registered office address: 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court,
Road No. 5, Banjara Hills,
Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500034

Change in
ratio on

account of
Profi i i

Net -ro it 6.37% 4.66% 36.61% increase in
Margin (%) revenue

and profit| PAT/
in current Net
year. Sales 496.28 7,789.03 289.64 6,209.90

» Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The statements made in this report describe the Company’s objectives and projections that may be forward looking statements
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results might differ materially from those expressed or implied
depending on the economic conditions, government policies and other incidental factors, which are beyond the control of the
Company.

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of Ardee Engineering Limited
(Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

He e e,

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 02010969

agdeepMoturu
Whole Time Director
DIN: 07587747

Date: September 26,2025
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure-F

Form No. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953
8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103
Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad 500034, Telangana, India.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by M/s. ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances
and expressing my Opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the M/s. ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2025 has complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s.
ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED for the financial year ended 31.03.2025, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings
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(V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable during the period under review.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations, 2015; Complied
with to the extent applicable for a company proposing to list its equity shares.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and DisclosureRequirements) Regulations,
2018; Complied with in connection with the filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP).

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable during the period under review.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)Regulations, 2008 and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021; Not Applicable during the period under review.

(f) The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share TransferAgents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Complied with to the extent applicable in
relation to appointment and coordination with intermediaries associated with the proposed public issue.

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and, Not
Applicable during the period under review.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,2018; Not Applicable
during the period under review.

The company has applied for an ISIN to CDSL and NSDL. The ISIN was activated on 7™ May 2024 in CDSL and on
4™ June 2024 in NSDL.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(iii) The compliance by the Company of applicable financial Laws, like Direct and Indirect tax laws, has not
been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and
other designated professionals.

Clause {ii) stated above applies only to the extent of filings related to the process of IPO

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc.
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(vi) The Company is in the business of Engineering works specialising in Pre-Engineered Buildings, electro-
mechanical and civil works and verticals have grown to include PEB’s, Electrical works, Cranes, Dam gates, Convevyors
etc, Accordingly, the industry-specific laws / general laws as applicable to the company has been complied with. The
management has also represented and confirmed that all the laws, rules, regulations, orders, standards and
guidelines that are specifically applicable to the Company relating to Industry/Labour, etc., have been complied with.
We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanisms formed by
the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations, and it was noted that the
Company has complied with the said Laws to the extent applicable.

| further report that

e The Company vide its Special Resolution dated 05™ June 2024 approved the conversion of Private company into
a Public Company, and on 05% August 2024, it got converted into a Public Limited Company. The Company has
altered its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013,
to align with the requirements for a public company.

e The Board of Directors of the Company was reconstituted during the reporting period following the conversion
of the Company from a private limited company to a public limited company. The Board is now duly constituted
with an appropriate balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

® Pursuant to the conversion and change in status, the Company has also constituted statutory committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, and other committees as applicable.

e The changes in the composition of the Board and constitution of committees were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act and relevant rules made thereunder. The following changes have been made in

the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

S Name of the Director Designation Nature of Change | Date of Change

No.

1 Chandra Sekhar Moturu Chairman & Managing | Appointed as | 25.08.2024
Director(CMD) CMD

2 Ragdeep Moturu Whole Time | Appointed as | 25.08.2024
Director(WTD) WTD

3 Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati Executive Director Non-Promoter 25.08.2024

I Category

4 Krishna Kumari Moturu Executive Director cum | Appointment 25.08.2024
CFO

5 Arundeep Moturu Executive Director Appointment 25.08.2024

6 Yalamanchili Visweswara Prasad Independent Director Appointment 12.08.2024

7 Srinivas Aravapalli Independent Director Appointment 12.08.2024

8 Ravinder Komaragiri Independent Director Appointment 12.08.2024

9 Ravikanth Mallina Independent Director Appointment 12.08.2024

10 Anjaneyulu Krothapalli Independent Director Appointment 17.09.2024

11 Sneha Sunkara Independent Director Appointment 28.01.2025

12 Raveendragouda Geedigoudra Company Secretary Cessation 01.06.2024

13 Disha Jindal Company Secretary Appointment 05.06.2024
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e Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on the
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, in case of shorter notices, proper approvals were obtained and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

e Majority decision is carried through as there are no dissenting members’ views at the meetings of the Board of
Directors and at the Committees. These are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

e The Website of the company contains several policies as specified by SEB! (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period there was no event/action having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. except the following:-

L. Publie/Rights/Preferential Issue of Shares/Debentures etc.: The Company has raised Rs 15 Crores by way of issue
and allotment of 1500 unlisted secured redeemable non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis
dated 28™ February 2025.

1. Buy-back of securities: Nil

I, The Company in its AGM held on 30" September 2024, passed special resolutions authorising the Board of
Directors (i) to borrow monies in excess of the aggregate of paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities
premium, pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) upto Rs 500 Crores, and (ii) to create mortgage/charge on the
Company’s movable and immovable properties for securing such borrowings, sell, lease or dispose of the whole
or substantially whole or any of the undertakings of the company pursuant to Section 180(1){a) upto the limits
availed as per section 180(1)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

IV, The Company has appointed M/s MSKC & Associates, Chartered Accountants as one of the Joint Auditors,
(Registration No. 0015955), along with existing auditors, till the gth AGM of the company during the financial
year under review in its AGM, in compliance with the provisions of the Act.”

V. During the reporting period the Board of Directors at its meeting dated 17t September 2024, approved the
proposal to undertake and Initial Public Offering and subsequently the members of the company also approved
and authorised the Company to proceed with the IPO and list its equity shares on the recognised stock
exchange(s), in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable SEBI regulations.

To facilitate the same, the Company also amended its Articles of Association to align with the requirements
under SEBI regulations and other applicable laws governing listed entities.

Pursuant to the above approvals, the Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the concerned stock exchange(s) on 27 March 2025 in connection with
its proposed (PO.

VI, During the audit period, the Company identified and classified certain individuals as Promoters in accordance
with the definitions and disclosure requirements prescribed under the SEB! {issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, in connection with its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO). The classification
was duly approved by the Board vide board resolution dated 17 September 2024 and disclosed in the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus (DRHP) filed with SEBI and stock exchanges.
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VI

Vill.

During the reporting period, at its EGM held on 29% January 2025, the Company has sub-divided the face value
of its equity shares from ¥10/- each to ¥5/- each, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

to enhance liquidity and facilitate wider investor participation in its proposed IPO.

Amalgamation/Reconstruction, etc.: Nil

Foreign Technical Collaborations: Nil

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29.08.2025 CS CHAVA SAI KRISHNA

Proprietor

Chava & Associates

Company Secretary in Practice
M.No: F13258 | CP.No: 18854
Peer Review Cert No: 3897/2023
UDIN:F013258G001125281

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ an integral part of this report.

Annexure ‘A’

To,

The Members,

M/s. ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED
CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953
8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103
Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad 500034, Telangana, India.

Auditor’s responsibility

The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025, of even date is to
be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that
the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices followed provide
a reasonable basis for my opinion.

We have relied on the reports given by the concerned professionals in verifying the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of the company.
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Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and the happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and standards are
the responsihility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a test basis.

As regards the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions referred to
in the Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, the adherence and compliance to the requirements of the said
regulations is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to checking the execution and
timeliness of the filing of various forms, reports, returns and documents that need to be filed by the Company
with various authorities under the said regulations. | have not verified the correctness and coverage of the
contents of such forms, reports, returns and documents.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Hyderabad Signature:
Date: 29.08.2025 CS CHAVA SAI KRISHNA

Proprietor

Chava & Associates

Company Secretary in Practice

M.No: F13258 | CP.No: 18854

Peer Review Cert No: 3897/2023
UDIN:F013258G001125281
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NOTICE OF 5" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the 5™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/S. ARDEE ENGINEERING
LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, 30 September 2025, at 2:00 P.M at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 8-2-
334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500034, Telangana, to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: -

ITEM NO. 1 — ADOPTION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE F.Y. 2024-25

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without madification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31% March, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

ITEM NO. 2 —~ADOPTION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE F.Y. 2024-25

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without maodification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31t March, 2025, and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

ITEM NO: 3- RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAGDEEP MOTURU (DIN: 07587747)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ragdeep Moturu (DIN: 07587747) in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act,
2013, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

ITEM NO: 4 — RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. KRISHNA KUMARI MOTURU (DIN: 10376709)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu (DIN: 10376709) in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO: 5 — RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s} for the time being in force), pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit committee, the Cost Auditors,
M/s Gopala Krishna Jasti, Cost Accountants (Membership No - 005712), appointed by the Board to conduct the audit of the
Cost Records of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty-
Five Thousand Only) and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred, be and is hereby ratified with the accordance
of the members of the company”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

[TEM NO: 6 APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/ CONTRACT(S) WITH ARDEE DRIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules framed
thereunder and, to the extent applicable, Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, (“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for
the time being in force) and other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Policy on Related Party
Transactions and as recommended by Audit Committee and approved by Board of Directors, approval of the Members be
and is hereby accorded for the Company to continue with the existing contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/
transaction(s) and/or enter into / proposed to be entered into contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) / transaction(s)
with Ardee Drives Private Limited a related party under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing
Regulations (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or
otherwise), up to maximum aggregate value of Rs 2,000.00/- Millions (Rupees Two thousand millions only), in the nature of
transactions including but not limited to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or services or other business transactions,
loans or advances (other than trade advances) or inter-corporate deposits, investment by the Company or its subsidiary(ies),
if any”, giving or recelving of guarantees including performance guarantees, indemnities, sureties, or comfort letters,
borrowings, sale, lease or disposal of assets of subsidiary(ies) or of units, if any, divisions or undertakings of the Company or
of shares of subsidiary(ies) or associate(s), if any, royalty payments, leasing of property, rendering or availing of services, or
any other transactions of a similar nature as may fall within the ambit of Section 188 of the Act and/or Regulation 23 of SEBI
LODR, to the extent applicable, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the said
related party, subject to such contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s) being carried out in the ordinary
course of business and at an arm’s length basis for the pericd commencing from the date of this Annual General Meeting
and continuing until the next Annual General Meeting.”

]

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to
any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or any other Officer(s)/Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all
such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the
Company and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such
decisions with regard to the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the
Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this Resolution.

PRIVATE LIMITED IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, {“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company'’s Policy on Related Party Transactions
and as recommended by Audit Committee and approved by Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for the Company to continue with the existing contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s) and/or
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enter into / proposed to be entered into contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) / transaction(s) with Ingwenya Mineral
Tech Private Limited a related party under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations
{(whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), up to
maximum aggregate value of Rs 3,000.00/- Millions (Rupees Three thousand millions only), in the nature of transactions
including but not limited to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or services or other business transactions, loans or
advances (other than trade advances) or inter-corporate deposits, investment by the Company or its subsidiary(ies), if any”,
giving or receiving of guarantees including performance guarantees, indemnities, sureties, or comfort letters, borrowings,
sale, lease or disposal of assets of subsidiary(ies) or of units, if any, divisions or undertakings of the Company or of shares of
subsidiary(ies) or associate(s), if any, royalty payments, leasing of property, rendering or availing of services, or any other
transactions of a similar nature as may fall within the ambit of Section 188 of the Act and/or Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR, to
the extent applicable, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the said related
party, subject to such contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s} being carried out in the ordinary course of
business and at an arm’s length basis for the period commencing from the date of this Annual General Meeting and
continuing until the next Annual General Meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to
any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or any other Officer(s)/Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all
such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the
Company and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such
decisions with regard to the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the
Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this Resolution.

ITEM NO: 8 APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/ CONTRACT(S) ROTEC TRANSMISSIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, (“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory maodification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions
and as recommended by Audit Committee and approved by Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for the Company to continue with the existing contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s) and/or
enter into / proposed to be entered into contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) / transaction(s) with Rotec
Transmissions Private Limited a related party under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2{1)(zb) of the Listing
Regulations (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or
otherwise), up to maximum aggregate value of Rs 1,500.00/- Millions {One thousand five hundred Millions only), in the
nature of transactions including but not limited to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or services or other business
transactions, loans or advances (other than trade advances) or inter-corporate deposits, investment by the Company or its
subsidiary(ies), if any”, giving or receiving of guarantees including performance guarantees, indemnities, sureties, or
comfort letters, borrowings, sale, lease or disposal of assets of subsidiary(ies) or of units, if any, divisions or undertakings of
the Company or of shares of subsidiary(ies) or associate(s), if any, royalty payments, leasing of property, rendering or
availing of services, or any other transactions of a similar nature as may fall within the ambit of Section 188 of the Act
and/or Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR, to the extent applicable, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed
between the Company and the said related party, subject to such contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement{s)/
transaction(s) being carried out in the ordinary course of business and at an arm’s length basis for the period commencing
from the date of this Annual General Meeting and continuing until the next Annual General Meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to
any Director(s} or Chief Financial Officer or any other Officer(s)/Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all
such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the
Compony and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such
decisions with regard to the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the
Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this Resolution.

[TEM NO: 9 APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/ CONTRACT(S) ARUN KAPITAL NETWORKS IN THE
ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} read with the Rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended, (“Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and other applicable laws / statutory provisions, if any, the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions
and as recommended by Audit Committee and approved by Board of Directors, approval of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for the Company to continue with the existing contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s) and/or
enter into / proposed to be entered into contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) / transaction{s) with Arun Kapital
Networks a related party under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations (whether by way
of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), up to maximum
aggregate value of Rs 1,000.00/- Millions {One Thousand millions only), in the nature of transactions including but not
limited to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or services or other business transactions, loans or advances (other than
trade advances) or inter-corporate deposits, investment by the Company or its subsidiary(ies), if any”, giving or receiving of
guarantees including performance guarantees, indemnities, sureties, or comfort letters, borrowings, sale, lease or disposal
of assets of subsidiary(ies) or of units, if any, divisions or undertakings of the Company or of shares of subsidiary(ies) or
associate(s), if any, royalty payments, leasing of property, rendering or availing of services, or any other transactions of a
similar nature as may fall within the ambit of Section 188 of the Act and/or Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR, to the extent
applicable, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the said related party,
subject to such contract(s) / arrangement{s) / agreement(s)/ transaction(s) being carried cut in the ordinary course of
business and at an arm’s length basis for the period commencing from the date of this Annual General Meeting and
continuing until the next Annual General Meeting.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to
any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or any other Officer(s)/Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all
such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this Resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the
Company and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such
decisions with regard to the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the
Members or otherwise to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this Resolution.

ITEM NO.10: INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY FROM 7,500 MILLION TO RS 9,500 MILLION UNDER
SECTION 180(1)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the special resolution passed by the members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on April 15,2025 and pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s)
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(b)

or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and all other enabling provisions if any, and the Articles of Association
of the Company, the consent and approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors

(“hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committee thereof authorized by the
Board ”) to borrow any sum(s) of money, from time to time, including by way of issuance of debentures/bonds (including
FCCBs), from bank(s), financial institution(s), any other lending institution(s) or any other person(s) on such security and on
such terms and conditions as may be considered suitable by the Board of Directors up to a limit not exceeding an aggregate
of Rs 9,500 Millions (Rupees Nine thousand five hundred millions Only), notwithstanding that the money to be borrowed
together with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
bankers in the ordinary course of business), may exceed, at any time, the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company
and its free reserves, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board (including any Committee of the Board)
be and is hereby authorized to finalize, settle and execute such documents/deeds/writings/papers/agreements as may be
required and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or
desirable and to resolve any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in relation thereto, without being required to seek
any further consent or approval of the Members and to delegate all or any of the powers or authorities herein conferred to
any director(s) or other officer(s} of the Company, and to engage any advisor, consultant, agent or intermediary, as may be
deemed necessary in the best interest of the Company.”

ITEM NO.11: APPROVAL FOR INCREASE IN THRESHOLD LIMITS TO PROVIDE LOANS/ GUARANTEES, PROVIDING OF SECURITIES
AND MAKING OF INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 185 AND 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”, which term shall be deemed to inciude any Committee thereof) to:

give any loan, including any loan represented by a book debt, and/or provide any guarantee or security in connection with
any loan made to any entity in which any of the directors of the Company may be deemed to be interesled, provided Lhat
such loans are utilised by the borrowing entity for its principal business activities, in accordance with Section 185(2) of the
Act.

give any loan, or acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise the securities of any body corporate, and to provide
guarantees or securities in connection with any loan made to any person or body corporate, including by way of inter-
corporate guarantee, letter of comfort or undertaking in accordance with Section 186 of the Act;

from time to time in one or more tranches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in
the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding Rs. 7,000 Millions (Rupees Seven Thousand Millions only),
notwithstanding that such investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and/or security provided may
collectively exceed the limits prescribed under Section 186(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to decide and finalise the terms and conditions while
making investment(s) within the aforesaid limits including the power to transfer, lien and dispose of the investment(s) so
made, from time-to-time, giving loan(s) to any person or body corporate or giving guarantee(s) or providing security in
connection with a loan(s) to any other person or body corporate as they may deem fit and in the best interest of the
Company and to execute all deeds, documents and other writings.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things to the extent it
may be desirable and expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution including the power to settle any and all the questions,

difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to secure any further approval of the members of
the Company”.

By Order Of The Board
For Ardee Engineering Limited

Place: Hyderabad / '7( W Bq,\,‘
-

Date: September 26,2025 /= ~ \
j” \ Chandra Sekhar Moturu
L HYDERABAD J=:|| Chairman And Managing Director

Wy

S ~// DIN: 02010969
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NOTES:

1. Proxy: A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Proxies should be deposited at the
registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the date of the extra-ordinary general meeting.
Proxies submitted on behalf of companies, societies, etc, must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority letter, as applicable.

2. Limitation on Proxy Appointments: A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Shareholders not exceeding fifty in
number and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

3. Inspection of Documents: All relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Explanatory
Statement shall be available for inspection by the Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays) during business hours, up to and including the
date of the Meeting.

4. Explanatory Statement: The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
setting out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM, is annexed hereto and
forms part of this Notice.

5. Corporate Representation: Corporate Shareholders intending to send their authorized representatives to
attend the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution or authorization letter,
authorizing such representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

6. Mode of Sending AGM Notice: The Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is being sent electronically to
those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company or with the Depositories, unless any
Member has specifically requested a physical copy. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses,
physical copies of the AGM Notice are being sent by permitted modes of dispatch, as per applicable regulatory
guidelines.

7. Electronic Communication: Pursuant to Section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 35 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, the Company may send documents, notices, and other communications to
Shareholders in electronic form at the email addresses registered with the Company or Depository Participants.

8. Route Map: As required under Secretarial Standard-2 (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI), the route map to the venue of the Meeting is annexed to this Notice.

59




ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED

(FORMELY KNOWN AS ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMTED)

CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953 (Previous: U29100TG2020PTC141953)
Registered office address: 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court,
Road No. 5, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500034

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statement, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, sets out all material facts
relating to the business under Items of the accompanying Notice.

[TEM NO: 5: RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

As per the provisions of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended Company's activities fall within the
purview of the Cost Audit requirement. Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on June 4, 2025 on the recommendation
of Audit Committee, approved the appointment of Cost Auditors, M/s Gopala Krishna Jasti, Cost Accountants (Membership
No - 005712), appointed by the Board to conduct the audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the financial year 2025-
26 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand Only) plus Reimbursement of Out-of-pocket
expenses incurred, if any, for conducting the Cost Audit of the Cost records of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration as mentioned above, payable to the Cost Auditors, as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Proposed Resolution

Accordingly, consent and approval of the shareholders is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at item
No. 5 of the Notice for ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the financial year 2025-26.

Interest of Directors and KMP
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except to the extent of their directorship/shareholding in
the borrowing entities (if any), are concerned or interested in the resolution.

[TEM NO: 6 to 9: APPROVE THE MATERIAL TRANSACTION(S)/ CONTRACT(S) WITH RELATED PARTIES IN THE ORDINARY
COURSE OF BUSINESS

The proposed transactions with a party that qualifies as a "related party" in accordance with the provisions of Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended.

In accordance with section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, related party”, with reference to a company, means{/)
a director or his relative; (i) akey managerial personnelor his relative(iii) a firm, in which a director, manageror
his relative is a partner(iv) a private company in which a director or manager [or his relative] is a member or director;(v) a
public company in which a director or manager [and holds] is a director or holds along with his relatives, more than two per
cent of its paid-up share capital;(vi) anybody whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is accustomed to act
in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a director or manager;(vii) any person on whose advice,
directions or instructions a director or manager is accustomed to act:(viii) any company which is—(A) a holding, subsidiary
or an associate company of such company; or (8) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary;{C) an
investing company or the venturer of the company;"

Further, under the SEBI LODR Regulations, any person or entity forming part of the promoter or promoter group, or
holding equity shares amounting to ten per cent or more, or twenty per cent or more in the preceding financial year, either
directly or on a beneficial interest basis, is also deemed to be a related party.

Given the nature and scope of its business, the Company regularly engages with its related parties to meet operational
requirements and strategic objectives. These transactions are undertaken from time to time in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis.

Among these, the estimated value of transactions with Ardee Drives Private Limited, Rotec Transmissions Private Limited,
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited, and Arun Kapital Networks (referred to as “Related Parties”) is likely to exceed the
prescribed materiality thresholds as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has historically entered into similar
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transactions with these entities after obtaining the necessary approval of the Audit Committee, and such transactions have
always been conducted in a transparent and compliant manner.

The estimated maximum annual value of these transactions is based on current business volumes and anticipated growth,
and such transactions are considered critical to the Company’s operations. Therefore, in order to ensure continuity and
operational flexibility, approval of the shareholders is being sought for entering into transactions with the said related
parties during the proposed period.

The Audit Committee, including its Independent Directors, has reviewed the relevant documents, commercial terms, and
pricing basis provided by the Management and has granted its approval for these transactions, subject to the shareholders’
approval. The Committee has noted that the transactions are commercially justified, benchmarked where necessary, and
are being undertaken at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business.

relationship,

including nature
of its concern or
interest (financial

directorship that has a
significant
influence/control

directorship that has a
significant
influence/control

common directorship
that has a significant
influence/control

Sno Name of the | ARDEE DRIVES PRIVATE | INGWENYA MINERAL | ROTEC ARUN  KAPITAL
Related Party LIMITED TECH PRIVATE LIMITED TRANSMISSIONS NETWORKS
PRIVATE LIMITED
1 nature of the | An entity with common | An entity with common | An entity with | a firm, in which a

director,
manager or his
relative is a
partner

who are related,

Mr. Ragdeep Moturuy,

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu,

or otherwise)
2 Name of the | Mr. Chandra Sekhar Mr. Chandra Sekhar Mr. Chandra Sekhar Ms. Sailaja
Directors or KMP | Motury, Moturu Moturu, Moturu

Mr. Ragdeep

if any Mr. Sundararama Mr. Sundararama | Moturu
Sarma Gorrepati Sarma Gorrepati Mr. Arun Moturu

3 Nature of the | sale, purchase or supply of any goods or services or other business transactions, loans or advances
proposed (other than trade advances) or inter-corporate deposits, investment by the Company or its
Transactions, subsidiary(ies), if any”, giving or receiving of guarantees including performance guarantees,
material .terms indemnities, sureties, or comfort letters, borrowings, sale, lease or disposal of assets of
and particulars, . . . ) . .
its tenure subsidiary(ies) or of units, if any, divisions or undertakings of the Company or of shares of

subsidiary(ies) or associate(s), if any, royalty payments, leasing of property, rendering or availing of
services, or any other transactions of a similar nature as may fall within the ambit of Section 188 of
the Act and/or Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR.

Material terms and conditions are based on the contracts/agreements, which inter alia include the
rates based on prevailing / extant market conditions and other standard commercial terms shall
apply as per the agreement/contract entered into between the parties.

The tenure is from this AGM to the next AGM of the Company.

4 Amount of | Rs. 2,000 Millions Rs. 3,000 Millions Rs. 1,500 Millions Rs. 1,000
Proposed Millions
Transactions

5 % of the entity’s 25.68% 38.52% 19.26% 12.84%
annual
consolidated
tumover, for FY
2024-25, that is
represented by
the value of the
proposed
transaction

6 Details of | FY 2025: Rs. 131.59 FY 2025: Rs. 240.10 FY 2025: Rs. 100.17 FY 2025: Rs.
Previous Millions Millions Millions 182.59 Millions
transactions with FY 2024: Rs. 97.12 FY 2024: Rs. 40.73 FY 2024: Rs. 54.64 FY 2024: Rs.
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related entities | Millions | wmillions [ Mmillions 390.92 Millions
(FY 2025, 2024, FY 2023: Rs. 3947 FY 2023: NIL FY 2023: Rs. 27.80 FY 2023: Rs.
2023) Millions Millions 21.84 Millions
7 Details about | All the transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the Company and at arm’s length basis.
pricing/ The pricing for all related party transactions, including other RPTs are established generally
valuation/ arm’s | considering the market price for comparable transactions with unrelated parties where available or
Iength and on a cost-plus reasonable margin basis or an alternative pricing method of relevant materials and/or
ordinary course :
- services.
of business
In the case of reimbursements/recoveries, the amount would be based on the actual cost incurred.
8 Rationale, All the Related Party Transactions are based on routine and ordinary business requirements,
benefit/
justification as to | Al RPTs mentioned bring operational efficiencies, synergies and are aligned with long-standing
why . the | psiness practices. They also help the Company to achieve an optimum cost structure and maximize
transaction with T
X profitability.
respective

related parties ) . . . . . -
are in the | Engaging with such related parties ensures business continuity, operational efficiency, cost

interest of the | optimization, and access to reliable services or resources. The terms of the transactions have been
Company reviewed and found to be fair and in the best interest of the Company.”

9 Any other | All relevant/important information forms part of this statement setting out material facts pursuant

information that | to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
may be relevant

Proposed Resolution

The Board of Directors proposes to seek prior approval of the Members for entering into contract(s), arrangement(s), and
transaction(s) with the related parties as listed under Agenda Iltems 6 to 9, which may be undertaken through multiple
transactions over time, in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

These transactions may be entered into, and renewed from time to time, with the mutual consent of the respective parties
for ensuring operational continuity and for supporting the Company’s long-term business objectives and growth plans.

In line with the Company’s governance practices, the Chief Financial Officer has reviewed the financial aspects of the
proposed transactions and has confirmed that the terms are fair, reasonable, and in the interest of the Company, and that
the transactions comply with applicable regulatory and accounting standards.

Except for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) whose names and relationships are disclosed in the
accompanying table, none of the other Directors or KMPs or their relatives are, financially or otherwise, concerned or
interested in the said resolution.

ITEM NO 10: INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY FROM RS 7500 MILLIONS TO RS 9,500 MILLIONS UNDER
SECTION 180(1)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The Members of the Company had earlier, at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 15,2025, accorded their
consent by way of a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing the Board of Directors
{“the Board”) to borrow monies up to an aggregate limit of Rs. 7,500 millions (Rupees Seven thousand five hundred million
only).

In view of the Company’s anticipated business growth, expansion plans, future funding requirements, and to enhance its
financial flexibility, it is considered necessary to increase the existing borrowing limits from Rs. 7,500 millions to Rs 9,500
million (Rupees Nine thousand five hundred millions Only). To effectively pursue strategic opportunities, it is crucial for the
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company to have access to funding options within a specified timeframe. Enhanced borrowing capacity will enable the
company to pursue, finance, and successfully complete transactions that are in the best interest of its stakeholders.

As per the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company cannot, except
with the permission of the Shareholders in General Meeting by passing a Special Resolution, borrow monies in excess of the
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company.

Proposed Resolution
Accordingly, the shareholder’s approval is being sought for increasing the borrowing limits from Rs 7,500 Millions to Rs 9,500

Millions under section 180(1)(c). It would be in the ir'ltergsngf/ﬁhe Company to enhance the borrowing limits for the Board and
authorise the Board of Directors to borrow monies which 'may exceed at any time the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the
Company and its free reserves and securities premium but that shall not to exceed Rs 9,500 millions (Rupees Nine thousand
five hundred millions Only). The borrowings of the Company are, in general, required to be secured by suitable mortgage or
charge on all or any of the movable and/ or immovable properties of the Company in such form, manner and ranking as may
be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, from time to time, in consultation with the lender(s).

Interest of Directors and KMP
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except to the extent of their directorship/shareholding in
the borrowing entities (if any), are concerned or interested in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the shareholders as a Special Resolution.

ITEM NO 11: APPROVAL FOR INCREASE IN THRESHOLD LIMITS TO PROVIDE LOANS/ GUARANTEES, PROVIDING OF SECURITIES
AND MAKING OF INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 185 AND 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company is required to obtain prior approval of the shareholders by way of
a special resolution if the aggregate of loans, guarantees, securities, and investments exceeds 60% of its paid-up share capital,
free reserves and securities premium account, or 100% of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is
higher.

Further, Section 185 of the Act restricts companies from providing loans, guarantees or securities to certain entities in which
Directors are interested, unless such transactions are approved by the shareholders through a special resolution and the loan
is utilised by the borrowing company for its principal business activities.

To facilitate strategic investments opportunities, business expansion, funding support to group companies/associates, and to
provide financial assistance as may be required from time to time, the Board proposes to seek authorisation to provide loans,
guarantees, securities and to make investments up to an aggregate limit of Rs. 7,000 Millions, including to such entities where
Directors may be interested, subject to the conditions specified in the Act.

This resolution, upon being passed, shall supersede any previous resolution(s) passed by the shareholders under Sections 185
and/or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent of such earlier approvals, and the authority granted under this
resolution shall remain in force unless revoked or modified by a fresh resolution.

Interest of Directors and KMP
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, except to the extent of their directorship/shareholding in

the borrowing entities (if any), are concerned or interested in the resolution.
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The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the shareholders as a Special Resolution.

By Order Of The Board
For Ardee Engineering Limited

Place: Hyderabad ’7( W L'v‘
Date: September 26,2025 '
Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman And Managing Director
DIN: 02010969
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ANNEXURE -A

Details of Directors seeking reappointment at the 5% Annual General Meeting in pursuance of provisions of the

Name of the Director

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu

DIN 07587747 10376709
Date of Birth 27.07.1989 18.04.1990
Nationality Indian Indian
Date of Appolntment on the | 20.07.2020 o 25.08.2024

Board

Designation

Whole Time Director

Director and CFO

Terms & Conditions of Re-
Appointment  along  with
Remuneration sought to be
paid

Being reappointed as a Director liable to
retire by rotation and all other terms of
his appointment including remuneration
as Executive Director shall remain same.

Being reappointed as a Director liable to retire by
rotation and all other terms of his appointment
including remuneration as Executive Director shall
remain same.

Remuneration paid_ for FY
2024-25

Rs 48,00,000/-

Rs 14,45,000/-

Qualification

He holds a bachelor's degree in
technology (information technology)
from VIT University and a master’s
degree in science from Rochester
Institute of Technology, United States

She holds a bachelor’s degree in technology
(computer science and engineering) from
Jawaharlal  Nehru Technological ~ University,

Hyderabad. She also holds a master's degree in
science (computer science) from the University of
Missouri. She has also completed a postgraduate
programme in management from the Indian

School of Business

List of Directorships in other
companies

1.Ardee Drives Private Limited.,

2.Rotec Transmissions Private Limited

Aitas Tech Labs Private Limited

Relationship ~ with  other
Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company.

He is the son of Mr. Chandra Sekhar
Moturu, Chairman and Managing
Director, spouse of Mrs. Krishna Kumari
Moturu, Director and CFO, and the
brother of Mr. Arundeep Moturu,
Director of the Company.

She is the spouse of Mr. Ragdeep Moturu, Whole-
time Director; daughter-in-law of Mr. Chandra
Sekhar Moturu, Chairman and Managing Director;
and sister-in-law of Mr. Arundeep Moturu,
Director of the company.

Chairman/Member of the
Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, IPO Committee (Chairman),
Risk Management Committee

Audit Committee, IPO Committee

Chairman/Member of the
Committee of the Board of
Directors in other Companies
as on March 31, 2025.

NIL

NIL

No. of Equity Shares of ¥35/-
held in the Company as on
31.03.2025

40,00,000 equity shares of Rs 5/-

20 equity shares of Rs 5/-

Number of Board Meeting | 27/27 14/14
Attended
Names of Listed Entities from | Nil Nil

which the director has
resigned during last three
years

65




ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED
(FORMELY KNOWN AS ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMTED)

CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953 (Previous: U29100TG2020PTC141953)
Registered office address: 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court,
Road No. 5, Banjara Hills,

Hyderabad, Telangana, india, 500034

Table-1

(Amaunts in Millions)

ANNEXURE-B

Nature of transaction Name of the related For the year For the year For the year
party ended ended ended
March 31, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2025
Purchase of Goods Ardee Drives Private 81.83 13.42
Limited (formerly Balaji 46.73
Drives Private Limited)
Revenue from Contracts Ardee Drives Private 12.00 12.55
Limited (formerly Balaji 31.44
Drives Private Limited)
Corporate Guarantee Given Ardee Drives Private -
Limited (formerly Balaji 52.50
Drives Private Limited)
Advances from Customers Ardee Drives Private 3.29 13.50
Limited (formerly Balaji -
Drives Private Limited)
Advance to Suppliers Ardee Drives Private -
Limited (formerly Balaji 0.92

Drives Private Limlted)
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Table-2

Table-3

(Amounts in Millions)

Nature of transaction Name of the related party For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,
- 2023
Purchase of Goods Rotec Transmissions Private 15.80 14.57
Limited 24.08
Revenue from Rotec Transmissions Private 80.57 40.07
Contracts Limited 3.72
Other expenses Rotec Transmissions Private 3.80 - -
Limited
(Amounts in Millions)
Nature of Name of the related For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
transaction party March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchase of Goods Ingwenya Mineral 138.62 - -
Tech Private
Limited
Revenue from Ingwenya Mineral - 31.78 -
Contracts Tech Private
Limited
Advance to Ingwenya Mineral - 3.50 -
suppliers Tech Private
Limited
Investment in Ingwenya Mineral - 5.45 -
Associates Tech Private
Limited
Inter corporate Ingwenya Mineral 50.74 - -
deposits taken Tech Private
Limited
Inter corporate Ingwenya Mineral 50.74 - -

deposits repaid

Tech Private
Limited
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Table-4

(Amounts in Millions)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: September 26,2025

Nature of transaction | Name of the related party |  For the year ended For the year For the year
March 31, 2025 ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purchase of Goods Arun Kapital Networks 3.70 379.58 1.52
Purchase of Arun Kapital Networks 0.96 E 0.10
property, plant &
equipment and
Intangible assets
Revenue from Arun Kapital Networks - 11.34 20.22
Conftracts
Other expenses Arun Kapital Networks 9.51 -
Retention Money Arun Kapital Networks 56.42 T
Paid
Advance to suppliers | Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 - -
Advance to suppliers | Arun KapitaI_Networks 56.00 - -
By Order Of The Board

For Ardee Engineering Limited

#/( L;cwdm&w\

Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Chairman And Managing Director

DIN: 02010969
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Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
ARDEE ENGINEERING LTD
CIN: - U29100TG2020PLC141953
8-2-334/K/1, FLAT NOS. 101, 102 & 103
ADITYA COURT, ROAD NO. 5,
BANJARA HILLS HYDERABAD-500034

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

I/We, being the member (s) of ............ shares of ARDEE ENGINEERING LTD, hereby appoint
1. Name: oo

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: .....c.c...... , or failing him

2. Name: .coonvcoininnnns

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ..o, , or failing him

3. Name: .o,
Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ...coevvnes

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 5™ Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on Tuesday 30" September 2025 at 2:00 PM at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 8-2-
334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103 Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills Hyderabad-500034, Telangana, and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. No. Resolutions For Against

1. ADOPTION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE F.Y 2024-
25

2. ADOPTION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE F.Y
2024-25

3, RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAGDEEP MOTURU (DIN: 07587747)

4. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. KRISHNA KUMARI MOTURU (DIN;
10376709)

5. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS OF THE
COMPANY

6. TO APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/
CONTRACT(S) WITH ARDEE DRIVES PRIVATE LIMITED IN THE ORDINARY
COURSE OF BUSINESS

7. TO APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/
CONTRACT(S) WITH ROTEC TRANSMISSIONS PRIVATE LIMITED IN THE
ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

8 TO APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/

B ) CONTRACT(S) WITH INGWENYA MINERAL TECH PRIVATE LIMITED IN THE
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ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

TO APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION(S)/

S CONTRACT(S) ARUN KAPITAL NETWORKS IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF
BUSINESS

10. INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY FROM RS 7,500
MILLIONS TO RS 9,500 MILLIONS UNDER SECTION 180(1)(C) OF THE

L COMPANIES ACT, 2013

11. APPROVAL FOR INCREASE IN THRESHOLD LIMITS TO PROVIDE LOANS/

GUARANTEES, PROVIDING OF SECURITIES AND MAKING OF
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES UNDER SECTION 185 AND 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Signed this...... day of......... 2025

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the

Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mecting
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

ARDEE ENGINEERING LTD
CIN: - U29100TG2020PLC141953
8-2-334/K/1, FLAT NOS. 101, 102 & 103
ADITYA COURT, ROAD NO. 5,
BANJARA HILLS HYDERABAD-500034

-
Folio No. Name of the shareholder

No. of Shares Registered Address

I certify that | am a registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 5" Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held Tuesday, 30%
September 2025 at 2:00 PM at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 &
103 Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500034, Telangana.

SIGNATURE

Note: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the venue.
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C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Owners Pride Plot No 1717 1101/B, Manjeera Trinity Corporate,

Road No. 12, Banjara Hills, JNTU-Hitech City Road, Kukatpally,

Hyderabad - 500 034. Hyderabad- 500 072.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private
Limited]

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited
[formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 ‘The
Auditors responsibilities relating to other information’.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standa[gg ;g:ggified under Section 133 of the Act.

N
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,

()

(8)

2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year, has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled
and recorded in the in prior year as explained in Note 42 to the financial statements.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid /
provided by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995 Chartered Accountants
e ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

I Jojors

P.V.N Sastry J* Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner NN 7 Partner

Membership No. 029098 700 4ot Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102 =+~ UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEEING LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

(formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Numb%
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P.V.N Sastry \"3;.‘1“: % //f_ﬁ /f
Partner NV o
Membership No. 029098
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102

ai 11

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i (@) A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use
assets. '

B The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets were physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all items over a period of
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of Property, Plant and Equipment
and right-of-use assets have been physically verified by Management during the year. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the standalone financial statements
included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress are held in the name of
the Company except for below one immovable property aggregating to Rs. 631.51 million
as at March 31, 2025. The title deeds of immovable properties aggregating to Rs. 524.70 Mn
as at March 31, 2025, are pledged with the banks/financial institutions and original copies are
not available with the Company. The same has been independently confirmed by the
banks/financial institutions to us and verified by us.

Sr. Description of | Gross Held in the Whether Period held - | Reason for not
No. | Property carrying name of title deed | Indicate being held in
value holder is a | range, where | name of
(Amount ¥ promoter, | appropriate Company
in Mn) director or
their
relative or
employee
1 Land in| 631.51 Telangana No From March | This Land was
Telangana Industrial 2025 to till | allotted to the
Infrastructure date. Company by
Corporation TGIIC Ltd and
Limited Agreement of
[TGIIC Ltd] Sale is executed
- where the

transfer of title
is subject to
precedent
conditions
agreed between
the parties -
Refer Note 5A
to the
standalone
financial
statements.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties and stocks-in-transit) has been physically
verified by the management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties,
these have substantially been confirmed by them and in respect of goods in transit, the goods
have been received subsequent to the year end. The discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate
for each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of such confirmations. In our opinion, the
frequency, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate, having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores rupees in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Based on
the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the standalone financial statements,
quarterly statements filed with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has provided
guarantee to other entity.

(A) The details of such guarantee to party other than associates are as follows:

Particulars Guarantees
(Amount ¥ in Mn)

Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year

Others (Refer Note 35) 52.50

Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases

- Others (Refer Note 35) 52.50

(B) During the year the Company has not provided any loans or advances (in the nature of
loans) or provided security to any other entity.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made, guarantees provided and
terms and conditions in relation to investments made, guarantees provided are not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans to any other entity
during the year. Accordingly, provisions stated under clause 3(iii) (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of investments and guarantees provided.
Further there are no loans and security made, accordingly the provisions stated under clause 3(iv) of

the Ordgr__;qmgag_gent is not applicable to the Company.
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V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its product supplies. We have
broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, in
our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities during the year, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, there
are no dues relating to goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transaction which are not
recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Income-tax Assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, the requirement to
report as stated under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(©) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, money raised
by way of term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report under Clause 3(ix)(f) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Ordegs- nat-agpllcable to the Company.
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly, or optionally convertible) during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of
our audit.

(b) During the year no report under Section 143(12) of the Act, has been filed by cost auditor or
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of our audit
report, for the period under audit.

Xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the requirements to report under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year and accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) does not have any Core Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  Based on the overall review of standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
—

—
-

T
Z I KRis N
-h@ “H‘"-\', }‘\\ :
H o)
A
( .Vderabad‘ o.

Y
N

(&)
*
\ (;

%
\

82




C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (as
disclosed in note 38 to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a
Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year in compliance with second proviso to Section 135(5) of the Act as explained in
Note 32 to the standalone financial statements.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a special
account within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with
Section 135(6) of the Act, as explained in Note 32 to the standalone financial statements.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said Clause has been included in the
report.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995 Chartered Accountants
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Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [Ardee
Engineering Private Limited] on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Ardee Engineering Limited [Formerly Known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (“the Company”)
as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the
internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For MS K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 045995 Chartered Accountants
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P.V.N Sastry / Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner NS Partner

Membership No. 029098 N Ao~ Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNR1102 UDIN: 25231741BMLKZZ3825
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Ardee Engineering Liraited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100 rG2020P1L.C141953)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and pet share data and whete otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 5 1,058.98 75751
b) Capital work-in-progress SA 804.01 -
¢) Right-of-use assels 6 4151 1946
d) Intangible assets 7/ 1.66 1.84
¢) Financial assets
(i) Investiments 8 565 5.45
(ii) Trade 1eceivables 12 142.71 80.65
(iii) Other financial assets 9 125.19 2428
1) Other assets {0 207 -
1) Deferred tax assets (net) 31 3873 28.89
Total non-current assets 2,220.51 918.08
Current assets
a) Inventories 1 1,212.28 683.53
b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 8.63 7.96
(if) Trade receivables 12 2,216.06 1,477.98
(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 13 1.54 1.08
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 14 166.71 24227
(v) Other financial assets 9 941,76 1,029.21
c) Other assets 1 335.95 260.12
Tatal current assets 4,882.93 3,702.15
;&al assets 7.103.44 4,620.23
Equity and liabilities
Equity
a) Equity share capital 15 200.00 200,00
b) Other equity 16 1,168.36 671.70
Total equity 1,368.36 871.70
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Bortowings 17 903,50 37171
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 28.11 10.26
b) Provisions 21 17.30 13.03
Total non-current liabilities 948.91 395.00
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 2,228.22 1,478.88
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 15.10 11,52
(ii) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 25824 1,028,37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896.83 670,00
(iit) Other financial liabilities 19 28.13 77.98
b) Provisions 21 241 1.5
¢) Other current liabilities 20 335,54 79.90
d) Current tax liahilities (net) 22 21,70 4.97
Total curvent linbilities 4,786.17 3,353.53
Total liabilities 5,735.08 3,748.53
Total cquity and liabilities 7,003.44 4.620.23
See accompanying noles formit part of the standalone financial statements 1-47

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0045998 Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0015955/S000168
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No, 029098 Membership No, 231741

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

Chandra Sckhar Moturu
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02010969

oanen

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Ditector
DIN 07587747

Dishe Jiudat.
Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Enginecring Privale Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for shate and per share data and whete otherwise slated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue fiom operations 23 7,789.03 6,209,90
Other income 24 3811 18 47
Tatal Income (1) 7,827.14 6,228.37
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 4,886.41 4,080.48
Changeés in inventories of work-in-progress 26 191,68 4.92
Employee benefits expense 27 352,28 272.56
Finance costs 28 271,96 156.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 60,54 35.85
Other expenses 30 1,398.28 1,265.33
Total expenses (11) 7.161.15 5.815.15
Profit before tax (I-11=111) 665.99 413.22
Tax expense 31
Current tax 179 68 101.20
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax (9.97) 6.26
Total tax expense (1V) 169,71 123.58
Profit after tax (111-1V=V) 496.28 289.64
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 0,51 1.00

Deferred tax relating to these items (0.13) (0.25)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (VI) 0.38 0.75
Total comprehensive income for the year (V4VI=VI) 496.66 290.39
Eammgs per equity share (Face value of Rs.5 each) 34

Basic (In INR) 12.41 7.62

Diluted (In INR) 12.41 7.62
See accompanying notes forniing part of the standiadone financtal statements 1-47

As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finmn Registration No.: 0045998

— ~
P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ardee Engineering Limited

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

™

undra Sekhar Moturu Ragdeep Moturu
pairman and Managing Director Whole-time Director
N 02010969 DIN 07587747

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,: 001595S/S000168

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

Ditha Jrwos
Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Membership No, A65058




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Number of shares | Amoun(
As at April 1,2023 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 1,90,00,000 190,00
Change during the year 15 10,00,000 10 00
As at March 31, 2024 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 2,00,00,000 200.00
Sub-division of equity shares* 15 2.00.00.000 -

As al March 31,2025 (Face Value of Rs. 5 each) 4,00,00,000 200,00

*Refer note 15 on Sub-division of equity shares

B. Other equity

Heserves and Surpluy Other comprehensive income
Particulars Securities premium Retained earnings Debenture | Remeasurement of defined
Redemption| benefit obligations routed Total
Reserve through OCI
Balance as at April 1,2023 - 139.91 - 1.40 141.31
Profit for the year - 28964 - - 28964
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 075 075
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 24000 - - = 240.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 240.00 429.55 - 2.15 671.70
Profit for the year - 496 28 - - 496 28
Other comprehensive income, net of tax E - - 038 038
Debenture Redemption reserve created (15.00) 1500 - B
Bal as at March 31, 2025 240.00 910.83 15.00 2.53 | 1,168.36
See accompanying notes forming part of the kafunie finnai il 1-47
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Asscciates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No : 0045998 Chartered Accountants (Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)
ICAT Firm Registration No : 0015955/S000168
-
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain ra Sekhar Moture Ragdeep Moturu
Partner Partner pirmian and Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 2317 02010969 DIN 07587747
/@dW Disha Thudal
Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal
Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer
DIN 10376709 Membership No. A65058
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise slated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2025

For the year ended
March 31,2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 665 99 41322
Adjustments for:
Depieciation and amorltisalion expense 60.54 3585
Interest expense on borrowings measured at amortised cost 25493 142.37
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2.32 232
Interest income on security deposits (0.18) (0.12)
Interest income on fixed deposits (19.17) (897)
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.24) -
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL (067) (046)
Liabilities no longer required written back (17.79) (8.92)
Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49
Provision for credit impaired tiade receivables 45.55 24.07
Advance impaired written off 19.16 N
Operating profit before working capital ¢l 1,022,600 605,85
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decreasc in operating assets:
Trade receivables (845.69) (742.95)
Inventories (528.75) (236.97)
Other financial assets 87.16 (543.45)
Other assets (29.99) (156.54)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 431.63 90137
Provision 528 434
Other financial liabilities (49.85) 62.23
Other liabilities 255.64 (267.55)
Cash flows from/(used in) operations 348.03 (373.67)
Income tax paid (net of refund) (162.95) (111.45)
Net cash flow from/(used in) npernting activities A 185.08 (485.13)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress and capital advance) (1,157.61) (482.49)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.58 1.80
Investment in associate (0.20) (5.45)
Investment in mutual funds - (7.50)
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent (24.88) (186.73)
Interest received on fixed deposits 19.17 8.97
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities B (1,161.94) (671.40)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds fiom issuance of equity share capital including securities premium - 250.00
Share issue expenses (22.18) -
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 40351
Repayment of long term borrowings (241.98) (71.26)
Proceeds fiom short term borrowings (net) 452.90 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (254.93) (136.67)
Other borrowing costs (12.16) (6.49)
Payment towards principal portion of lease liability (12.22) (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {2.32) (2.32)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities C 977.32 907.02
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 0.46 (249.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.08 25059
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeur (Refer Note 13) 1.54 1.08
See aceampanying notes forming part of the siandulone financial statements 1-47
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICATI Firm Registration No.: 0045998 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineering Puivate Limited)

ICAL Firm Registiation No.: 001595S/S000168
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(tormerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020P1.C 141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Corporate information

Ardee Engineering Limited (formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited) (‘the Company’/*Ardee’) is a design, engineering and manufacturing entity formed in yeai
2008 as a partnership firm. On July 20, 2020, the Partnership firm was converted into privale limited company under (he provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Later, the
Company was converted from private limited company to public limited company, puisuant to a special 1esolution passed in (he extraordinary gencral meeling of the shareholders
of the Company held on June 5, 2024 and consequently the name of the Company was changed to Ardee Engineering Limited w.e T August 05, 2024, The registered office is
located al H No. 8-2-334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103, Aditya Court, Road No, 5, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telanpana, [ndia

The Company is engaged in twnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural and precision engineering
solutions. Infiastructure, lrrigation, Mining and Minerals, Ports, Power and Oil and Gas, ate the major sectors where Ardee has operated in

Summary of Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"), read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time and presentation
requitements of Division IT of Schedule Il to the Act, (Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT), as applicable to the standalone financial statements

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Basis of measurement

This standalone financial statementshas been prepated on accrual basis and under historical cost convention, except for the following items (refer to individual accounting policies
for detail):

i Certain financial instruments - Fair value through profit or loss

ii. Net defined benefit asset / (liability) - Present value of defined benefit obligations

The Company has prepared the standalone financial information on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statementsis presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. All the amounts disclosed in the
standalone financial statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions except for share and per share data and where otherwise
stated, up to two decimal places as per the requirement of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013

Use of estimates
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the cairying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements are disclosed in note no 3

Classification between - Current and Non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cyele

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpose of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formeily known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where olherwise slated)

2.2

2.3

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 1ebates, any expenditure directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary fou it to be capable of operating in (he manner intended by management and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted fot as a sepatate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred. If significant parts of an item of PPE
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separale items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognised

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1 to the Companies Act,

2013
The estimated useful life, residual values and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis,

The useful life of assets are as follows:

Tangible assets Uscful life as per Schedule IT Useful life estimated by the management based on technical
assessment

Buildings 30 years 15 - 30 vears

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 - 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 vears

Office equipments 5 vears 5 - 10 years

Vehicles 8 years 8-15 years

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over useful lives different from the prescribed useful
lives under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset

In case of a revision of useful Tives, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price and directly
attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. Amortisation is recognised on a Straight line method basis over their estimated useful lives so as to reflect the pattern in
which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (ie., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

The useful life of asset is as fallows:

Asset Useful lives

Software 5 years

This space is intentionally left blank
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except lor share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

2.4

2.6

Impairment of non-financial asscts
The Company assesses al cach year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired, I any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss

An impairment loss is calculaled as the difference between an assel’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in Stalement of Profit and Loss and reflected
in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects ol recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the dectease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was tecognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
eslimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset, For the purpose of impaitment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assels that generates cash in {lows ffom continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Group of asscts (the “cash-generating unit”).

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of

time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessce:
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement apptoach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company 1ecognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease

payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they aie incurred to produce inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
oceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasuted if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of land and Buildings, machi nery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair

value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.. the fair value of the consideration given or received, If the
Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the Ic»}:],gﬁ!ﬂé'ﬁm_ug hierarchy as explained above

2 SHNA
Q\2 &
A -




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and whete olherwise stated)

2.7

2.8

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net tealisable value
i Raw materials, components and stores and spares:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incuried in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected (o be sold at or above cost. Cosl of raw
materials, components and stotes and spates is determined on a weighted average method, Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
accounted as inventories

ii Work-in-progress:
Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct malerials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal opeiating capacily. Cost is
determined on a moving weighted average basis

iii Serap:
Scrap is valued at net realizable value,
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary coutse of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the

payment is being made.

Contract with customers include pre-engineered building, material handling and engineering contracts along with erection and installation services. All the supplies and services
are considered as one petformance obligation as the Company believes underlying goods and services are single performance obligation, single commercial objective or the
consideration in one contract depends on another.

In respect of the contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input method (equivalent to percentage of completion method POCM) of accounting with contract
costs incurted determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation,
Percentage of completion is determined on the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of erection incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and

etection
The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts

collected on behalf of a third party. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice, and there is no financing component involved in the transaction price.

Liquidated damages (LD) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-fulfilment of certain commitments as per the terms of respective sales
contract, These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors relevant to that sale

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which such probability occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue on account of extra claims are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement by the customers.

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale. These assutance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Interest income

Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments
classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognised as income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on accrual basis provided there is no uncertainty of realisation

Contract balances

a. Contract Assets:
Revenue earned but not billed to customers against contract with customers is reflected as unbilled revenue under "Other financial assets” because the receipt of consideration is

conditional on Company’s performance under the contract (ie. transfer control of related goods or services to the customer). Upon completion of the installation and acceptance by
the customer, the amount recognised as unbilled revenue is reclassified to trade receivables,

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to the accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in note 2,12 Financial instcuments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement

b. Trade Receivables:
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the
accounting policies of financial assets in note 2.12 (Financial instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement)

c. Contract Liabilitics:
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services
These amounts are reflected as Advance from customers under "Other liabilities". Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

(ie., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer)

viderabad
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2.9

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan N
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme The Company has no obligation, other than the contiibution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribulion payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee tenders the related service

Defined benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit (hat employees have earned in the curient and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the ptojected unit credit method When the calculation results in a potential asset
for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in futwe
contributions (o the plan (‘the asset ceiling’) To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCL The Company determines the net inlerest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit liabilily/ (asset) for the period
by applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on government bonds. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset), both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the 1esulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain
or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The, Company 1ecognises gains and losses on the seltlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 which entitles an employee, who has rendeted at least five years of continuous
service, to gratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifieen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based on
the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned

All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method The
classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and non-curtent is as per the actuarial valation report

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in determination of the net profit or loss for the year

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences
and losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date, The expensc relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognized because either it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognized

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
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2,12

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial asscts

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, (in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value through statement of profil and loss) transaction costs (hat are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset Transaction costs of financial assels caitied at fair value through profit or loss are expensed off in the statement of profit &
loss. Trade receivable that does not conlain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price,

Classification and subsequent measurcment:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt insttuments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categoties into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows those cash flows 1epresent solely payments ol principal and interest are measured al amortised cost
Interest income fiom these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method: Any gain ot loss arising on derecognition and impairment losses
(if any) are recognised directly in profit or loss

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and security deposit

Fair yalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCI

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the critetia for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
The Company has designated investments in mutual funds (debt instruments) in this category.

Derecognition:
A financial assct (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i e. removed from the Company’s
summary statements of assets and liabilities) when;
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset o1 has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that 1esult fiom default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12- month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL),

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities and equity

An instruments issued by a Company are classifted as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilitics are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
This category generally applies to borrowings. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settlg gu.a net basis or realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable'j;g-_'ﬂ'y:{ ’r@?‘i?m'\of business and in the event of default, ul;pl\‘.cnc_v or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.13

2.14

3.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

()

®

Investments in the nature of equity in Associate
Investment in associate are valued at Cosl. Dividend Income from Associates is recognized when its right to receive the dividend is established

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share ate calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period allributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the yeai

The weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shates outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year aie adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Segment Reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker The Board of Ditectors monitors the operating
results as a single segment considering activities of manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings, material handling solutions and related services
as one single operating segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the location in which the customers are situated

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
tequite a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years

Judgements / estimates
In the process of applying the accounting policies, manageiment has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial information:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the teporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year, are described below:

a, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial statements were prepated

b. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumnstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards
complete salisfaction of performance obligation,
Determining the expected losses, which are recognized in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract cost as of the reporting date

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are
reviewed by the management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful lives of the
assets

Contingent liabilities

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when thete is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates,
adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and the Company makes appropriate provision wherever
outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future

Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date, The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based
on expected future inflation rates.

Deferred tax recognition

Deferred tax asset (DTA) is recognized only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will have sufficient taxable profits in future against which such
assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, recent business performance and developments.
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4 Recent accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified amendments to various Indian Accounting Standards through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standaids) Amendment Rules,

2025 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2025 as under:

* Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 10: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

These amendments are introduced to clarify the requirements on determining whether a liability is current or non-cuttent and requite new disclosures for non-cutrent liabilities that
are subject fo future covenants. These amendments apply for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after Apiil |, 2025, while certain amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2026. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these amendments, which will be applied retrospectively in
accordance with Ind AS 8. These amendments may particulatly affect the classification and disclosures relating to non-cutrent borrowings subject to future covenant compliance

* Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 7: Supplier Financc Arrangements

These amendments introduce new disclosures relating to supplier finance arrangements that assist users of the financial statements to assess the effects of these artangements on an
entity’s liabilities and cash flows and on an entity's exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments apply tor the annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025

The Company is in the process of assessing whether any of its supplier related financing arrangements fall within the scope of these amendments and, if so, will provide the
required disclosures

* Amendments to Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Lack of Exchangeability)

These amendments require assessing cwrrency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable and also requires specific disclosures
viz. the nature and financial effects of the currency not being exchangeable, the spot exchange rates used, the estimation process, and the risks to which the entity is exposed
because of the currency not being exchangeable. The amendment also lays down transition requirements, while specifically stating that an entity shall not restate comparative
information in applying Lack of Exchangeability. These amendments are effective from April 1, 2025; however, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Company’s financial statements as the Company’s transactions are limited to currencies that are freely convertible and exchangeable, and management has assessed that no
significant restrictions apply to its operations.

* Amendments to Ind AS [2: International tax reform—Pillar Two model rules

The amendments to Ind AS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD’s BEPS Pillar Two rules and include a mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules and disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the
financial statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation

These amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company is not in scope of the Pillar Two model rules

This space is intentionally left blank
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwisc stated)

6 Right of use assets and Lease liabilities

Right-of-use asscis:

Description Buildings Plant and Total
machinery
Cost as at April 1,2023 19.31 8.20 27.51
Additions 927 - 9.27
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 28.58 8.20 36.78
Additions 34.34 - 3434
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2025 62.92 8.20 71.12
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 5.60 1.89 7.49
Depreciation for the year 7.93 1.90 9.83
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 13.53 3.79 17.32
Depreciation for the year 10.40 1.9 12.29
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 23.93 5.68 29.61
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 15.05 4.41 19.46
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 38.99 2.52 41.51
Lease liabilities:
(i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at the beginning 21.78 2227
Additions during the year 33.65 898
Accrual of interest 232 232
Interest paid on lease labilities (2.32) (2.32)
Payment of lease liabilities (12.22) 9.47)
Closing balance 43.21 21.78
Less: Current lease liabilities 15.10 11.52
Non-current lease liabilities 28,11 10,26

(ii) Payments recognised as expenses:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-term leases and Jlow value assets (refer Note 30) 157.32 105,23

Notes:
(i) Leases where Company is a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for buildings and Industrial property which has lease term between 3 to 6 years. The Company also has lease contracts for plant and

machinery, which has lease term of 6 years,

The Company also has certain leases of equipment, machinery and commercial space with lease term up to 12 months. The Company applies the recognition

exemptions relating to short-term leases.

(ii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis are disclosed in Note 37
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Privale Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

7 Intangible assets
Description Computer Software
Cost as at April 1, 2023 0.52
Additions 1.59
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 2.11
Additions 027
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2025 2.38
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2023 0.05
Amortisation for the year 022
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 0.27
Amortisation for the year 0.45
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2025 0.72
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1.84
1.66

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Note:
The Company has not revalued its intangible assets,
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate data and where otherwise stated)

8 Investments

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Non-current
Investment in Associate
In unquoted equity shares (fully paid up)
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - Equity shares 90,870 5.45 90,870 545
having face value of Rs.100 each

(i} Ardee Yantrik Private limited - Equity shates having face 20,000 0.20 - -
value of Rs. 10 each*

5.65 5.45

*The Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs 10 each amounting to Rs.0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Ardee Yantrik Private
Limited, incorporated on November 27, 2024 representing 40.00% of the total equity share capital

Current
Inv in ted 1 funds (carried at fair value
through profit nnd loss)

HDFC Short Term Debt-G 2,75,693.13 863 2,75,693.13 7.96

8.63 7.96

Notes: s
(a) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in equity shares 5.65 545
(b) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in mutual funds 8.63 7.96
(c) Change in fair value of the investments in mutual funds during the year 0.67 0.46

(d) Refer Note 36 for fair value measurements and Note 37 for information about the Company's exposure to financial risks.
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on investments subject to charge on secured borrowings.

9 Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Security deposits 1.44 097
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 123.75 2331
125.19 24.28
Current
Security deposits 3098 8.37
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with bank 6.10 10.73
Unbilled revenue 898.78 1,005.74
Other receivables 5.90 4.37
941,76 1,029.21

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in fayour of customers and suppliers.

10 Other assets

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Capital Advance 2.07 -
2.07 -
Current
Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received 127.54 100.25
Prepaid expenses - 973 2.46
Balance with government authorities 133.68 157.41
Share issue expenses* 65.00 -
335.95 260,12

*During the year ended Murch 31, 2025, the Company incurred expenses in cannection with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the
Company by way of fresh issue and an offer for sale by the existing shareholders. In relation to the PO expenses incurred till date, except for listing fees which
shall be solely borne by the Company, all other expenses will be shared between the Company and the Selling Shareholders on a pro-rata basis, in proportion to the
equity shates issued and allotted by the Company in the fiesh issue and the offered shaies sold by the selling shareholders in the offer for sale,

11 Inventories
As at March As at March
31,2025 31, 2024
All inventories excep for scrap are valued at the lower of cosi or nel realisable value and scrap is valued at net realisable value

Raw material* 1,043.19

Work-in-progress 90.38

Store and spares 28,40

50.31

1,212.28




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020P[.C141953)
Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(Allamounts aie Rs. in Million, except for share and per shate dala and wheie othenwise slated)

Trade receivables

As at March As at March 31,
31, 2025 2024
Non-Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 142 71 80.65
142.71 80.65
Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 2,216.06 1,477.98
- Credit impaired 182.33 141.15
2,398.39 1,619.13
Less: Allowance for ciedit impaited trade receivables (refer note g helow) (182.33) (141.15)
2,216.06 1,477.98

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from 1elated parties out of the above trade receivables (refer note 35)
(b) Tiade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 to 90 days fiom date of invoicing other than retention money which is due upon expiry of defect
liability period. The Company does not hold any collateral security.
(c) Trade receivables includes retention money aggregating to Rs. 238,57 Mn (March 31, 2024: Rs. 90.88 Mn).
(d) Refer Note 37 for information about the Company exposure to financial risks, and details of impairment losses for trade receivables and fair values
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on trade receivables subject to charge on secured borrowings

(f) No Trade receivables are due from directors or officets of the company

(g) Ageing of Trade receivables
As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Non-current  Current Outstanding for following periods from due date of Reccipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years

Undisputed trade receivables

- considered good 142.71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 4232 0.92 - 2,358.77

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - - 1.96 29.31 67.26 2877 55.03 182.33
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit tisk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired _ - - - . " . F
Subtotal 142.71 1,538.68 269.10 396.31 109.58 29.69 55.03 2,541.10
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivaliles - E (1.96) (2931) (67.26) (28.77) (55.03) (182.33)
Total 142,71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 42.32 0.92 - 2.358.77
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Non-current  Current (0] ling for following periods from due date of Receipts

but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables

— considered good 80,65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52,80 - 1,558.63

—which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - - - - - 141,15 - 141.15
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good = B - - - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -

— credit impaired - E = - - - = =
Subtotal 80.65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 193.95 - 1,699,78
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables - - - - - (141.15) - (141.15)
Total 80,65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52.80 - 1,558.63
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Cogineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(Ali amounts are Rs. in Million, except for shaie and per shaie data and where otherwise stated)

(h) Expected credit loss (ECL)

The Company’s exposure Lo credit 1isk is influenced mainly by the individual charactetistics of each customer. Credit 1isk is managed thiough credit approvals, establishing ciedit
limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company giants ciedit in the normal couise of business. Befote accepting any new customer, the
Company assesses the potential customer's credit quality

The movement in the allowance for credit loss:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 141,15 149,30

Less: Written off duing the year (4.37) (3221)
Add: Provision created during the year 45,55 24.06
Closing balance 182.33 141.15

(i) Of the trade receivables balance of Rs. 1,785.45 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs 896.12 Mn) is due fiom Company's lacgest customers individually
repiesenting more than 5% of total trade receivables balance.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Cash on hand 0.12 0.31
Balances with banks:
In cutrent accounts 142 0.77
1.54 1.08

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024

Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 166.71 24227
166.71 242.27

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantces and letter of ciedits provided in favour of customers and suppliers.
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where alhenwise staled)

15

Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024

7.,00,00, 000 equity shares of Rs S each* (March 31, 2024: 3.50.00.000 equily shares of Rs 10 each) 350 00 35000
4 00 00, 000 cqultv shares of Rs S each* (March 31, 2024: 2.00.00,000 equily shares of Rs. 10 each) 20000 200 00
200.00 200.00

(1) Shareholders vide the Extra-ordinary general meeling dated March 30, 2024 have approved increase in Authorised Equily Share Capital of the Company from Rs 200 00 Mn divided
into 20,000,000 Equily shares of Rs 10 each to Rs. 350.00 Mn divided inlo 3,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each by addition of 1,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, ranking pari-
passu with existing shares of the Company

(i) Sub-division of equity shares™

Pursuant to resolution passed by the Board of Directors on January 28, 2025 and resolution passed by the Shareholders on January 29, 2025, the company has made Sub-division of |
(one) equity share of nominal/face value of Rs. 10 into 2 (two) equily shares of nominal/face value of Rs. 5 each, fully paid-up we.f, January 31, 2025, Accordingly, the authorised
share capital of our Company was sub-divided fiom 3,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of T10 each to 7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs 5 each

Noles:
i) Reconciliation of Authorised equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,50,00,000 350.00 2,00,00,000 20000
Add: Increase in Authorised Share Capital (Refer note below) - - 1,50,00,000 150 00
Add: Sub-division of equity shares* 3,50,00,000 -
Balance at the end of the year 7,00,00,000 350.00 3.50.00,000 350.00
Note:

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars [For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Outstanding al the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 200 00 1,90,00,000 190.00
Add: Issuc during the year (Refer note below) - - 10,00,000 10.00
Add; Sub-division of equity shares* 2.00,00,000
Qutstanding at the end of the vear 4,00,00,000 200.00 2,00,00,000 200.00
Note:

During FY 2023-24 vide board resolution dated March 28, 2024, the Company has issued 10,00,000 Equity shares with a face value of Rs 10 each at issue price of Rs. 250 per equity
share with premium of Rs. 240 per share

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share (post split- Refer note above for details) . Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject (o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iv) Shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shares of the Company:

Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares# % holding  Nu. ol shures % holding
Mr Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90 00% 1,79,99,950 90.00%
Mr. Ragdeep Moturn 40,00,000 10 00% 20,00,000 10 00%

* % holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89.9998% are rounded off to 90 00%
#Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

v) Shareholding of promoters

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % change
No. of shares** % holding  No. of shares % holding during the
year
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90.00% 1,79,99,950 90.00% -
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 40,00,000 10.00%  20,00,000 10.00% -
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu# 20 0.00% - - 100 00%
Mr. Arundeep Moturis# 20 000% - - 100 00%

* % holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89 9998% are rounded off to 90.00%

# Shares are transferred during FY 2023-24 vide resolution March 28, 2024 to the respective shareholders as indicate above, however the shareholders are categorised in the capacity of
promoters vide board resolution dated September 17, 2024,

Refer note 17.1 for the details of promoters shares pledged

**Refer nole above on Sub-division of equity shares

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % change
during the
No. of shares % holding No of shares % holding year

1,79,99,950 90.00% 1,71,00,000 90.00% 0.00%
20,00,000 10.00% 16,000,000} 100, (0% -




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share dala and where otherwise stated)

16 Other equity

As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium [Refer Note (i) below] 240.00 240.00
Retained eamings [Refer Note (ii} below] 910.83 429.55
15.00 -

Debenture redemption reserve [Refer Note (iii) below]
Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan [Refior Note (iv) below] 253 2.15
Total other equity 1,168.36 671.70
Notes:
Movement in reserves and surplus For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 240.00 -
Add: Issue of equity shares (refer note 15) - 240.00
Balance at the end of the vear 240,00 240.00
(i) Retained earnings

429.55 13991

Balance at the beginning ol the year
Less: Transfer to Debenture redemption reserve (15.00) -

Add: Net profit for the year 496.28 289.64

Balance at the end of the vear 910.83 429.55

(iii) Debenture redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 15.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 15.00 -

(iv) Other comprehensive income (OCI)

R rement of defined benefit obligations (liability net of tax)

Balance at the beginning of the yeat 2.15 1.40

Add : Changes during the year 0.38 0.75
2,53 2.15

Balance at the end of the vear

Nature of reserves:

(a) Securities premium

Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the securities premium reserve is governed by the section 52
of the Act

(b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

(¢) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Represents the amount transferred to separate reserve on account of issue of Redeemable non-convertible debentures and should be utilised in accordance with the provisions of

the Act,

(d) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)

17 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non current (at amortised cost)

Secured

a. Term loans
(1) From banks 320.87 189.73
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 364.54 28.19

b. Vehicle and equipment loans
(i) From banks 133.51 101.53
(i1) From non-banking finaucial companies 25.69 32.96

¢. Business loan
From banks 18.71 18.69

d. Redeemable non-convertible debentures

From others 147.37 -
Unsecured
a. Term loans

(i) From non-banking financial companies 261.12 15.22

b. Working Capital - Business loans
(i) From banks ~ 6.55
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 45.67 36.89

¢. Loan from others

(i) Inter-corporate loan - 59.49
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (413.98) (117.54)
Total non current borrowings 903.50 371.71

Current (at amortised cost)

Secured

a. Loans repayable on demand from banks
(i) Working capital demand loans 205.57 213.31
(ii) Cash credit facilities 469.20 453.40

b. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 118.35 106.89
Unsecured
a. Working capital facility - Channel finance
(1) From non-banking financial companies 138.26 155.15
(ii) Through TReDs platform 868.83 431.19

b. Repayable on demand

(i) From related parties 11.82 1.40
(ii) From others 2.21 -
Add: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 413.98 117.54
Total current borrowings 2,228.22 1,478.88

Refer Note 36 for fair value measurements and Note 37 for information about the Company’s exposure to financial risks




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.1

Summary of borrowing terms:
The repayment terms and maturity terms of borrowings as stated below

Non currvent borrowings

MNumber of equal
Instalments

Maturity year

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Rate of interest
(%)
Secuved

a. Term loans
(i) From banks (Refer Note | below)

HDFC Bank Limited 9.00% 21 1o 69 months January 2025 to April 2027 2624 43.77
1CICI Bank Limited 10 00% 84-| 14 months October 2031 to October 2033 294 63 145.96
(ii) From non-banking financial
(Refer Note 2 below)
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11 00% 60 months August 2028 2138 2819
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 12 50% 72 months February 2031 343 16 .
(i) From banks
HDFC Bank Limited 855% to 1025% 12 to 39 months November 2023 to February 2028 62 05 67.57
Yes Bank Limited 9.09% 1o 11 12% 36 fo 46 months. May 2025 to February 2028 3424 3396
Axis Bank Limited 10.10% 35 months October 2027 to November 2027 3722 -
(it) From banking fi ial
Sundaram Finance Limited 1125%1t0 1248% 23 to 60 months December 2026 to July 2028 2569 2557
Toyota Financial Services Private 6 9%% 36 months December 2026 - 739
Yes Bank Limited 11.00% 37 months January 2028 1871 18.69
d. Redeemnble non-convertible debentures {Refer Note 10 below
RevX Capital 15.25% 12 months and 1 day March 2026 14737
Unsecured
i Term louns from NOFC
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 1125%to 11.80% 36 months May 2026 to July 2026 855 1522
IKF Finance Limited {Refer Note 2 below) 17 00% 36 months January 2028 25257 -
(i) From banks
Axis Bank Limited 16.00% 36 months February 2025 151
HDFC Bank Limited 15 00% 36 months March 2025 288
Unity Small finance Bank limited 17 50% 36 months March 2025 196
IDFC First Bank (Capital First Limited) ~ 9.25% 10 17 50% 36 to 48 months December 2022 to August 2024 020
(i) From banking (i inl
Oxyzo financial services Private Limiled 14 50% 18 months October 2023 to March 2026 4567 3266
Other NBFCs 11.25% to 19.00% 18 to 48 months December 2021 to March 2025 . 423
€ Loan fvom others: (Refer note § below)
Inter-corporate loan*(EIR- 9.5%) 600% * 36 months April 2025 to March 2027 59 49
(413,98) (117.54)
903.50 371.71
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Notes forming part of Standal Fi ial S

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share dala and where otherwise stated)

Current boriswings
Particulars As al March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Secured
A. Loans repayable on demand from banks
(i) Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) (Refer Note | below)

WCDL from HDFC Bank Limited 20557 2133]
(i) Cash Credit (Refer Note 1 and 4 below)

HDFC Bank Limited 99 39 116 34

[CICI Bank Limited 5658 wn

State Bank of India 31323 29929

I Working capital - Channel Finanee {Refer Note S below

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11835 106 89
Unsecured
a. Working capital - Channel Finance- (Refer Note 6 below)
(i) From banking fi ial i
Aditya Birla Capital Limiled 2833 54 97
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited 109 93 10018
(ii) Through TreDs platform
Receivables Exchange of India Limited 65398 29336
A TREDS Limited 21485 13783

b. Repayable on demand

From related parties- (Refer note7 below) 11.82 1.40

From others - (Refer note 8 below) 221 +
Add: Current maturities of lang-term butriwings 413.98 11754
Total 2,228.22 1,478.88

. Py
<
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Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standal. Fi ial S t
(All amounts are Rs_in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)
Notes:

L. Term Loan/Working Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit

(i) Term LoawWaorking Capital Demand Loaw/Cash Credit from HDFC Bank Limited
(a) Primary Security: Current Assets (Stock, Book Debtors), Plant & Machinery, Fixed deposit for Lelter of credit, Bank guarantee, personal guarantee from directors and relative of
directors
(b) Collateral Security: One Immovable property owned by relative of director and additiona! three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with ICICI Bank Limited
owned by Directors of the Company
(c) Working capital demand loan and cash credit carry interest rate of 9.35% p a each and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging uplo 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the company

(ii) Term Loan/Cash Credit from ICICI Bank Limited
(a) Exclusive charge on movable fixed assets, Company's immovable property localed at Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh, India and first paripassu on current assets and
(b) Collateral Security: Three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with HDFC Bank Limited owned by Directors of the Company
(c) Cash credit facility carry interest at repo rate 6.50% plus spread of 3 25% p a and repayable on demand and the lenure ranging uplo 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the company

2, Term loan from NBFC- (Secured)
(i) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property siluated at IDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana
(ii) Aditya Birla Capital Finance Limited Loan
(a) Primary Security: Mortagage of Land and building to be constructed on the land located in Seetharampur, Hyderabad
Exclusive charge created by way of hypothecation on moveable fixed assets of the company Current Assels hypotheciated as second pari passu charge
(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company
(¢) Equity Shares of promoler Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu are pledged for the loan facility

Unsecured Term loan from NBFC

(iii) JKF Finance Limited: Loan is secured under the collateral of the following;
(a) Three properties owned by relative of directors of the company

{b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

3. Vehicle and Equipment loan from Bank and NBI'C (Secured):
Security provided for the vehicle and equipment loans are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation on the assets purchased

from loan proceeds

4. Credit facility from SBI Bank (Secured)
(i) First paripassu charge on stock and receivables
(ii) Collateral security on equitable mortgage of industrial land with sheds constructed (hereon at Pashamylaram, Sangareddy
(iii) Interest rate of 10,14% p a and repayable on demad and the lenure ranging upto 365 days
(iv) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company.

5. Working Capital/Channel Finance (Secured):

(1) Primary charge on stocks and receivables funded out of Tata Capital Financial Services Limited Collateral - Security on liquid funds i.e. mutual funds
(ii) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situaled at IDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(iii) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

6. Facility through TreDs platform / other NBFCs:
Interest ranging from 9 50% pato 14 50% p a, with a credit period ranging from 45 to 120 days

7. Loan from related parties
Interest free loan from related parties are repayable on demand

8. Inter Corporate loan
Inter Corporate loan are obtained at the rate of interest of 6 00% per annum for a period extending upto 3 years and repayable along with inlerest. Interest is repayable as and when

demanded by the lender

9. Nou-fund facilitics from HDFC Bank Limited/IC1CI Bank Limited/State Bank of India
(i) The tenure of bank guaraniees typically ranges from 3 months to 36 months, while the maximum tenor for letter of credit upto 180 days
(ii) Commissions on bank typically ranges from 0.75% p a to 2 75% p a, while commissions for letters of credit ranges from 0 70% p a to 1 40% p.a

10. Non convertible redeemable deben(ures
The tenure of the Debenture are 12 months and 1 days from the date of disbursement i e , March 01, 2026 and carry fixed rate of interest al 15.25% pa

The debentures are secured as follows:

(i) Total Security 1 10- times debentures Subscription Amount,

(ii) Secondary ranking, charge on all existing and future cashflows of the issuer, existing and future fixed and current assels, other assets, including but not limited
to inventory (if any), receivables, rental deposits, i ible assets including brand and intell | property, uncalled share capital etc of the company.

(iii) Personal gi provided by di of the pany. '

11, Business loan- Equipment refinance
Security provided for the business loans obtained through refinance of equipments are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive

charge through hypothecation on the assets

12 The Company has not defaulted on working capital loan or any other loan payables,

13, Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such borrowings were taken

14. Detnils of borrdwings punrantecd by Directors and others:

As at March 31, 2025 As at Murch 31, 2024

Particulars
Directors 1,312.94 721.08
Directors and Relative of Directors GE244 440 8]

—
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.2  Reconciliation of movements of liabilitics to cash flows arising from financing activitics

Borrowings Lease liabilities

Particulars

Non-current Current Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2023 154.81 878.11 12.95 9.32 1,055.19
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - 947 (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 403.51 - - - 403.51
Repayment of long term borrowings (71.26) - - (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 479.72 - - 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (31.21) (105 45) “ (136.66)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (117.54) 117.54 (11.67) 11.67 -
New leases - - 8.98 = 8.98
Interest expense during the year 33.40 108.96 - 2.32 144.68
As at March 31, 2024 37171 1,478.88 10.26 11.52 1,872.37
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - (12.22) (12.22)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 - - - 1,070.21
Repayment of long term borrowings (124.44) (117.54) - - (241.98)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 452.90 - - 452.90
Interest paid on borrowings (78.78) (176.15) - - (254.93)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (413.98) 41398 (15.80) 15.80 -
New leases - - 33.65 . 33.65
Interest expense during the year 78.78 176.15 - 232 257.25
As at March 31, 2025 903.50 2,228.22 28.11 15.10 3,174.93
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLL141953)

Notes forming part of Standal Financial Stat l

(All'amounts are Rs_in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where olherwise slated)

18 Trinde payaliles

As at March 31, 2025

As al March 31,

2024
Trade payables
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises (MSME}* 25824 1,028 37
- Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896 83 670.00
Total trade pavables 2.155,07 1.698.37
Notes:
Amounts due to related parlies out of the above trade payable (refer nole 35)
Refer Note 37 for information about the Conipany’s exposure (o financial risks
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 0 to 90 days
*Includes Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs amounting 1o Rs. 1.03 Mn for the FY 2024-25 (FY 2023-24: NIL)
18.1 Trade payables ageing schedule
Murel 31, 2025
Particulars Payables Not Due Outstanding for fulluwing peviods from due date of Payment
Less than 1 yenr 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME 20077 57.44 003 258 24
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 1,330.36 528,52 28 65 845 0.85 1,896 83
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - = 5 -
Total 1,531.13 585.96 28.68 8.45 0.85 2,155.07
March 31, 2024
Particulirs Piyables Not Due Ouistanding for full inds from due dote of Payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 3 Muore thun 3 yeurs Total
(i) MSME 976.46 519 B = 1,028 37
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii} Others 494,25 1213 3949 2336 077 670 00
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1.470.71 164.04 39.49 23.36 0.77 1,698.37

18.2 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006: The following are amounts due to micro and small enterprises as defined in the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006' has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company The disclosures

is as follows
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,
2024
(1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year* 25721 1,028 37
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of year 103 -
(iti) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year - -
(iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) - -
(v) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
(vi) Interest due and payable to supptiers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - =
103 -

(vit) Interest acerved and remmnimg unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act (ii}+{vi)

* includes payables not due
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(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Privale Limited)
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Notes forming part of Standalonc Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

19 Other financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Current

Employee dues (refer Note 35) 2743 21.56
Retention money 004 56.42
Payables on purchase of property. plant and equipment 0.66 =

28.13 77.98

20 Other current liabilities

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payable 13.66 20.76
Advance from customers 32002 5914
Liability towards Corporate social responsibility (refer Note 32) 1.86 -
335.54 79.90
21 Provisions

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non-current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 33)

Provision for gratuity 17.30 13.03
17.30 13.03
Current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 33)
Provision for gratuity 241 1.91
2.41 1.91
22 Income tax (assets) / liabilities, net
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Provision for taxes 179.81 108.64
Less: Advance tax / TDS (net of refund) (158,11) (103.67)
21.70 4.97

Refer Note 31 for tax expense details.
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23

23.1

23.2

24

25

26

Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers 7,767.20 6,205.07
Other operating revenue
Scrap sale 2183 4.83
7,789.03 6,209.90

Disaggregated revenue information
In the following table, revenue fiom contracts with customers is disaggtegated by primary geographical market, major 1evenue stieams
recognition

and timing of tevenue

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Primary geographical market
In India 7,789.03 6,209,90
Outside India - -
7.789.03 6.209.90
Major revenue streams
Pre-engineered building 3,948.16 3,111.75
Material handling systems 2,414,717 1,221.21
Engineering Services 1,404.27 1,872.11
Other 21.83 4.83
7,789,03 6,209,90)
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 21.83 4.83
Over time 7.767.20 6.,205.07
7.789.03 6,209.90

Information about major customers (from external customers)

For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has derived revenue from 3 customers totalling to Rs. 3,822.88 Mn (For the year ended March 31, 2024- 3

customers totalling to Rs. 3,370.57 Mn) contributing individually 10% or more of the total revenue

Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (refer Note 12) 2,358.77 1,558.63
Contract assets (refer Note 9) 898.78 1,005.74
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20) 320.02 59.14
Other income For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income earned on financial assets
- Bank deposits 19.17 897
- Other interest income 0.18 0.12
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL 0.67 0.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 17.79 8.92
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.24 -
Miscellaneous income 0.06 -
38.11 18.47
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 329.21 102.87
Add: Purchases 5,600,39 4,306 82
Less: Inventory at the end ol the vear (1,043.19) [329.21)
4.886.41 4.080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 330.45 335.52
Scrap 1.92 177
Inventories at the ending of the year
Work-in-progress (90.38) (330.45)
Serap (50.31)

Net decrease/ (inerease) == o 191,68
0 ey




Ardee Engineering Limited
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Notes forming part of Standal Financial Stat t:
(All amounts are Rs_ in Million, except for sharc and per shate data and wheie otherwise stated)

27

28

29

30

30.1

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 309.60 232.56
Contribution Lo provident and other funds (tefer Note 33) 16.06 12.65
Gratuity (refer Note 33) 7.12 527
Staff welfare expenses 1950 22.08

352.28 272.56

Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest expense on

Bomowings measured at amortised cost 25493 144,13
Lease liabilities 232 232
Income tax 2.55 3.07
Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49
271,96 156,01

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (1efer Note 5) 47.80 25,80
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (1efer Note 6) 12.29 9.83
Amortisation of intanpible assets (refer Note 7) 045 022
60.54 35.85

Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Job work, installation and erection charges 558,62 54691
Labour charges 269.67 295.84
Freight charges 108.76 120.16
Rent 15732 105.23
Loading and unloading Charges 2.83 4,03
Material testing charges 10.83 217
Sand blasting charges 9.36 11.27
Site civil works 45.27 29.27
Security charges 11.39 7,18
Stores and spares consumption 1.94 508
Power and fuel 66.06 2493
Transportation charges 532 6.70
Repair and maintenance 20.80 19.75
Legal and professional charges 7.80 870
Travelling and conveyance expenses 8.93 7.24
Bank charges 1.37 552
Auditor's remuneration (Refer below) 3.85 385
Rates and taxes 16.75 1092
Expenditure for corporate social responsibility (Refer note 32) 4.56 2,18
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 4555 24,07
Advances impaired written off 19.16 -
Miscellaneous expenses 22,14 24,33
1,398.28 1,265.33
Auditor's remuneration For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory audit 275 275
Tax audit 0.10 0.10
Other services* 13.74 1.00
16.59 3.85

Note: Amount given above excluding Goods and Setvice tax.

* for the year ended March 31, 2025 included in Share issue expenses receivable under note 10
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31 Fax expense
(A) Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Current tax:

Cunent tax for the year 179.68 101,20
Adjustment of income tax telating to ealier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax for the yeai (9.97) 6,26
Income tax expense recognised in the of profit or loss 169.71 123.58
(B) Income tax expense charged to other cinnprehensive income (OCI):
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax impact on re-measurement of defined benefit plans (0.13) (0.25)
Income tax charged to OCI (0.13) (0.25)
() Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 665,99 413.22
Tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 2517%
Estimated tax expense on profit 167.62 104,00
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier yeats (net) - 16.12
Tax effect of expenditure disallowed under income tax 328 3.08
Others (1.19) 0.38
Income tax expense 169.71 123.58
D) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from Mareh 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025:
Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in As at
March 31, 2024 the Statement of oCl1 March 31, 2025
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.41) (6.18) - (16.59)
Right-of-use assets (4.90) (5.55) - (10.45)
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 35.52 10.37 - 4589
Provision for employee benefits 3.76 1.20 - 4.96
Lease liabilities 5.48 553 (0.13) 10,88
Others (0.56) 4.60 - 4.04
Deferred tax assets (net) 28.89 9.97 {0.13) 38.73
Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024:
As at

Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in

April 1, 2023 the Statement of ocCl March 31, 2024
Profit and Loss

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4 84) (5.58) - (10.41)
Right-of-use assets (5.04) 0.14 - (4.90)
Provision for credit inpaired trade receivables 37.58 (2.06) - 35.52
Provision for employee benefits 292 1.09 (0.25) 3,76
Lease liabilities 5,60 (0,12) - 5.48
Others (0.81) 025 - (0.56)
Deferred tax assets (net) 35.41 (6.26) (0.25) 28.89
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As per Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability thieshold, needs to spend al least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately
preceding thiee financial yeats on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The focus meas of' Company's CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition,
promoting education, measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups and PM relief fund. The CSR activitics of the Company ate in
line with the specified in Schedute VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

32

Particulars As at March 31, 2025|  As at March 31, 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 4.56 218
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset
-In cash - -
-Yet to be paid in cash - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
-In cash 270 231
-Yet to be paid in cash 1.86 -
(c) Details of spent/unspent obligations
(i) Contribution to chatitable trust or PM relief fund 2.70 281
(ii) Unspent amount in relation to;
-Ongoing project 1.51 -
-Other than ongoing project 0.35 -

For the FY 2024-25
In case of Scction 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ongoing projeet)

Amount of shortfall as
at March 31, 2025

With Company*

Amount spent during the year

Amount of shortfall as at April 01, 2024 Amount required to be

spent during the year

Froin Company’s bank from separate CSR

account unspent account
1.51 - - 1.51
*The Company has deposited the above shortfall of CSR expenditute amounting to Rs. 1.51 Mn to a separate account called "Unspent CSR account" dated April 29, 2025
to be spent as per the provisions of the Act

With Company |In separate CSR unspent account

In case of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Other than ongoing project)

Opening balance as | Amount deposited In specified | Amount required to be | Amount spent during the Closing balance as at Remarks
at April 01, 2024 fund of schedule VIT withing 6 spent during the year year March 31, 2025
= - 3.05 2.70 0.35 | The Closing balance as
at  Maich 31, 2025
amounting to Rs, 0,35 is
deposited in PM CARES
Fund on Aupust 11. 2025,
For the FY 2023-24
Details of ongoing and other than ongoing project
In ense of Section 135(5) of the ies Act, 2013 (Ongoing project)
Amount of shortfall as at April 01, 2023 Amount required to be Amount spent during the year Amount of shortfall as
spent during the year at March 31, 2024
With Company |In separate CSR unspent account From Company’s bank from separate CSR With Company
account unspent aceount
In case of Seetion 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Other than ongoing project)
Opening balance as | Amount deposited In specified | Amount required to be | Amount spent during the Closing balance as at Remarks
at April 01, 2023 fund of schedule V11 withing 6 spent during the year year March 31, 2024
months
0.13 0.13 2.18 2.18 -
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33
3.1

33.2

(b)

(0

@)

(e)

Employee benefit obligations

Post retirement benefit - Defined contribution

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and
employee state insurance which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The Company has recognised as an expense aggregating lor the year ending March 31,2025: Rs 16.06
Mn; (March 31, 2024: Rs 12.65 Mn) in respect of the defined contribution plans

Post-cmployment benefit - Defined benefit
Gratuity (unfunded)

Particulars Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity plan
Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2025 17.30 2.41 19.71

As at March 31, 2024 13.03 1.91 14.94
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan s a final salary plan for India employees, which requires contributions
to be made to a separately administered fund, The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Under this Act, employee who has completed
five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The plan
was unfunded

The plans are exposed to a number of risks, including:

- Interest rate risk: decreases/increases in the Discount rate used will Increase/decrease the defined benefit obligation

- Attrition risk: Changes in the estimation of mortality rates of Current and former employees

- Salary risk: increases in future salaries Increase the gross defined benefit obligation.

Gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2025- Rs. 7.12 Mn (March 31, 2024- Rs. 5.27 Mn) has been included in Note 27 under employee benefits expense. The

Company's gratuity plan is unfunded.

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit i.e. Gratutity plans are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 6.11 4.44
Interest cost 1.01 0.83
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 7.12 527
Remecasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (2.29) 0.53
Changes in financial assumptions 335 0.40
Experience adjustments (1.57) (1.93)
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in other comprehensice income (0.51) (1.00)
Balance as at the end of the year 6.61 4.27
Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14.94 11.60
Current service cost 6.11 4,44
Interest cost 1,01 0.83
Included in profit and loss (refer note 27) 7.12 5.27
Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (2.29) 0.53
Changes in financial assumptions 335 0.40
Experience adjustments (1.57) (1.93)
Included in OCI (0.51) (1.00)
Benefits paid (1.83) (0.93)
Other movements (1.83) (0.93)
Balance as at the end of the year 19.71 14.94

Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of the defined benefit obligations include:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.02% 7.24%
Future salary growth 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 6,00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Mortality rates

%\
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Maturity analysis
The expected malturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 2.47 1.96
2 to 5 years 5.52 3.51
6 to 10 years 8.76 608
> 10 years 26.93 27.28
Total 43.68 38.83

Sensitivity analysis

The impact to the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial assumption, holding all other assumption constant, is
presented in the table below. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet

Defined benefit nhligation

Actuarial assumptions Discount rate Future salary growth
Reasonably possible change (+1%) (- 1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1811 21.58 2153 18.08
As at March 31, 2024 13.55 16 .57 16.56 13.52
Actuarial assumptions Attrition rate Future mortality rates
Reasonably possible change (+1%) (- 1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 19.27 20.19 19.70 19.72
As at March 31, 2024 14.75 1513 14.93 14.93

LEarnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per equity share computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax 49628 289.64
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,00,00,000 3,80,21,918
Face value per share (Rs.) 5.00 5.00
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share 12.41 7.62
Notes:

1. Pursuant to sub-division of equity shares [Refer note 15 for details] the Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share presented are calculated reflecting such
changes in the number of shares after considering the effect of sub-divison on the outstanding numbers of equity shares for the current and previous years.

2. No potential equity shares are outstanding as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and there are no items giving rise to dilutive equity shares. Hence basic
EPS is considered as diluted EPS
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35 Related party transactions

Names of related partics and description of relationship as identified by the Company:
A Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
i) Associate Ardee Yantrik Private Limited (w e { Mavember 27, 2024)
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (w.e.f June 15, 2023)

ii} Ditectors/ Key Managerial Personnel Chandra Sekhar Moturu, Chainman and Managing Director
Ragdeep Moturu, Whole-time Directot
Sundararama Sarma Goirepati, Executive Director
Arnundeep Moturu, Executive Director (Appointed w.e.f. August 25, 2024)
Krishna Kumari Moturu, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f.
August 25, 2024)
Ravikanth Mallina, Independent Director (Appointed w e f August 12, 2024)
Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili, Independent Ditector (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Ravinder Komaragiti , Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Srinivas Aravapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Anjaneyulu Krothapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f September 17, 2024)
Sneha Sunkaia, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f January 27, 2025)
Disha Jindal, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. June 05, 2024) also appointed as
Compliance officer w.e.f. October 23, 2024)

i) Entities in which Ditectors and Key Management Personnel
(“KMP”) have a significant influence / control with whom Company
have made transactions during the reporting period/years
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited)
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited
Arun Kapital Networks
Arun Computers
Arun Infotech
M/s ARCS
Arovan Logistics
ACS Engineering Solutions
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Relative of Directors of Company Krishna Kumari Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
Arundeep Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)

B Transactions during the year with related parties

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Purchase of Goods

Ardec Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 46,73 81,83
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 15.80 14,57
Arun Kapital Networks 3.70 379.58
Ingwenyn Mineral Tech Private Limited 138.62 -
M/s ARCS - 0.04
ACS Engineering Solutions . 13,88
Purchase of property, plant & equiy tand I ible assets

Arun Computers 0.19 0.56
Arun Infotech 032 -
Arun Kapital Networks 0.96 -
Revenue from Contracts
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 3144 12,00
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 80.57 40,07
Arun Kapital Networks - 11.34
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 31.78
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 6,17 -
Rent expense

M{s ARCS 347 3.29
Interest Expense
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 2.10 .
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Particulars

For the year ended|

For the year ended

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Other expenses
Arun Computers 034 1.32
Arun Kapital Networks 9.51 -
M/is ARCS 6.56 3.94
Arovan Logistics 19.41 25,57
Arun Infotech 1.04 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 3.80 -
Proceeds from Borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 4150 143.30
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.57 59.05
Corporate Guarantee Given
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 52.50 -
Repayments of borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 30.29 246.22
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 396 72.35
Retention Money Paid
Arun Kapital Networks 56.42 -
Advances from Customers

= 329
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Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advance to suppliers

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 092 v
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50
Advance taken

Awtin Kapital Networks 56.00 =
Advance repaid

Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 -
Staff Advance Given

Mr Arundeep Moturu 240 1.86
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.15
Expenses reimbursed

M. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 077 -
Staff Advance repaid

M. Arundeep Moturu 7.47 -
Investment in Associates

Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 020 -
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 5.45
Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securties premium

Kir. Chandia Sekhar Moturu - 22500
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu - 25.00
Inter corporate deposits taken

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 50.74 -
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 130.00 =
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 100.00 -
Inter corporate deposits repaid

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 50.74 -
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 130.00 -
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited 100,00 -
Reimbursement of expenses

Arovan Logistics 0,86
ACS Engineering Solutions 0.20 -
Mr. Chandia Sekhar Moturu 075 -
My Ragdeep Moturu 0.60 -
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0,65 =
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.08 .
Employee benefits expense

Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.95 2.40
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.95 2.40
Munngerial Remuneration (Refer note iii below)
M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 3.98 330
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.80 4.80
Mr, Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 372 2.99
Mrs, Krishna Kumari Moturu 145 -
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 145 -
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.91 -
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C Amount due to/from related parties :

Name of the related party As at As at
Murch 31, 2025 Maveh 31, 2024

Trude Payables

Axilee Drives Private Limited (formetly Balaji Drives Private Limited) - 115,07

Arun Computers 1.45 1.23

Arun Kapital Networks 2.65

Rotee Transmissions Private Limited 3.02 -

Inywenyu Mineral Tech Private Limited 4.05 -

Mfs ARCS 221 2.60

ACS Engineering Solutions 874 1141

Arovan Logistics 1.60 2.86

Investment in Associates

Ingwenya Mineial Tech Private Limited 5.45 545

Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 0.20 -

Trade Receivables

Ariee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 3.78 -

Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 2497 3169

Armun Kapital Networks - 3128

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 14.43

Blite Ocean Biotech Private Limited 023 -

Barrowings-lUnsecured loan

M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 11.26 0,74

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 0.56 0.66

Managerial Remuneration Payable

M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 068 -

Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 0.71 -

M. Sundararama Sarma Gonepati 0.22 -

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.16 -

Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.16 -

Ms. Disha Jindal 0.09 -

Retention Money Payable

Arun Kapital Networks - 56.42

Advances received from customer

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) - 3.29

Advance to suppliers

Arilee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Private Limited) 0.92 -

Arun Infotech - 1.61

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50

Reimbursement of expenses payable

Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 -

Ms. Disha Jindal 0.00 -

Staff Advance

Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.05 512

Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.77

Share Issue Expenses Receivable

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 8.97 -

Corporate Guarantee Given

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerdy Balaji Drives Private Limited) 52.50 -

Notes :

t. Personal guarantees were provided by Chandra Sekhar Moturu and Ragdeep Moturu towards borrowings facilities availed by the Company, where applicable. (refer

Note 17.1)

ii. All the related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arm length basis
iii. Liability for gratutity on actuarial valuation basis are provided for the Company as a whole. Accordingly, amount pertaining to key managerial personnel are not
included.
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36
36.1

Fair value measurements

The carrving amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories were as follows:

Particulars Notes FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
As al March 31, 2025

Financial assets

Investments* 8 863 5.65
Trade receivables 12 2,358.77
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 166.71
Other financial assets 9 - 1.066 .95
Total financial assets 8.63 3,599.62
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 3,131.72
Trade payables 18 - 2,15507
Other financial liabilities 19 - 28.13
Total financial liabilities - 5,314.92
*Investments in associate are valued at cost

As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Investments* 8 796 5.45
Trade receivables 12 - 1,558.63
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 24227
Other financial assets 9 . 1,053.49
Total financial assets 7.96 2,860.92
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 1,850.59
Trade payables 18 - 1,698.37
Other financial liabilities 19 - 77.98
Total financial liabilities - 3,626.94

*Investments in associate are valued at cost
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36.2

36.3

(a)

®)

©

(d)

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels ol a fair value hierarchy. The (hree
levels are delined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from markel data)

Particulars

Notes Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial asscts measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Securily deposits

3242

3242

Total financial assets

8.63

32.42

41.05

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

3,131.72

3,131.72

Total financial liabilities

3,131.72

3,131.72

As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

9.34

7.96

9.34

Total financial assets

7.96

9.34

17.30

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

1,850.59

1,850.59

Total financial liabilities

1,850.59

1,850.59

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current year and previous year,

Methods and assumptions

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates, The own non performance risk as at

year end was assessed to be insignificant. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs

The fair value of security deposits were calculated based on future cash flows using a current lending rate, These are based on discounted cash flow analysis, They
are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV, These instruments are classified as level 1 fair values in the fair value hierarchy.

RIS
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37 Financial risk manag nt

37.1  General objectives, policies and processes
The Company is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks: (i) Credit risk; (i) Market risk comprising ol interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price isk; and
(iii) Liquidity risk
In common with all other businesses, the Company is exposed to risks that arise fiom its usc of financial instruments, This note desctibes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughoul these consolidated financial statements
There have been no substantive changes in the Company's exposuie to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure
them fiom previous year unless otherwise stated in this note
The Board has the oveall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate 1esponsibility for them, it has delegated
the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Company's finance function
The overall objective of the Boaid is to set policies that seek to reduce 1isk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Company's competitiveness and flexibility. Further details 1egarding
these policies are set out below

372 Credit risk
Cuedit risk is the tisk of financial loss o the Company if a customer or countetparty to a financial instiument fails to meel its contractual obligations, Credit risk arises principally from the
Company’s trade receivables, securily deposits, bank balances and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit 1isk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The
Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts of financial asscts as per Note 36
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, other bank balances and security deposits were past due or impaired as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company’s exposure to ciedit 1isk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit
risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which customers operate. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by establishing a maximum payment period,
The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and Company makes appropriate provision whetever outstanding is for longer petiod and involves
higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The maximuin exposute to credit risk at the 1eporting date
is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Nole 10 and 13. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The lettecs of credit and other fornms of credit insurance are
considered integral part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment. The Company evaluates the concentration of 1isk with respect to trade receivables and contract
assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets,
The movement in provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables are as follows:
Particulars Amouni
Loss allowance as at April 1, 2023 149.30
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year 24.06
Less: Utilised during the year (32.21)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 141.15
Increase in loss allowance recopnised in profit or loss during the year 45,55
Less: Utilised during the year 4.37)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2025 182.33

37.3  Market risk
Market risk arises from the Company's use of interest-bearing, tradable and foreign currency financial instruments. 1t is the visk that the fair value or futwe cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in inteest rates (intetest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk). The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to
the isk of changes in market intetest rate relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with vatiable intetest 1ates

(i) Exposure to inferest rate risk

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Borrowings with variable rate of interest 1,970,32 1,549.52
Borrowings with fixed rate of interest 1,161.40 299.67

(ii) Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of variable interest-bearing borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the

Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on such floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/
Particulars decrease in basis Balance Effection profif
. before tax
points
March 31, 2025 +100/-100 1,970.32 19.70
March 31, 2024 +100/-100 1,549.52 15.50
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(b) Foreign exchange risk
The Company has no foreign curency teceivables o1 payables as on March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 and therefore foreign exchange risk is not applicable
37.4  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset
The Company's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

a) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following table sets out the contiactual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-

flows) of financial liabilities:

Contractual cash flows

As at March 31, 2025 Note Carrying Upto3d Between 3 Between | Between 2
amount Total Over 5 years
Maonths amd 12 il and 2 years anil 5 years :
Lease liabilities 6 4321 52,35 5.04 14.54 14,23 18.54 -
Borowings 17 3,131.72 3,13925 2,022,50 204.47 261,49 457.82 192,97
Trade payables 18 2,155.07 2,155.07 1,531.13 623.94 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 28.13 2813 2743 0.70 - - -
Total 5,358.13 5,374.80 3,586.10 843.65 275.72 476.36 192.97
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at March 31, 2024 Note YT Total Uptd Between 3 Between | Between 2 Over Syeiis
Manths and 12 th and 2 years anid 5 years
Lease liabilities 6 21.78 24.50 3.21 8.31 9.49 3.49 -
Borrowings 17 1,850.59 1,856.76 746.25 736.47 9827 197.67 78.10
Trade payables 18 1,698.37 1,698.37 1,171 85 526.52 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 77.98 77.98 21.56 56.42 - - -
Total 3,648.72 3.657.61 1,942.87 1,327.72 107.76 201,16 78.10

The interest payments on variable interest 1ate borrowings in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the teporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates
change. The future cash flows on contingent consideration may be different from the amount in the above table as the relevant conditions underlying the contingency change. Except for these
financial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts
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(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where olherwise stated)

39

40

41
41.1

42

43

44

(ii)

Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities fiom which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operaling tesults are repulatly
reviewed by the Company’s chief operating dccision maker (CODM) (o make decisions for which discrete consolidated financial statements is available. The Company is a design,
enginceting and manulacturing Company which is engaged in turnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural
and precision engineering solutions. The CODM identified entire business as a singlc reportable segment, hence segment reporting is not applicable

Capital management

The Company's objectives when maintaining capital are:

(a) to safeguard the entity's abilily Lo continue as a going concem, so that it can conlinue to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk

The Company sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain ot adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shateholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equily ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated as the total borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratios were as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings and lease liabilities 3,174.93 1,872.37

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (292,00) (206.66)

Net debt 2,882.93 1,605.71

Equity share capital 200.00 200.00

Other equity 1,168.36 671.70

Total cquity 1,368.36 871.70

Nef debt to equity ratio (fimes) 2.11 1.84

No changes were ade in the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years

Contingent liabilitics and commitments

Contingent liabilities

(a) There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Corporate pruarantee given to related party { Refer note 35) 52.50 -

52.50 -

Total

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related assets are recognised.
Commitments - There are Capital commitments amounting to Rs. 8.00 Mn as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024- NIL)

Audit Trail

The Company has used an accounting software for matntaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all the transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of the
preceding year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the accounting software

Subsequent events
Pursuant to approval of Board and and Shareholders vide meetings dated July 4, 2025 and July 9, 2025 respectively, the company has issued 410,000 equity Shares on preferential basis

at the issue price of Rs. 425/- per equity share having Face value of Rs. 5/- per equity share (i.e. including Securities Premium at Rs. 420/- per equity share),

The management has assessed the subsequent events to the reporting period and is of the view that there are no material events which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statements except as disclosed in financial statements

Other regulatory information

Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made
thereunder.

Borrowings secured against current assefs
The Company has borrowings secured against current assets and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts,
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(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Privale Limired)
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for shaie and per share data and where otherwise stated)

(iii)

@iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

45

46

47

Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company does not have any relationship with companies struck off undet Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act. 1956

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Undisclosed income
The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendeted or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the

Income-tax Act, 1961

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period or previous years.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in the current or previous financial

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary

shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassificd wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classification/disclosures

These Standlaone Financial Statements were approved for Issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on August 29, 2025

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0045993 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0015955/S000168

s v Bl

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain Chandra Sekhar Moturu Ragdeep Moturu
Partner Partner Chairman and Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No, 029098 Membership No. 231741 DIN 02010969 DIN 07587747

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025

Y acan Ditha Jiudad

Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal

Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

DIN 10376709 Membership No. A65058
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C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Owners Pride Plot No 1717 1101/B, Manjeera Trinity Corporate,

Road No. 12, Banjara Hills, JNTU-Hitech City Road, Kukatpally,

Hyderabad - 500 034. Hyderabad- 500 072.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private
Limited]
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited
[Formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] (hereinafter referred to as the “the
Company”) and its associates, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2025,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of
the Company and its associates as at March 31, 2025, and of consolidated profit including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and its associates in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India
(“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and on
consideration of audit reports of other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) & (b) of the “Other
Matter” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Director’s report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Chartered Accountants [formerly known as M S K C & Associates]
Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company including its associates in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Company and of its
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of its associates for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board
of Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of
Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company
and of its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matter:

a) The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of net profit (including
other comprehensive income) of Rs. 6.61 million for the year ended March 31, 2025, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose
financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the
report of the other auditor.
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b) The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of net loss (including
other comprehensive income) of Rs (0.03) million for the period November 27, 2024, to March
31, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate,
whose financial statements have not been audited by M S K C & Associates LLP. These
financial statements have been audited by one of the joint auditor M/s. C. Venkat Krishna &
Co., whose report have been furnished to M/s M S K C & Associates LLP, by the Management
and M S K C & Associates LLP opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this associate, and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
associate, is based solely on the report of the other joint auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the associates referred
to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company
as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its associate companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the company, its associate companies incorporated in India are
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Company and its associates.

ii. The Company and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
teem-tontracts including derivative contracts.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company, and its associate companies
incorporated in India.

iv.

(1) The respective Managements of the Company and its associates which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such associates
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this
audit report, that such parties shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such associates (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The respective Managements of the Company and its associates which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been

entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company or
any of such associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(3) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the
auditors of the associates which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the company
in this regard nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused
us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material

mis-statement.

V. The Company and its associate Companies which are incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have neither declared nor
paid any dividend during the year,

vi. A. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year, has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled
and recorded in the prior year as explained in Note 41 to the financial statements.

B. In respect of one associate, on consideration of the auditor’s report issued by the
other auditor, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining their
books of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording
i it{edit log) facility, and the same has been enabled and operated throughout

/& relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Further,
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as reported by the other auditors there are no instances of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

C. In respect of one associate, on consideration of the auditor’s report issued by the
one of the joint auditor, the company has not used any accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the period November 27, 2024, to March 31, 2025
[refer note 41 to the financial statements]. Hence, reporting under the Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021 read with sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the associate company.

2. In our opinion, according to information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company, to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section
197 of the Act and the rules thereunder, except in case of two associates, as the provision
of the aforesaid section is not applicable to private companies. '

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of
Qualifications/adverse remarks made by us for the Company and on consideration of
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 (CARO) reports issued by the respective
auditors of the associates issued till the date of our audit report for the companies
included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Sr. Name of the | CIN
No Company

Type of Company | Clause
(Holding number of
/Subsidiary/ the CARO

Associate) Report which
is qualified
or Adverse

1 Ardee Engineering | U29100TG2020PLC141953 Company Clause i(c)

Limited (formerly
known as Ardee
Engineering Private
Limited)

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Numb -:.704?99_5. _
4 PR

A

P.V.N Sastry

Partner

Membership No. 029098
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNS4245

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner

Membership No. 231741
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Place: Hyderabad
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [ARDEE ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management and Board of
Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
ability of the Company and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Company and its associates to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M'S K C & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants _ (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Numb 45995 Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

\
Yo Tefroan

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741
UDIN: 25029098BMIUNS4245 UDIN: 25231741BMLLAA7635
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Chartered Accountants [formerly known as M S K C & Associates]
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARDEE ENGINEERING LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS ARDEE
ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED]

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly
known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited] on the consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to
consolidated financial statements of Ardee Engineering Limited [formerly known as Ardee Engineering
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) which includes the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company.

Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to two
associate companies incorporated in India namely ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited & Ardee
Yantrik Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13t June 2017.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).

Management and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference
to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAl. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

S~—= 139



C. Venkat Krishna & Co M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants [formerly known as M S K C & Associates]
Chartered Accountants

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements,

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, materjal misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also,
Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For C. Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

ICAI Firm Registration Numb Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

Fnon P

—

Membership No. 029098 =

. _.“ i - :
P.V.N Sastry LY Tarun Kumar Jain fos
Partner Nhaupe & Partner =

Membership No. 231741 ")

UDIN: 25029098BMIUNS4245 UDIN: 25231741BMLLAA7635 ‘h"f??:«f Y \;’
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025 Date: August 29, 2025
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Ardee Enginecring Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limitedy

(CIN: UZ‘)IOOTGZOZOI’L(‘M|953)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025
(Al amounts are Ry, in AMillion, except fir share

daned per share data amd where otherise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Asscts
Non-current asscts
a) Property, plant and equipinent 5 1,058 98 757 51
b) Capital wor k-in-progress S5A 804.01 -
c) Right-of-use asscts 6 4151 1946
d) Intangible assets 7 1.66 1.84
¢) Financial assets
(i) Investinents 8 13.64 6.86
(ii) Trade receivables 12 142,71 80.65
(iii) Other financial assets 9 125.19 24.28
f) Other assets 10 2.07 -
L) Deferred tax ossets (ner) 31 38,73 28.89
Total non-curvent assets 2,228,50 919.49
Current assefs .
a) Inventories 11 1,212.28 683,53
b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 863 796
(ii) Trade receivables 12 2,216.06 1,477,98
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 1.54 108
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14 166,71 24227
(v) Other financial assets 9 941,76 1,029.21
©) Other nssets 10 33595 260,12
Total current nisets 4,482.93 3,702.15
Total assets 7,111.43 4,621,64
Equity and liabilities
Equity
a) Equity share capital 15 20000 200.00
b) Other equity 16 1,176.35 67301
Tuotal equity 1,376,35 873.11
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 903,50 371.71
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 28.11 10.26
h) Provisions 21 17.30 13.03
Total non-curvent liabilities 948,91 395,00
Current liabilitics
a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 2,228.22 1,478.88
(ia) Lease liabilities 6 15.10 11.52
(ii) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises mnd small enterprises 25824 1,028.37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other thim micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896 83 670.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 28,13 77,98
b) Provisions 21 241 191
©) Other cuirent liabilities 20 33554 79.90
d) Current tinx linbilitics (net) 22 21.70 4.97
Total current linhilitics 4,786.17 3,353,53
Total linbilities 5,735.08 3,748.53
Total Lglliﬂ‘ and linhilities 7!11 1.43 4,621.64
Sew accompanying nofes forming part of the ¢ lated financial st 1-d6

As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No.: 0045998
P.V.N Sastry

ov;«(;
Partner

Membership No, 029098

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerly known as M SK C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firn Registration No.: 001595S/5000168

ST

Tarun Kumar Jain

Partner
Membership No. 231741
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

o lalin 1

Chandra Sekhar Moturu

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02010969

/Qwafw‘
Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

s

Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Ditha Jiudal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer



Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Aidee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PL.C141953)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for sharc and per shate data and wheie otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue fiom operations 23 7,789.03 6,209 .90
Other income 24 38.11 1847
Total Income (1) 7.827.14 6,228.37
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 4,886.41 4,080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progiess 26 191.68 492
Employee benefits expense 27 35228 272.56
Finance costs 28 271.96 156.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 60.54 3585
Other expenses 30 1,398 28 1,265.33
Total expenses (11) 7.061.15 5.815.15
Profit before share ol profit from an gssociate and tax (1-11=111) __665.99 413,22
Share of profit fiom associates accounted using equity method (after tax) (1V) 6.58 1.41
Profit before tax (111+1V=V) 672.57 414.63
Tax expense 31
Current tax 179.68 101.20
Adjustment of incotne tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferted tax (9.97) 6.26
Total tax cxpense (V1) 169.71 123.58
Profit after tax (V-VI=VII) 502.86 291.05
Other comprehensive income
Ttéms that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 051 1.00
Deferred tax relating to these items (0.13) (0.25)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax (VI 0.38 0.75
Tatal comprehensive income for the year (VIIFVILI=IX) S503.24 291.80
Lamings per equity share (Face value of Rs.5 each) 33
Basic (In INR) 12,57 7.65
Diluted (In INR) 12.57 7.65
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1-46
As per our report of even date attached
For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registiation No.: 0045998 Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineeting Private Limited)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0015955/S000168

aQ g

P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain
Partner Partner
Membership No. 029098 Membership No. 231741

Place: Hyderabad .
Date: August 29, 2025
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Jrandra Sekhar Moturu

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025

ninmman and Managing Director

e

Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Ditha Judold

Disha Jindal

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Membership No. A65058




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital Note Number of shares | Amount
As at April 1,2023 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 1,90,00,000 190.00
Change during the year 15 10,00,000 200 00
As at March 31, 2024 (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 2,00,00,000 390.00
Suli-division of equily shares* 15 2,00,00,000 -
As at March 31, 2025 (Face Value of Rs. § each) 4,00,00,000 390,00
*Refer note 15 on Sub-division of equity shares
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other ?omprehensivc Total
income
Securities premium Retained earnings Debenture | Remeasurement of defined
Redemptio [ benefit obligations routed
n Reserve through OCI
Balance as at April 1,2023 - 139.91 - 1.40 141.31
Profit for the year - 291 .05 - . 291 05
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 075 075
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 24000 - - - 24000/
Balance as at March 31, 2024 240.00 430,96 - 2.15 673.11
Profit for the year - 502 86 - - 502 86
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 038 038
Debenture Redemption reserve created - (15 00) 1500 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 240.00 918.82 15.00 2,53 | 1,176.35
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated finaneid statements 1-46

As per our report of even date attached

TFor C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as M S K C & Associates) Ardee Engineering Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No : 004599S Chartered Accountants (formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001595S/S000168

\ o
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P.V.N Sastry Tarun Kumar Jain T;;
Partner Partner | =
Membership No. 029098 Membership No 231741 *‘l Y
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Ragdeep Moturu
Whole-time Director
DIN 07587747

Distha Tiudad,

Krishna Kumari Moturu Disha Jindal

Executive Director and Company Secretary and
Chief Financial Officer Compliance Officer

DIN 10376709 Membership No A65058

Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025
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Ardec Engincering Limited

(farmerly known as Ardec Engineeting Private Limitedt)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for (he year ended Mar

ch 31, 2025

(Allamounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)

Particulars

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2025

For (he year ended
Manrch 31, 2024

A, Cash Nlow from opcerating activities

Profit before lax 672,57 414 63
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amortisation expense 60 54 3585
Interest expense on borrowings measured al amortised cost 25493 14237
Interest expense on lease liabilities 282 292
Interes( income on securily deposils (0.18) (012)
Interest income on fixed deposits (19.17) (897)
Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment (024) .
Share of profit from an associate (6 58) (141)
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL {0.67) (0 46)
Liabilities no longer required writlen back (1779) (8.92)
Other borrowing costs 12,16 649
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 4555 2407
Advance impaired written off 19,16 -
Operating profit before working cupital changes 1,022.60 605,85
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling assets:
Trade receivables (845.69) (742.95)
Inventories (528.75) (236.97)
Other financial assets 87.16 (543.45)
Other assets (29.99) (156.54)
Adjustments for increnase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 431 63 901 37
Provision 528 434
Other financial liabilities (49 85) 6223
Otler linblities 255 64 (2067.55)
Cash fows from/{used in) opurations 348,03 (373.67)
Income tax paid (net of refund) {162.95) (111.45)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities A 185.08 (485.13)
B. Cash flows from investing netivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress and capilal advance) (1,157.61) (482 49)
Proceeds (rom sale of property, plant and equipment 158 180
Investment in associate (0.20) (5 45)
Investment in mutual funds - (750)
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent {24 88) (186.73)
Interest received on fixed deposits 19.17 897
Net cosh lows {used iu! i,nvrsli:lg netivitics ] (1,061.94) (671,40
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital including securities premium - 250.00
Share issue expenses {22.18) -
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070 21 40351
Repayment of long term borrowings (241.98) (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings (nel) 452.90 47972
Interest paid on borrowings (254 93) (136.67)
Other borrowing costs (12.16) (6.49)
Payment towards principal portion of lease liability (1222) (947
Interest paid on lease liabilities (2.32) (2.32)
Net eash Nows gencrated from fi ing activitic [ 977.32 907,02
Net Increase/(decrense) in cash ani cash equivalents A+BHC 0.46 (249.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.08 25059
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 13) 1.54 1.08
See avcompenying notes formisg part of the lidated financial 1-46

As per our report of even date attached

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(formerty known as M S K C & Associates)

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001595S8/S000168

For C Venkat Krishna & Co
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm Registration No : 0045993

Tovsant;

P.V.N Sastry
Partner Partner
Membership No 029098 Membership No 231741

Ardee Engineering Limited

M. Grasdin S

Chandra Sekhar Moturu

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 02010969

Krishna Kumari Moturu
Executive Director and

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 10376709

Frrn

Tarun Kumar Jain

4 0,
Q-@Ji\‘“‘?&. Place: Hyderabad
Date: August 29, 2025~ S==iiin T Date: August 29, 2025
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Ragdeep Moturu

Whole-time Director
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Disha Jindal
Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
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Ardee Engincering Limited
(formerly known as Atdec Engincering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PI_C141953)

Notes forming part of C lidated Financial Stat

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shaie data and where otherwise staled)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(¢)

Corporate information

Audec Engineeting Limited (formerly known as Ardee Engincering Private Limited) (*the Company’/* Atdee”) is a design, engincering and manufacturing cntity formed in year 2008
as a partnership firm. On July 20, 2020. the Paitnetship fitm was converted into private limited company undet the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Later, the Company was
converted fiom private limited company to public limited company, puisuant to a special resolution passed in the extraoidinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company
held on June 5, 2024 and consequently the name of the Company was changed to Ardee Engineeting Limited w.e f August 05, 2024 The 1egistered office is located al H. No. 8-2-
334/K/1, Flat Nos. 101, 102 & 103, Aditya Court, Road No. 5, Banjaia Hills, Hyderabad - 500034, Telangana, India

The Company is engaged in turmnkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, electrical and automation solutions, heavy structural and precision engineering
solutions. Infiastructure, lmigation, Mining and Minerals, Ports, Power and Oil and Gas, are the major sectors where Ardee has operated in

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its interest in associates (tefer Note 37) for the year ended March 31, 2025 and for the
year ended March 31, 2024

Summary of Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"),
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time and presentation requirements
of Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Act, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement

This consolidated financial statements has been prepated on accrual basis and under historical cost convention, except for the following items (refer to individual accounting policies
for detaily:

i. Certain financial insttuments - Fair value through profit or loss

ii. Net defined benefit asset / (liability) - Present value of defined benefit obligations

The Company has prepared the consolidated financial information on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statementsis presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation cutrency of the Company. All the amounts disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions except for share and per share data and where otherwise
stated, up to two decimal places as per the tequirement of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with principles of Ind AS requites the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the

teported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting petiod. Although these estimates ate based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and futuwe years if the revision affects both current and future years.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note no 3.

Classification between - Current and Non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, ot

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fiom being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating Cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as

12 months for the purpose of its assets and liabilities as current and non-cuent

A
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Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: UJ29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and whete otherwise stated)

2.2

23

24

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements presented for the teporting years include the financial statements of the Company and its sharc in associales accounted in accordance with the
televant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

Associates ale entitics over which the Company exeicise significant influence but does not control. Significant influence is assessed annually with reference to the voting power
(usually atising fiom cquity shareholdings and potential voting tights) and other rights (usually contractual) enjoyed by the Company in its capacity as an investor that provides it the
power and consequential ability to direct the investee’s activities and significantly affect the Company’s retums fiom its investment. Such assessment requites the exercise of
judgement and is disclosed by way of a note to the consolidated financial statements

An investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost on the date of the investment, and inclusive of any goodwill/capital teseive embedded in the cost, in the Balance Sheet
The proportionate share of the associate in the net profits as also in the other comprehensive income is tecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the camrying value of the

investment is adjusted by a like amount (1eferred as ‘equity method’)

The entitics conolidated in c lidated financial st ts for the year ended March 31, 2025 are listed below:
Particulars Country of Relationship Date of Incorporation or| % of efective ownership interest held (Directly/Indirectly)
Incorporation acquisition
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Ardee Engineering India Parent July 20, 2020 - -
Limited
Ingwenya Mineral Tech India Associate February 02, 2008 21.63% 21.63%
Private limited
Ardee Yantrik Private India Associale November 27, 2024 40.00% -
limited

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, Jess accumulated depieciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, The cost comprises its putchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any expenditure directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and eslimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs ditectly atiributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and 1emoving the item and restoring the site on which it is located

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carying amount o1 recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repaits and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred. 1f significant parts of an item of PPE have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate itemns (major components) of property, plant and equipment

Capital wotk in progiess is stated at cost, net of accurnulated impairment loss, if any

An iten of propety, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fiom its use o1
disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013

The estimated useful life, residual values and the depreciation method ate 1eviewed at the end of each teporting period, with effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis

The useful life of assets are as follows:

Tangible assets Useful life as per Schedule 11 selllifC catinated by the =z besedionit=chnital
assessment

Buildings 30 years 15 - 30 vears

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 - 15 vears

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears 10 years

Computers 3 vears 3 years

Office equipments 5 years 5 - 10 vears

Vehicles 8 years 8-15 years

Based on the technical experts assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated over useful lives different from the prescribed useful lives
under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used, The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset

In case of a revision of useful lives, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged over the tevised remaining useful life.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquited are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impainment Josses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price and directly

attiibutable cost of prepating the asset for its intended use, Amortisation is 1ecognised on a Straight line method basis over their estimated useful lives so as to reflect the pattern in
which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The estimated useful life and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.c., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use ot disposal. Any gain
or loss atising upon derecognition of the asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful life of asset is as follows:

Asset Useful lives

Software 5 years

/ \k\’*"‘:fhj‘:’;?\
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses al each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset o1 a group of non financial assels is impaired Il any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the assel's tecoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an assel’s cairying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in
an allowance account, When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of 1ecovery of the asset, the televant amounts are wrilten off. If the amount of impairment
loss subsequently decreases and the deciease can be related objectively to an event occurting after the impainment was recognised, then the previously 1ecognised impairment loss is
reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss

The tecoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the gieater of its value in use and its fait value less costs to sell. T assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to theit present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 1eflects curient market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets ate grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that genetales cash in flows fiom continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Group of assets (the “cash-generating unit”)

Leases
The Company assesses at contiact inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of

time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee:
The Company applies a single recognition and neasurement approach for all leases, except for short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measuted at cost, less any

accuimulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial ditect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to disimantle and remove the
underlying asset or to 1estote the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a stiaight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impainment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets,

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease terin. The lease payments

include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option teasonably certain to be exeicised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 1eflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs

[n calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accietion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In
addition, the catrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease tetm, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting fiom a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to puichase the underlying asset

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the shoit-tern lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of land and Buildings, machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of

12 months or less fiom the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). 1t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value

ineasurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that martket participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their econornic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another matket participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs '

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the hansaction price — i e, the fai value of the consideration given or received. If the
Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs fiom the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value on initial 1ecognition and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (imadjusted) market prices in active maikets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has detennined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above
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2.8

2.9

Inventorics
Inventories are valued al the lower of cost and net realisable value
i Raw materials, components and stores and spares:

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. However, matetials and other items held for use in the
production of inventorics are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost Cost of raw materials,
components and stores and spares is determined on a weighted average method, Stotes and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as
inventoties

ii Work-in-progress:
Lower of cost and net 1ealizable value, Cosl includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is
determined on a moving weighted average basis

iii Serap:
Scrap is valued at net realizable value

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cowrse of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to inake the sale

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highty probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, 1egardless of when the

payment is being made
Contract with customers include pre-engineeied building, material handling and engineering contracts along with erection and installation services. All the supplies and services are
considered as one peiformance obligation as the Company believes underlying goods and services are single performance obligation, single commercial objective or the consideration

in one contract depends on another.

In respect of the contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input method (equivalent to percentage of completion method POCM) of accounting with contract
costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation.
Percentage of completion is determined on the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of erection incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and

erection,
The transaction puice is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects (o be entitled in exchange for transfering goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts

collected on behalf of a third party. Payment tenns agreed with a customer are as per business practice, and there is no financing component involved in the transaction price.

Liquidated damages (L.D) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-fulfilment of certain commitiments as per the terms of respective sales contract
These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors 1elevant to that sale,

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
such probability occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue on account of extra claims are accounted for at the time of acceptance / settlement by the customers.

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale These assurance-type wairanties are accounted for under Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

Interest income

Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments classified
as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on accrual basis provided there is no uncertainty of realisation.

Contract balances

a. Contract Assets:
Revenue eamned but not billed to customers against contiact with customers is reflected as unbilled revenue under "Other financial assets” because the receipt of consideration is
conditional on Company's performance under the contract (i.e. transfer control of related goods or services to the customer), Upon completion of the installation and acceptance by

the customer, the amount 1ecognised as unbilled 1evenue is reclassified to trade receivables

Contract assets are subject to impainnent assessment. Refer to the accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in note 2.13 Financial instruments — initial recognition and

subsequent measurement,

b. Trade Receivables:
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the

accounting policies of financial assets in note 2. 13 (Financial instruments ~ initial recognition and subsequent measurement)

c. Contract Liabilities:
A contract liability is 1ecognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services
These amounts are reflected as Advance from customers under "Other liabilities". Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e.,

transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
p——
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2.10

2,11

2,12

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined conttibution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contibution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contiibution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders (he ielated service

Defined benefit Plan
A defined benefit plan is a posl-employment benefit plan other than a defined contiibution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by

estimaling the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the curtent and priot periods, discounting that amount and deducting the faiv value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds fiom the plan or reductions in future contributions to
the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the 1etum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding inteiest), ate 1ecognised immediately in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on government bonds. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset), both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking info account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans ate recognised in profit or loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is cuttailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost® or *past service gain®) or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the setilement occurs

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, govemed by the Payment of Giatuity Act, 1972 which entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous
service, to ratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part theteof in excess of six months, based on the

rate of wages last drawn by the employee concemned.
All defined benefit plans obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The

classification of the Company’s net obligation into current and non-cuirent is as per the actuarial valuation report

Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in determination of the net profit or loss for the year.

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measuted at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Cunient tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences aising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply when the 1elated deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled

Deferred tax assets are 1ecognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Defenred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, o to 1ealise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any teimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions aie discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurience or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not 1ecognized because either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a 1eliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent

liabilities are disclosed and not recognized,

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date
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2.13

Financial instruments
A financial instument is any contiact that gives tisc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability ot equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement:
All financial assets ate recognised initially at fair value plus, (in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through statement of profit and loss) transactlion costs that aie

attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct. Transaction costs of financial assels carried at fair value thiough profit ot loss are expensed off in the statement of profit & loss
Trade receivable that does not contain a significant {inancing component ate measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent ement:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset There are thice
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows those cash flows tepresent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income fiom these financial assels is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss atising on detecognition and impainment losses (if
any) are recognised directly in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and security deposit

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measuted at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which ate recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is detecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified fiom equity to profit or loss

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCI

Fair value through profit or loss: Asscts that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recopnised in profit or loss.
The Company has designated investments in mutual funds (debt instruments) in this category.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primatily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s

summary statements of assets and liabilities) when:
- The rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Impairment of financial assets

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that 1esult from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12- month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is equired for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, itrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs, Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
reconises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matiix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic envitoninent

Financial labilities and equity

An instruments issued by a Company aie classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contiact that evidences a 1esidual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds 1eceived, net of direct issue costs,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurcment:

Financial liabilities ae classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Suh: "
q

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains ot losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

’r
ement:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
This category generally applies to borrowings. For rade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the camrying amounts approxitnate fair value due to

the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another fiom the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability ave substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis ot realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.16

3.1

(a)

()

(©)

(d)

(e)

M

Investments in the nature of equify in Associate

Investment in associate aic accounted tor using the ‘equity method” less accumulated impaitment, if any

Earnings Per Share

Basic camings per share aie calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
duting the year

The weighted average number of equity shaics outstanding duting the year adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a conesponding change in resources

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per shaie, the net profit or loss for the year atributable to equity shareholdets and the weighted average number of shates outstanding
during the year ate adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares

Scgment Reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments ate reported in a manner consistent with the interal 1eporting provided to the chief operating decision maker, The Board of Directors monitors the operating
results as a single segment considering activities of manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings, material handling solutions and related setvices as
one single operating segment, The analysis of geogiaphical segments is based on the location in which the customers are situated

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The prepaiation of consolidated financial statements 1equites management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 1evenues, expenses,
asscts and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require

a maletial adjustiment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years

Judgements / estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
information:

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year, are described below:

a The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared

b. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contiol of the
Company. Such changes aie reflected in the assumptions when they occur

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of performance obligation.

Determining the expected losses, which are recognized in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract cost as of the repotting date

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for detenmining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed

by the management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a 1evision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful lives of the assets

Contingent liabilities

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made,

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of expected ciedit losses on tiade receivables using a provision matiix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted
for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and the Company makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for

longer petiod and involves higher risk

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of

customer’s actual default in the future,

Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are detenmined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates

Deferred tax recognition
Deferred tax asset (DTA) is recognized only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will have sufficient taxable profits in future against which such

assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of defenied tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, recent business performance and developments.
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4 Recent ace ing p
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notificd amendments (o various Indian Accounting Standards thiough the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025

and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2025 as under:

* Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 10: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
These amendments are introduced to clarify the requitements on determining whether a liability is curtent or non-current and r1equire new disclosures for non-cuntent liabilities that are
subject to future covenants. These amendments apply for the annual reporting periods beginning on ot after April 1, 2025, while certain amendments are effective for annual teporting
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2026, The Company is in the process ofassessing the impact of these amendments, which will be applied retrospectively in accordance with Ind
AS 8, These amendments may particulatly affect the classification and disclosures relating to non-curient borowings subject to future covenant compliance

* Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 7: Supplier Finance Arrangements
These amendments intioduce new disclosures 1elating to supplier finance anangements that assist users of the financial statements to assess the effects of these anangements on an

entity’s liabilities and cash flows and on an entity's exposure to liquidity tisk. The amendments apply for the annual 1eporting petiods beginning on or after April I, 2025
The Company is in the process of assessing whether any of its supplier related financing arrangements fall within the scope of these amendiments and, if so, will provide the 1equited

disclosures

* Amendments to Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Lack of Exchangeability)

These amendments require assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable and also requires specific disclosures viz
the nature and financial effects of the currency not being exchangeable, the spot exchange rates used, the estimation process, and the risks to which the entity is exposed because of
the currency not being exchangeable. The amendment also lays down transition requirements, while specifically stating that an entity shall not restate comparative information in
applying Lack of Exchangeability. These amendments are effective from Aptil 1, 2025; however, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements as the Company’s transactions are limited to currencies that are fieely convertible and exchangeable, and management has assessed that no significant restrictions

apply to its operations

* Amendments to Ind AS 12: International tax reform—Pillar Two model rules

The amendments to Ind AS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD's BEPS Pillar Two rules and include a mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model tules and disclosure tequirements for affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes aiising from that legislation

These amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company is not in scope of the Pillar Two model rules
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

6 Right of use assets and Lease liabilities

Right-of-use asscis:

Description Buildings Plant and Total
machinery
Cost as at Aprif 1, 2023 19.31 8.20 27.51
Additions 927 9.27
Deletions - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 28.58 8.20 36.78
Additions 3434 - 34.34
Deletions - F: i
Cost as at March 31, 2025 62.92 8.20 71.12
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 5.60 1.89 7.49
Depreciation for the year 7.93 1.90 9.83
Deletions - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 13.53 3.79 17.32
Depreciation for the year 10.40 1.89 12.29
Deletions - = -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 23.93 5.68 29.61
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 15.05 4.41 19.46
38.99 2.52 41.51

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Lease liabilities:

(i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Balance at the beginning 2178 22.27
Additions during the year 33,65 898
Accrual of interest 232 232
Interest paid on Jease liabilities (2.32) (2.32)
Payment of lease liabilities (12.22) 9.47)
Closing balance 43.21 21.78
Less: Current lease liabilities 1510 11,52

28.11 10.26

Non-current lease liabilities

(ii) Payments recognised as expenses:

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
157.32 105.23

Short-term leases and low value assets (refer Note 30)

Notes:
(i) Leases where Company is a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for buildings and Industrial property which has lease term between 3 to 6 years. The Company also has lease contracts for plant and

machinery, which has lease term of 6 years.

The Company also has certain leases of equipment, machinery and commercial space with lease term up to 12 months. The Company applies the recognition

exemptions relating to short-term leases

(ii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis are disclosed in Note 36
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Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs in Million, except for share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

7

Intangible assets
Description

Computer Software

Cost as at April 1, 2023 0.52
Additions 1.59
Disposals -
Cost as at March 31, 2024 2.11
Additions 027
Disposals
Cost as at March 31, 2025 2.38
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2023 0.05
Amortisation for the year 022
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 0.27
Amortisation for the year 045
Disposals -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2025 0.72
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1.84
1.66

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025

Note:
The Company has not revalued its intangible assets,

This space is intentionally left blank
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Aidee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Conselidated Financial Statements

(All amounts ate Rs. in Million, except for share and per share data and where othenwise stated)

8 Investments
As at Mureh 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Non-current
Investment in Associate
In unquoted equity shares (fully paid up) (accounted using
equity method)
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - Equity shares 90,870 13.47 90,870 6.86
having face value of Rs.100 each
(ii) Aidee Yantiik Private limited - Equity shares having 20,000 017 - -
face value of Rs, 10 each*
13.64 6.86

*The Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs.0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Aidee Yantrik Private
Limited, incorporated on November 27, 2024 repiesenting 40.00% of the total equity shaie capital

Current
Investments in unquoted mutual funds (carried at fair value
through profit and loss)

HDFC Short Term Debt-G 2,75,693.13 8.63  2,75,693.13 7.96
8.63 7.96

Notes:
(a) Aggregate value of unquoted investments in equity shares 13.64 6.86
(b) Agpregate value of unquoted investments in mutual funds 8.63 7.96
0.67 0.46

(c) Change in fair value of the investments in mutual funds during the year
(d) Refer Note 35 for fair value measurements and Note 36 for information about the Company's exposure to financial risks.
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on investinents subject to charge on secured borrowings.

9 Other financial nssets (Unsecured, idered good)
As at March As at March
31,2025 31,2024
Non-current
Security deposits 1.44 0.97
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months
Margin money deposits with banks* 123,75 2331
125.19 24.28
Current
Security deposits 3098 837 '
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with bank 6.10 10.73
Unbilled revenue 898.78 1,005.74
Other receivables 5.90 437
941.76 1,029.21

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in favour of customers and suppliers

10 Other assets

As at March As at March

31, 2025 31,2024
Non-current
Capital Advance 2.07 -
2.07 -
Current
Advances recoverable in kind or for value to be received 127,54 100.25
Prepaid expenses 973 246
Balance with government authorities 133,68 157,41
Share issue expenses* 65.00 -
335.95 260,12

*During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company incurred expenses in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of equity shares of the
Company by way of fiesh issue and an offer for sale by the existing shareholders. In relation to the IPO expenses incurred till date, except for listing fees which
shall be solely borne by the Company, all other expenses will be shared between the Company and the Selling Shareholders on a pro-rata basis, in proportion to
the equity shares issued and allotted by the Company in the fresh issue and the offered shares sold by the selling shareholders in the offer for sale.

11 Inventories
As at March As at March
31,2025 31,2024
All inveniories except for scrap are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value and scrap is valued at net realisable value
Raw material* 1,043.19 32921
Work-in-progress 90.38 33045
Store and spares 28.40 2195
Scrap 50.31 1.92
1,212.28 683.53

. inuhldjf g%dh—il\-{mnsil amounting to Rs. 11.58 Mn (March 3
t y&: 731 fifl details on Inventories subject to charge
PeE3gpy




Ardee Engineering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limiled)
(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and whete otherwise staled)

12

Trade receivables

As at March

As at March 31,

31, 2025 2024
Non-Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 142 71 80 65
142,71 80.65
Current
Unsecured
- Considered good 2,216 06 1,477 98
- Credit impaired 182 33 141 15
2,398.39 1,619.13
Less: Allowance for credit impaired trade receivables (refer note g below) (18233) (141.15)
2,216.06 1,477.98

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from related parties out of the above (rade receivables (refer note 34)

(b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 0 to 90 days from date of invoicing other than retention money which is due upon expiry of defect liability

period. The Company does not hold any collateral security

(c) Trade receivables includes retention money apgregaling to Rs 238 57 Mn (March 31, 2024: Rs, 90 88 Mn)
(d) Refer Note 36 for information aboul the Company exposure to financial risks, and delails of impairment losses for trade receivables and fair values
(e) Refer Note 17.1 for details on Lrade receivables subject to charge on secured borrowings

(F) No Trade receivables are due from directors or officers of the company

(g) Ageing of Trade receivables

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Non-current  Current Qutstanding for following periods ffom due date of Receipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivabl

— considered good 142.71 1,538.68 267.14 367.00 4232 092 - 2,358 77

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - = - - - -

— ciedit impaired - - 196 2931 67 26 2877 5503 18233
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - -

— credit impmred - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 14271 1,538 68 26910 396 31 109 58 2969 35.03 2.541.10
Less: Allowanee for credit impaired trade recervables - - {1.96) (29.31) (67:26) (28.77) (55.03) (182,33)
Total 142.71 1.538.68 267.14 367.00 42,32 0.92 - 2,358.77
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Non-current  Current Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
but not Due but not Less than 6 months-1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
Due 6 Months year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivabl

~ considered good 80.65 965 42 226 86 73.68 15922 5280 - 1,558 63

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - = - -

— credit impaired - e . 14115 - 141 15
Disputed trade receivables

— considered good - - - - . - - -

— which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - = - - -

— credit impaired - - - - - » - =
Subtotal 8065 965 42 226 86 73 68 15922 193 95 - 1,699.78
Less: All for credit impaired trade receivables - - - = & (141.15) B (141.15)
Total 80.65 965.42 226.86 73.68 159.22 52.80 - 1,558.63
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Ardee Engineering Limited
(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)
(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Ci

1id t

d Financial Stat

(All amounis are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise staled)

13

(h) Expected credit loss (ECL)
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characterislics of each customer Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers Lo which the Company granls credit in the normal course of business Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses Lhe

potential customer's credit quality

The movement in the allowance for credit loss:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 141 15 14930
Less: Written off during the year {437) (32.21)
Add: Provision created during the vear 4555 24 06
182.33 141,15

Closing halance

(i) Of the trade receivables balance of Rs. 1,785 45 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Rs 896.12 Mn) is due from Company's largest customers individually representing
more Lhan 5% of total trade receivables balance

Cash and cash equivalents

As al March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Cash on hand 012 03]
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 142 077
1.54 1.08

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months
Margin money deposils with banks* 166 71 24227
166.71 242.27

* Margin money deposits held against issuance of bank guarantees and letter of credits provided in favour of customers and suppliers

This space is intentionally left blank
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Ardee Engineering Limited

(formetly known as Ardee Engineenng Private Linnted)

(CIN U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statenents

(All amounts are Rs in Million, excepl for share and per share data and where otherwise slated)

15 Equity share capital
As at March 31, 2024

ithorized share capitnl

7.00.00.000 equity shares of Rs 5 each* {Murch 31, 2024: 3,50,00,000 equily shares of Rs_10 each) 35000 350 00

Issuenl, subiseribed gl folly padd up

4,00,00.000 eyuity shares of Rs. 5 each* {Murch 31, 2024 2,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each) 200 00 200 00
200,00 200,00

(1) Shareholders vide the Extra-ordinary general meeting dated March 30, 2024 have approved increase i Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company from Rs 200 00 Mn divided
into 20,000,000 Equity shates of Rs 10 each to Rs 350,00 Mn divided into 3,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each by addition of 1,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each, ranking pari-
passu with existing shares of the Company

(ii) Sub-division of equity shares*

Pursuant (o resolution passed by the Board of Directors on January 28, 2025 and resolulion passed by the Shareholders on January 29, 2025, the company has made Sub-division of |
(one) equily share of nominal/face value of-Rs 10 into 2 (iwo) equity shares of nominal/face value of Rs § each, fully paid-up w.e f, January 31, 2025 Accordingly, the authorised share
capital of our Company was sub-divided from 3,50,00,000 equity shares of face value of Z10 each to 7.00.00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs 5 each

Noles:
i) Reconciliation of Authorised equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 Mupreh 31,2024
No. of shures Amouni Mo, of shares  Amount
Balance at the beginning of the vear 3,50,00,000 35000 2,00,00,000 20000
- - 1,50,00,000 150.00

Add: Increase in Authorised Share Capital (Refer note below)
1, 50,000,000 .

Add: Sule-division of eduity shares*
7,00,00,000 50,00 3,50,00,000 350,00

Balnnee al the end of the yeir

Nate:
*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No, of shares Amouni No. of shares  Amaunt
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 200,00 1,90,00,000 190,061
- 10,00,000 10 00

Add: Issue during the year (Refer note below) -
2,000, 0, 000 - -

Add Sub-division of equity shares* .
Ounstanding at the end of the venr 4.00,00,000 200, 2,000,000 200,00
Note:

During FY 2023-24 vide board resolution dated March 28, 2024, the Company has issued 10,00,000 Equity shares with a face value of Rs 10 each at issue price of Rs, 250 per equity
share with premium of Rs 240 per share

*Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 5 per share (post split- Refer note above for delails) Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

iv) Shares held by shareholders helding more than 5% shares of the aggregate shaves of the Company:

Name of shareholder As at Maveh 31, 2025 As ut March 31, 2024
No. of shavest % holding Mo, of shares % hulding
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 3,59,99,900 90 00% 1,79,99,950 90.00%
Mr. l(m'idee[: Muoturu <1 CH (R 10.00% 20,060,000 10004
* 4 holding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89 9998% are rounded off to 96 (1%,
#Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares
v) Sharcholding of promoters
Name of promoter As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024 % change
No. of shares** % holding  No. of shares % holding during the
year
Mr_Chandra Sekhar Moturu® 3,59,99,900 90,00% 1,79,99,950 90 00% z
Mr Ragdeep Moturu 40,00,000 10.00%  20,00,000 10.00% “
Mrs Krishna Kumari Moturu# 20 0.00% - - 100.00%
M. Arundeep Moturuff 20 0.00% - - 100.00%5

* % lolding as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 - 89, 9998% are rounded off 1o 90.00% 0.

# Shares are transferred during FY 2023-24 vide resolution March 28, 2024 to the respective shareholders as indicate above, however the shareholders are categorised in the capacity of
p vide board resolution dated September 17, 2024

Refer note 171 for the details of promoters shares pledged

**Refer note above on Sub-division of equity shares

Name of promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 % change
during the
No. of shares % holding No of shares % holding year
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu* 1,79,99,950 90.00% 1,71,00,000 90 00% 0.00%
M Rayrdeap Moturn 20,000,000 10.00% 19,00, 0(x) 10.009% -

* % halding as of March 31, 2024 - 89.9998% are raunded wif 1o 00 00%%




Avrdee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engineering Private Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million, except for share and per shave data and where otherwise stated)

16

Other equity

As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium [Refet Note (i) below] 240.00 240.00

Retained eamings [Refer Note (ii} below] 91882 430.96

Debenture redemption reserve [Refer Note (iii) below] 15.00 -

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plan [Refer Note (iv) below] 2.53 215

Total other equity 1,176.35 673.11

Notes:

Movement in reserves and surplus For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Securities premiuvm

Balance at the beginning of the year 240.00 =

Add: lssue of equity shares (refer note 15) - 240.00

Balance at the end of the year 240.00 240.00

(ii) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 430.96 139.91

Less: Transfer to Debenture redemption reserve (15.00) -

Add: Net profit for the vear 502.86 291.05

Balance at the end of the year 918.82 430.96

(iii) Debenture redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year = -

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 15.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 15.00 -

(iv) Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (liability net of tax)

Balance at the beginning of the year 215 1.40

Add : Changes during the year 0.38 0.75
2.53 2.15

Balance at the end of the vear

Nature of reserves:
(a) Securities premium
Securities premium represents the amount received in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation of the securities premium reserve is governed by the section 52

of the Act.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained eamings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

(c) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Represents the amount transferred to separate reserve on account of issue of Redeemable non-convertible debentures and should be utilised in accordance with the provisions of

the Act.

(d) Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to profit and loss.

ed
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17 Borrowings

As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024

Non current (at amortised cost)

Sccured

a. Term loans
(i) From banks 32087 189.73
(ii) From non-banking financial companies 364.54 2819

b. Vehicle and equipment loans
(i) From banks 133,51 101.53
(1i) From non-banking financial companies 25.69 32.96

¢. Business loan- Equipment refinance
From banks 18.71 18.69

d. Redeemable non-convertible debentures

From others 147.37 -
Unsecured
a. Term loans

(i) From non-banking financial companies 261.12 1522

b. Working Capital - Business loans

(i) From banks - 6.55

(ii) From non-banking financial companies 45.67 36.89
¢. Loan from others

(i) Inter-corporate loan - 59.49
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (413.98) (117.54)
Total non current borrowings 903.50 371.71
Current (at amortised cost)
Secured
a. Loans repayable on demand from banks

(i) Working capital demand loans 205.57 213.3]

(1i) Cash credit facilities 469.20 453.40
b. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 118,35 106.89
Unsecured
a. Working capital facility - Channel finance

(i) From non-banking financial companies 13826 155.15

(1i) Through TReDs platform 868.83 431.19
b. Repayable on demand

(i) From related parties 11.82 140

(ii) From others 221 -
Add: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 413.98 117.54
Total current borrowings 2,228.22 1,478.88

Refer Note 35 for fair value measurements and Note 36 for information about the Company’s exposure to financial risks
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17.1  Summary of borrowing terms:
The repayment lerms and maturily terms of borrowings as stated below

Nin curvent horrowings

Particulars Rate of interest Number of equal Maturity year As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
(%) Instalments
Secured
8, Term loans
(i) From banks (Refer Note 1 below)
HDFC Bank Limited 900% 21 to 69 months January 2025 to April 2027 2624 4377
ICICI Bank Limited 10.00% 84-114 months October 2031 to October 2033 294 63 14596
(ii) From non-banking financial comp
{Refer Note 2 below)
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11.00% 60 months August 2028 2138 2819
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 12.50% 72 months February 2031 343 16 -

b Vehiele and Equipment Loans [Refer Note 3 helow)

(i) From banks

HDFC Bank Limited 8§ 55%t0 1025% 12 10 39 months November 2023 to February 2028 6205 6757
Yes Bank Limited 909%to 11 12% 36 to 46 months May 2025 to February 2028 3424 3396
Axis Bank Limited 10 10% 35 months October 2027 to November 2027 3722 -
(i) From banking fi ial pani
Sundaram Finance Limited 1125% to 12.48% 23 10 60 months December 2026 to July 2028 2569 25.57
Toyota Financial Services Private Limited 699% 36 months December 2026 - 739
Yes Bank Limited 11.00% 37 months January 2028 1871 18 69
mphle non-con e (Refer Nate 10 below
RevX Capital 15.25% 12 months and | day March 2026 147.37 -

1125%to |1 80% 36 months May 2026 to July 2026 855 1522
IKF Finance Limited 17.00% 36 monlhs January 2028 25257 -
b, Working capital - Business Loans
(i) From banks
Axis Bank Limited 16 00% 36 months February 2025 - 151
HDFC Bank Limited 15.00% 36 months March 2025 - 288
Unity Small finance Bank limited 17 50% 36 months March 2025 - 196
IDFC First Bank (Capital First Limited) ~ 9.25% to 17.50% 36 to 48 months December 2022 to August 2024 - 020
(ii) From non-banking financial comy
Oxyzo financial services Private Limited 14 50% 18 months October 2023 to March 2026 45 67 3266
Other NBFCs 11.25% to 19.00% 18 to 48 months December 2021 to March 2025 - 423
€. Loan [ - 0 Ty
Inter-corporate loan*(EIR- 9 5%) 600%* 36 months April 2025 to March 2027 - 5949
Less 3 (413 98) (11754
Total 903.50 371.71

\\' «1 X
— = o
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Current borrowings

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Secured
, Loans vepayabile on demaud from banks
Workiny Capi 1 VODLY (Refer Nuote | belaw
WCDL from HDFC Bank Limited 205 57 21331
(i) Cash Credit {Refer Note | and 4 below]
HDFC Bank Limited 9939 11634
1CICI Bank Limited 56 58 3177
State Bank of India 31323 29929

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 11835 106 89

Unsecured

ATy ATH = i nanee- {Refer note 6 below’

(i) From non-banking financial com
Aditya Birla Capital Limited 2833 54 97
Oxyzo Financial Services Private Limited 109 93 100 18

(ii) Through TreDs platform
Receivables Exchange of India Limiled 65398 29336
A TREDS Limited 21485 13783

R 1] emnrd

From related parties- (Refer note7 below) 11.82 1.40
From others - (Refer note 8 below) 221 -
Add Cuirent malurities of langs-term baerowir LRER 175
Total 2,228.22 1,478,488
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Notes:
1. Term Loan/Working Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit
(i) Term LowsvWorking Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit from HDFC Bunk Limited
(a) Primary Securily: Current Assels (Stock, Book Debtors), Plant & Machinery, Fixed deposit for Letter of credit, Bank guarantee, personal guarantee from directors and relative of

directors
(b) Collateral Security: One Immovable property owned by relalive of director and additional three inimovable properties given as co-collateral along with ICICI Bank Limited owned

by Direclors of the Company
(c) Working capital demand loan and cash credit carry interest rale of 9. 35% p.a each and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of directors of the conpany.
(@) Term Loan/Cash Credit from [CICI Bank Limited
(a) Exclusive charge on movable fixed assets, Company's immovable property located al Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh, India and first paripassu on current assels and
(b) Collateral Security: Three immovable properties given as co-collateral along with HDFC Bank Limited owned by Direclors of the Company
(c) Cash credil facility carry interest al repo rate 6 50% plus spread of 3 25% p a and repayable on demand and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(d) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors and relatives of direclors of the company

2, Term loan from NBFC- (Secured)

(1) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situated at LDA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(ii) Aditya Birla Capilal Finance Limited Loan

(a) Primary Security: Mortagage of Land and building to be construcied on the land located in Seetharampur, Hyderabad

Exclusive charge created by way of hypothecation on moveable fixed assels of the company. Current Assets hypotheciated as second pari passu charge
(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

(c) Equity Shares of promoter Mr Chandra Sekhar Moturu are pledged for the loan facility

Unsecured Term loan from NBFC

(iii) 1KF Finance Limited: Loan is secured under the collateral of the following;
a) Three properties owned by relative of directors of the company.

(b) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

3. Vehicle and Equipment loan from Bank and NBFC (Secured):
Security provided for the vehicle and equipment loans are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation on the assets purchased

from loan proceeds

4. Credit facility from SB1 Bank (Secured)
(i) First paripassu charge on stock and receivables
(ii) Collateral security on equitable mortgage of industrial land with sheds constructed thereon at Pashamylaram, Sangareddy
(iii) Interest rate of 10.14% p.a and repayable on demad and the tenure ranging upto 365 days
(iv) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

5. Working Capital/Channel Finance (Secured):

(i) Primary charge on stocks and receivables funded out of Tala Capital Financial Services Limited Collateral - Security on liquid funds i ¢ mutual funds
(i) Tata Capital loan is secured under the mortgage of Industrial property situaled at [DA Patancheru, Sangareddy District, Telangana

(iii) Personal guarantee has been provided by directors of the company

6. Facility through TreDs platform / other NBFCs:
Interest ranging from 9 50% p ato 14 50% p.a, with a credit period ranging from 45 to 120 days

7. Loan from related parties
Interest free loan from related parties are repayable on demand

8. Inter Corporate loan
Inter Corporate loan are obtained at the rate of interest of 6 00% per annum for a period extending upto 3 years and repayable along wilh interest. Interest is repayable as and when demanded

by the lender

9. Non-fund facilities from HDFC Bank Limited/ICICI Bank Limited/State Bank of India
(i) The tenure of bank guarantees typically ranges from 3 months to 36 months, while the maximum tenor for letter of credit upto 180 days
(ii) Commissions on bank guararitees typically ranges from 0.75% p.a to 2.75% p.a, while commissions for letters of credit ranges from 0.70% p ato 1 40% p a

10. Non convertible redeemable debentures
The tenure of the Debenture are 12 months and | days from the date of disbursement i.e, March 01, 2026 and carry fixed rate of interest at 15.25% p.a

The debentures are secured as follows:

(i) Total Security 1 10- times debentures Subscription Amount

(ii) Secondary ranking, charge on all existing and future cashflows of the issuer, existing and future fixed and current assets, other assets, including but not limited (o inventory (if any),
receivables, rental deposits, i ible assels including brand and intellectual property, uncalled share capital etc of the company

(iii) Personal guaraniee has been provided by directors of the company

11. Busi loan- Equi refi
Security provided for the business loans obtained through refinance of equipments are the underlying assets for which loan has been obtained First and exclusive charge through hypothecation

on the assets

12 The Company has not defaulted on working capital loan or any other loan payables

13. Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such borrowings were taken

1. Details of borrowings guaranteed by Divectors and others:

As at March 31,2025  Ax at Maveh 31, 2024

Particulars
Directors 1,312 94 721 08
Directors and Relutve of Directors GEZ 44 44081
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17.2  Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash Mows arising from financing activities

Borrowings Lease liabilities

Particulars

Non-current Current Non-current Current Total
As at March 31,2023 154.81 878.11 12.95 9.32 1,055.19
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - 9.47) (9.47)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 403.51 - - - 403.51
Repayment of long term borrowings (71.26) - - - (71.26)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 479.72 - - 479.72
Interest paid on borrowings (31.21) (105.45) - - (136.66)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (117.54) 11754 (11.67) 11.67 -
New leases - - 8.98 - 8.98
Interest expense during the year 33.40 108.96 - 232 14468
As at March 31, 2024 371.71 1,478.88 10.26 11.52 1,872.37
Cash flows:
Principal paid on lease liabilities - - - (12.22) (12.22)
Interest paid on lease liabilities - - - (2.32) (2.32)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,070.21 - - - 1,070.21
Repayment of long term borrowings (124 44) (117.54) - - (241.98)
Proceeds from short term borrowings, net - 452.90 - - 452.90
Interest paid on borrowings (78.78) (176.15) - - (254.93)
Non-cash flows:
Movement from non-current to current (413.98) 413.98 (15.80) 15.80 -
New leases - - 33.65 - 33.65
Interes! expense during the year 78.78 176.15 - 2.32 257.25
As at March 31, 2025 903.50 2,228.22 28.11 15.10 3,174.93
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18

18.1

Trade pavables

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2025 2024

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micio enterprises and small enterprises (MSME)* 25824 1,028 37
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,896.83 670,00
Total trade payables 2,155.07 1.698.37
Notes:
Amounts due to related parties out of the above trade payable (refer note 34)
Refer Note 36 for information about the Company’s exposure fo financial risks
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 0 to 90 days.
*Includes Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs amounting to Rs. 1.03 Mn for the FY 2024-25 (FY 2023-24: NIL)
Trade payables ageing schedule
March 31, 2025
Particulars Payables Not Due o] ding for following periods from due date of Payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
(i) MSME 200.77 57.44 0.03 - - 25824
(ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 1,330.36 528.52 28.65 8.45 0.85 1,896,83
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,531.13 585.96 28.68 8.45 0.85 2,155.07
March 31, 2024
Particulars Payables Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 976.46 51.91 - - - 1,028.37
(ii) Disputed dues —- MSME - - - - - -
(iii) Others 494.25 112.13 39.49 23.36 0.77 670.00
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,470.71 164.04 39.49 23.36 0.77 1,698.37

e AN
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19 Other financial liabilitics

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024

Current

Employee dues (refer Note 34) 2743 2156
Retention money 004 56.42
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.66 -

28.13 77.98

20 Other current liabilities

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Statutory dues payable 13.66 20.76
Advance from customers 320.02 59.14
Liability towards corporate social responsibility 1.86 -
335.54 79.90
21 Provisions

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Non-current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 32)

Provision for gratuity 17.30 13.03
17.30 13.03
Current
Employee benefit obligation (refer Note 32)
Provision for gratuity 241 1.91
2.41 1.91
22 Income tax (assets) / liabilities, net
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Provision for taxes 179.81 108.64
Less: Advance tax / TDS (net of refund) (158.11) (103.67)
21.70 4.97

Refer Note 31 for tax expense details.
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23

23.1

23.2

24

25

26

Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contract with customers 7,767.20 6,205.07
Other operating 1evenue
Sciap sale 21.83 483
7,789.03 6,209.90

Disaggregated revenue information
In the following table, 1evenue from contracts with customess is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major revenue streams and timing of revenue

recognition

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Primary geographical market
In India 7,789.03 6,209.90
Outside India - -
7,789.03 6,209.90
Major revenue streams
Pre-engineered building 3,948.16 3,111.75
Material handling systems 2,414.77 1,221 21
Engineering Services 1,404.27 1,872.11
Other 21.83 4.83
7,789.03 6.209.90
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 21.83 4.83
Over time 7,767.20 6,205.07
7.789.03 6.209.90

Information about major customers (from external customers)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has derived revenue fiom 3 customers totalling to Rs. 3,822.88 Mn (For the year ended March 31, 2024- 3
customers totalling to Rs. 3,370.57 Mn) contributing individually 10% or more of the total revenue.

Contract balances As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (refer Note 12) 2,358.77 1,558,63
Contract assets (refer Note 9) 898,78 1,005.74
Contract liabilities (refer Note 20) 320.02 59.14
Qther income For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Interest income earned on financial assets
- Bank deposits 19.17 897
- Other interest income 0,18 0.12
Net gain on financial assets designated on FVTPL 0.67 0.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 17.79 892
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 024 -
Miscellaneous incotne 0.06 -
38.11 18.47
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 329.21 102.87
Add: Purchases 5,600.39 4,306.82
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (1,043,19) {329.21)
4,886.41 4,080.48
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 330.45 335,52
Scrap 1.92 177
Inventories at the ending of the year
Work-in-progress (90.38) (330.45)
Scrap (50.31) (1.92)

Net decrease/ (increase) 191.68 4.92
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27 Employee benefits expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 309.60 23256
Contribution to provident and other funds (1efer Note 32) 16,06 1265
Gratuity (refer Note 32) 712 527

Staff welfare expenses 19,50 2208
352.28 272.56

28 Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense on

Bortowings measured at amortised cost 254,93 14413

Lease liabilities 232 232

Income tax 2.55 3.07

Other borrowing costs 12.16 6.49

271.96 156.01

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer Note 5) 47 80 25.80
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 6) 12,29 9.83
Amortisation of intanpible assets (refier Note 7) 0.45 0.22

60.54 35.85

30 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Job work, installation and erection charges 558.62 546.91
Labour charges 269.67 295.84
Freight charges 108.76 120,16
Rent 157.32 105.23
Loading and unloading Charges 2.83 4.03
Material testing charges 10.83 2.17
Sand blasting charges 9.36 11.27
Site civil works 4527 29.27
Security charges 11.39 7.18
Stores and spares consumption 194 5,08
Power and fuel 66.06 2493
Transportation charges 532 6,70
Repair and maintenance 2080 19.75
Legal and professional chaiges 7.80 8,70
Travelling and conveyance expenses 893 7.24
Bank charges 1.37 5.52
Auditor's remuneration 3.85 3.85
Rates and taxes 16,75 10,92
Expenditure for corporate social responsibility 4.56 2.18
Provision for credit impaired trade receivables 45.55 24.07
Advances impaired written off 19.16 -
Miscellanenus expenses 22.14 2433

1,398.28 1,265.33
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31 Tax expense
(A) Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of profif and loss:
Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax:

Cunent tax for the year 179.68 101.20
Adjustment of income tax relating to eatlier years (net) - 16.12
Deferred tax:

Deferred tax for the yvear (9.97) 6.26
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss 169.71 123.58

(B) Income tax expense ehavged to other comprehensive income (OC1);
Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax impact on 1e-measuiement of defined benefit plans (0.13) (0.25)
Income tax charged to OCI (0.13) (0.25)
(C) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 672.57 414,63
Tax rate applicable to the Company 25.17% 2517%
Estimated tax expense on profit 169.27 104,35
Adjustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net) - 16.12
Tax effect of expenditure disallowed under income tax 328 3.08
Others (2.84) 0.03
lucome (ax exj 169.71 123.58
(D) Movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities from March 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025:
Particulars As at Credit/ (charge) in  Credit/ (charge) in As at
March 31, 2024 the Statement of ocCli March 31, 2025
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.41) (6.18) - (16.59)
Right-of-use assets (4.90) (5.55) - (10.45)
Provision for credit impaited trade receivables 3552 1037 - 4589
Provision for employee benefits 3,76 133 (0,13) 496
Lease liabilities 5.48 5.40 - 10.88
Others (0.56) 4.60 - 4.04
Deferred tax assets (nef) 28.89 9.97 (0.13) 38.73
Movement in deferred tax assets and def n March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2024:
Particulars As at  Credit/ (charge) in Credit/ (charge) in As at
April 1, 2023 the Statement of 0ocCl1 March 31, 2024
Profit and Loss
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4 .84) {5.58) - (10.41)
Right-of-use assets (5.04) 0.14 - (4.90)
Provision for credit impaired trade recetvables 37.58 (2.06) - 35.52
Provision for employee benefits 2.92 1.09 (0.25) 3.76
Lease liabilities 5.60 0.12) - 548
Others .81 025 - (0.56)
Deferred tax assets (net) 35.41 (6.26) (0.25) 28.89
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32
32.1

322
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

Employee benefit obligations

Post retirement benefit - Defined contribution

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and
employee slate insurance which are defined contribution plans The Company has no obligations other than (o make the specified conltributions The contributions are
charged (o the statement of profit and loss as they acciue The Company has recognised as an expense aggregaling for the year ending March 31, 2025: Rs 16 06 Mn;
(March 31, 2024: Rs 12.65 Mn) in respect of the defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefit - Defined benefit
Gratuity (unfunded)

Particulars Net defined benelit liahility - Gratuity plan

Non-current Current Total
As at March 31, 2025 1730 241 1971
As at March 31, 2024 13.03 191 14.94

The Company has a defined benefit gratuily plan in India (Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan is a final salary plan for India employees, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under this Act, employee who has compleled five
years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age The plan was

unfunded
The plans are exposed to a number of risks, including;

- Interest rale risk: decreases/increases in the Discount rate used will Increase/decrease the defined benefit obligation
- Attrition risk: Changes in the estimation of morfality rates of Current and former employees
- Salary risk: increases in future salaries Increase the gross defined benefil obligation

Gratuity cost for the year ended March 31, 2025- Rs 7.12 Mn (March 31, 2024- Rs. 5 27 Mn) has been included in Note 27 under employee benefits expense The
Company's gratuity plan is unfunded

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit i.e. Gratutity plans are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 6.11 444
Interest cost 101 083
Components of defined benfit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 7.12 527
Remeasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions (229) 053
Changes in financial assumptions 335 040
Experience adjustmenls (157) (193)
Comy of defined benfit costs recognised in other comprehensice income (0.51) (1.00)
Balance as ut the end of the year 6.61 4.27
Reconciliation of net defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14.94 11.60
Current service cost 611 444
Interesl cost 101 083
Included in profit and loss (refer note 27) 712 5.27
Remenasurement loss/(gain):
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions 229) 053
Changes in financial assumptions 335 040
Experience adjustments (1.57) (193)
Included in OCI (0.51) (1.00)
Benefits paid (183) (093)
Othier movements {1.83) (0.93)
Balance as at the end of the year 19.71 14.94
Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of the defined benefit obligations include:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.02% 7.24%
Future salary growth 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality rates 100% of JALM (2012 - 14) 100% of TALM (2012 - 14)

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025 is 10 years (March 31, 2024- 11 years) for gratuity plan

Maturity analysis
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 1 year 247 1.96
2to 5 years 552 351
610 10 years 876 608
> 10 years 26,93 2728

Total ‘ 43.68 38,83
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(8)

33

Sensitivily analysis

The impact (o the value of the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial assumption, holding all other assumplion conslant, is
presenled in the table below In practice, this is unlikely to ocour, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated When calculating the sensitivily of the
defined benefit obligalion to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
balance sheet

Defincd benefit abligation

Actuarial assumptions Discount rate Future salary growth
Reasonably possible change +1%) (-1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1811 2158 2153 1808
As at March 31, 2024 1355 16 57 16 56 13 52
Acluarial assumptions Attrition rate Future mortality rates
Rensonably possible change (+1%) (-1%) (+1%) (-1%)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
As at March 31, 2025 1927 2019 19.70 19.72
As at March 31, 2024 1475 ' 1513 1493 14.93

Earnings per share
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted eamings per equity share computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax 502,86 291 05
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,00,00,000 3,80,21,918
Face value per share (Rs.) 5.00 500
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share 12.57 7.65
Notes:

1. Pursuant to sub-division of equity shares [Refer note 15 for details] (he Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share presented are calculated reflecting such changes
in the number of shares after considering the effect of sub-divison on the outstanding numbers of equity shares for the current and previous years

2. No potential equity shares are outstanding as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 and there are no items giving rise to dilutive equity shares. Hence basic EPS is
considered as diluted EPS
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34

Related party transactions

Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified by the Company:

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party

i) Associate Ardee Yantiik Private Limited (w.e f November 27, 2024)
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (w.e.f June 15, 2023)

ii) Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel Chandra Sekhar Moturu, Chairman and Managing Directo
Ragdeep Moturu, Whole-time Ditector
Sundararama Sarma Gorvepati, Executive Director
Arundeep Moturu, Executive Director (Appointed w.e f. August 25, 2024)
Krishna Kumari Moturu, Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. August 25, 2024)
Ravikanth Mallina, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Visweswara Prasad Yalamanchili, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Ravinder Komaragiri , Independent Director (Appointed w.e f August 12, 2024)
Srinivas Aravapalli, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f August 12, 2024)
Anjaneyulu Krothapalli, [ndependent Director (Appointed w.e.f September 17, 2024)
Sneha Sunkaia, Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f January 27, 2025)
Disha Jindal, Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. June 05, 2024) also appointed as Compliance officer
w.e.f. October 23, 2024)

iif) Entities in which Directors and Key Management Personnel
(“KMP") have a significant influence / control with whom Company
have made transactions during the reporting period/years
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formeily Balaji Drives Private Limited)
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited
Arun Kapital Networks
Arun Computers
Arun Infotech
M/s ARCS
Arovan Logistics
ACS Engineering Solutions
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Relative of Directors of Company Krishna Kumari Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
Arundeep Moturu (Upto August 24, 2024)
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B

Transactions during the vear with related parties

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Fur the year ended
March 31,2024

Purchase of Goods

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)
Rutee Transinissions Private Limited

Anm Kapital Networks

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited

M/s ARCS

ACS Engineering Solutions

Purchase of property, plant & equipment and Intangible assets
Arun Computers

Arun Infotech

Arun Kapital Networks

Revenue from Contracts

Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)
Rotee Transmissions Private Limited

Arun Kapital Networks

Ingwenyi Mineral Tech Private Limited

Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited

Rent expense
M/s ARCS

Interest Expense
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited

Other expenses

Anin Computers

Arun Kapital Networks

M/s ARCS

Arovan Logistics

Arun Infotech

Rotec Transmissions Private Limited

1CD taken

[ngwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited
Anwizen Consultants Private Limited

1CD repaid

Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited
Anvizen Consultants Private Limited

Proceeds from Borrowings_Unsecured Loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Corporate Guarantee Given
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited)

Repayments of borrowings_Unsecured Loan
M. Chandra Sekhar Moturu
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu

Retention Money Paid
Arun Kapital Networks

Adviances from Customers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited)

46.73
15.80
3.70
138.62

0.19
032
0.96

347

2.10

034
9.51
6.56
19.41
1.04
3.80

50.74
130.00
100,00

50.74
130.00
100.00

41.50
4.57

52.50

30.29
3.96

56.42

81.83
14.57
379.58
0.04
13.88

0.56

12.00
40.07
11.34
31,78

329

1.32

3.94
2557

143.30
59.05

24622
7235

w
-]
-]
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Advance to suppliers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited) 092 E
[ngwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3.50
Advance taken
Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 -
Advance repaid
Arun Kapital Networks 56.00 .
Staff Advance Given
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 2.40 1.86
Mi. Sundararama Sarma Gomnepati - 0.15
Expenses reimbursed
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati 0.77 -
Staff Advance repaid
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 747 -
Investment in Associates
Ardee Yantrik Private Limited 0.20 -
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 5.45
Proceeds from issue of equity shares including securties premium
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu - 225.00
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu - 25.00
Reimbursement of expenses
Arovan Logistics 0.86 -
ACS Engineering Solutions 0.20 -
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 0.75 -
Mr. Rapdeep Moturu 0.60 =
Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 -
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.08 -
Employee benefits expense
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.95 2.40
Mt Arundeep Moturu 0.95 2.40
Managerial Remuneration (Refer note iii below)
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 3.98 330
Mr. Ragdeep Moturu 4.80 480
Mr. Sundararama Sarma Goniepati 372 299
Mors. Krishna Kumari Moturu 145 -
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 1.45 -
091 -

Ms. Disha Jindal
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C

Amount due to/from related purties:

Nume of the related party Asut As ut

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Traile Payables
Anlee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Diives Pvt Limited) - 115.07
Arun Computers 145 123
Arun Kapital Networks 265 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 3.02
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited 4.05 -
M/s ARCS 221 2.60
ACS Engineering Solutions 874 11.41
Arovin Logistics 1.60 2.86
Investment in Associates (Including Share of profit)
Ingwenys Mineral Tech Private Limited 13.47 6.86
Aridee Yantrk Private Limited 0.17 -
Trade Receivables
Airdee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Diives Pvt Limited) 3.78 -
Rotec Transmissions Private Limited 2497 31.69
Arun Kapital Networks - 31.28
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 1443
Blue Ocean Biotech Private Limited 023 -
Borrowings-Unsecured loan
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 11.26 0.74
ir. Ragdeep Moturu 0.56 0.66
Rama Nimmagadda - -
Managerial Remuneration Payable
M, Chandra Sekhar Moturu 0.68 -
M. Ragdeep Moturu 0.71 -
M. Sundararama Sarina Gorrepati 022 -
Mis. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.16 -
M. Arundeep Moturu 0.16 -
Ms, Disha Jindal 0.09 -
Retention Money Payable
Arun Kapital Networks = 5642
Advanees received from customer
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pvt Limited) - 329
Advance to suppliers
Ardee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited) 0.92 -
Arun Infotech - 161
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited - 3,50
Reimbursement of expenses payable
Mrs. Krishna Kumari Moturu 0.65 .
Ms. Disha Jindal 0.00 -
Staff Advance
Mr. Arundeep Moturu 0.05 512
M, Sundararama Sarma Gorrepati - 0.77
Share Issue Expenses Receivable
Mr. Chandra Sekhar Moturu 8.97 -
Corporiate Guarantee Given

52.50 -

Atdee Drives Private Limited (formerly Balaji Drives Pyt Limited)

Notes :

i. Personal guarantees were provided by Chandra Sekhar Moturu and Ragdeep Moturu towards borrowings facilities availed by the Company, where applicable (refer Note 17.1)

ii. All the related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and on arm length basis

iii. Liability for gratutity on actuarial valuation basis are provided for the Company as a whole. Accordingly, amount pertaining to key managerial personnel are not jncluded.
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35 Fair value measurements
35.1  The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories were as follows:

Particulars Notes FVTPL

FVTOCI

Amortised cost

As ot March 31, 2025
Financial assets

Investments* 8 8.63 13.64
Trade receivables 12 - 2,358.77
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 166.71
Other financial assets 9 - 1,066.95
Total financial assets 8.63 3,607.61
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 3,131.72
Trade payables 18 - 2,155.07
Other financial liabilities 19 - 28.13
Total financial liabilities - 5,314.92
*Investments in associates are accounted as per equity method

As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Investments* 8 7.96 6.86
Trade receivables 12 1,558.63
Cash and cash equivalents 13 - 1.08
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 - 24227
Other financial assets 9 1,053 49
Total financial assets 7.96 2,862.33
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 1,850.59
Trade payables 18 - 1,698.37
Other financial liabilities 19 - 77.98
Total financial liabilities - 3,626.94

*Investments in associates are accounted as per equity method

[s)

N X j“
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o
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35.2

35.3

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The (hree

levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level |: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items (unadjusted)
Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e not derived {rom market data)

Particulars

Notes Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

As at March 31, 2025
Financial assets measured at fair value -

recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

8 863

32.42

32.42

Total financial assets

32.42

41.05

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

3,131.72

3,131.72

Total financial liabilitics

3,131.72

3,131.72

As al March 31, 2024
Financial asscts measured at fair value -
recurring fair value measurements

At FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds

Financial assets measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed

Security deposits

9.34

7.96

9.34

Total financial assets

7.96

9.34

17.30

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
for which fair values are disclosed

Borrowings

1.850.59

1.850.59

Total financial liabilities

1,850.59

1,850.59

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current year and previous year,

Methods and assumptions

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair value of borrowings is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rates. The own non performance risk as at
year end was assessed to be insignificant. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs.

The fair value of security deposits were calculated based on future cash flows using a current lending rate. These are based on discounted cash flow analysis. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents and trade payables, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV. These instruments are classified as level 1 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
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36
36.1

36.2

36.3

Financial risk management
General objectives, policies and processes
The Company is exposed through its opeiations 1o the following financial risks: (i) Credit risk; (i) Market tisk comprising of interes! rate tisk, foreign exchange 1isk and other price tisk; and

(iii) Liquidity risk
In common with all other businesses, the Company is exposed to risks that atise fiom its use of financial instruments. This note describes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for
managing those tisks and the methods used to measute them Further quantitative infonmation in respect of these risks is presented thioughout these consolidated financial statements

There have been no substantive changes in the Company's exposure to financial instrument 1isks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those tisks ot the methods used to measuic
them from previous year unless otherwise stated in this note

The Boatd has the overall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining uitimate responsibility for them, it has delepated
the authotity for designing and opeiating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Company's finance function,

The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the Company's competitiveness and flexibility. Further details regaiding

these policies are set out below,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the 1isk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Ciedit risk atises principally fiom the
Company’s trade receivables, security deposils, bank balances and other financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty ciedit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The
Company assesses the ctedit quality of the counterparties, laking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carrying, amounts of financial assets as per Note 35

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, other bank balances and security deposits were past due or impaired as at March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company’s exposuie to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit

risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which customners operate. The Company limits its exposure to credit tisk from trade 1eceivables

by establishing a maximuin payment period.

The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates ate updated and Company makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves
higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The maximum exposure to credit tisk at the 1eporting date
is the carying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10 and 13. The Company does not hold collateral as secutity. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance aie
considered integial part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impainment. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with 1espect to trade receivables and contract
assets as low, as its customers ate located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets

The movement in provision for expected credit loss for trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars Amount
Loss allowance as at April 1, 2023 149.30
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the yeat 24,06
Less: Utilised during the year (32.21)
Loss allowance as at March 31, 2024 141.15
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the yeat 45,55
Less: Utilised during the year (4.37)
182.33

Loss allowance as at March 31, 2025

Market risk
Market risk arises from the Company's use of interest-bearing, tradable and foreign cumrency financial instruments. 1t is the tisk that the fai1 value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk). The objective of matket risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

the risk of changes in market interest 1ate relates primavily to the Company’s borowings with variable interest rates,

(i) Exposure to interest rate risk

As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1,970,32 1,549.52

Borrowings with variable rate of interest
1,161.40 299.67

Borrowings with fixed rate of interest

(i) Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1easonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of variable interest-bearing borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the

Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on such floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/
Particulars decrease in basis Balance Effect on profit
. before tax
points
March 31, 2025 +100/-100 1,970.32 19.70
March 31, 2024 +100/-100 1,549.52 15.50
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(b)

37

Foreign exchange risk
The Company has no loreign cuniency receivables or payables as on March 31, 2025 and Maich 31, 2024 and therefore foreign exchange tisk is not applicable

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities (hat are sel(led by delivering cash or another financial asset
The Company's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due

a) Maturities of financial liabilities

Thie following table sets out the contractanl maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial liabilities:
) Contractual cash flows
Carrying
As at March 31, 2025 Note amount Total Upto3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years
Months and 12 months and 2 vears and S years )
Lease liabilities 6 4321 52.35 5.04 I4.54 14,23 18.54 X
Borrowings 17 3,13172 3,139.25 2,022.50 204 .47 26149 457.82 192.97
Tiade payables 18 2,155.07 2,155.07 1,531.13 623.94 - - -
Other financial liabililies 19 2813 28,13 27.43 0.70 - - -
Total 5,358.13 5,374.80 3,586,10 843.65 275.72 476.36 192,97
. Contractual cash flows
Carrying
As at March 31, 2024 Note amount Total Upto3 Between 3 Between 1 Betwcen 2 Over 5 years
Months and 12 months and 2 years and 5 years :
Lease liabilities 6 21.78 24.50 3.21 831 9.49 3.49 .
Borrowings 17 1,850.59 1,856.76 746.25 736.47 98.27 197.67 78.10
Trade payables 18 1,698.37 1,698.37 1,171.85 526.52 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19 77.98 77,98 21.56 56.42 - - -
Total 3,648.72 3,657.61 1,942.87 1,327.72 107.76 201.16 78.10

The interest payments on variable interest rate borrowings in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting date and these amounts may change as market interest rates
change. The future cash flows on contingent consideration may be different from the amount in the above table as the relevant conditions underlying the conlingency change, Except for these
financial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts

Additional information on the entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Particulars Net Assets i.e., total assets Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in total comprehensive
minus total liabilities income
As % of Amount As % of Amount | As % of consolidated Amount As % of total Amount
Consolidated Consolidated other comprehensive comprehensive

net assets profit or loss income income
March 31, 2025
Parent
Ardee Engineering Limited 100.00% 1,376.35 98.69% 49628 100.00% 0.38 98.69% 496,66
Associates
(i) Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited - - 131% 6.61 0.00% 0,00 131% 6,61
(ii) Ardee Yantrik Private limited -0.01% (0.03) 0.00% 0,00 -0.01% (0,03)
Total 100.00% 1,376.35 100.00% 502.86 100.00% 0.38 100.00% 503.24
March 31, 2024
Parent
Ardee Engineering Limited 100.00% 873.11 100,00% 291.05 100,00% 0.75 100.00% 291.80
Associate
Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited . - 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0,00% 0.00
Total 100.00% 873.11 100.00% 291.05 100.00% 0.75 100.00% 291.80

Notes:
(a) During the FY 2024-25, the Company acquired 20,000 equity shares at face value Rs, 10 each amounting to Rs,0.20 Mn as subscriber to the memorandum of Ardee Yantrik Private Limited,

incorporated on November 27, 2024 representing 40.00% of the total equity share capital

(b) During the FY 2023-24, pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2023, the Company has acquired 21 62% of shareholding in Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private limited (IMT) and
is an associate of the Company.
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38

39

40
40.1

40.2

41

42

43
(i)

(ii)

Segment information
An operating segment is a component of the Company that enpages in business aclivilies fom which it may cam revenues and incur expenses, whose operating tesults ate 1egulaily reviewed by

the Company's chiel operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions for which discrete consolidated financial siatements is available. The Company is a design, engincering and
manufactuting Company which is engaged in tumkey PEB projects, material handling and processing solutions, elcctiical and automation solutions, heavy structural and piecision engineering
solutions. The CODM idenlified enlite business as a single reportable segment, hence sepment teporting is not applicable,

Capital management
The Company's objeclives when maintaining capital are:
(a) to safeguard the enlity's ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b) to provide an adequate 1eturn to shareholders by pricing products and setvices commensurately with the level of tisk.

The Company sets the amount of capital it requites in proportion to risk. The Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk chatacteristics of the underlying assets. In oider to maintain or adjust the capital stiucture, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders or issue new shaies,
The Company monitots capital on the basis of the net debt to equily ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated as the total borrowings and lease liabilities

less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratios were as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings and lease liabilities 3,174.93 1,872.37

Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances (292.00) (266.66)

Net debt 2,882.93 1,605.71

Equity share capital 200.00 200.00

Other equity 1.176.35 673.11

Total equity 1,376.35 873.11

Net debt to equity ratio (fimes) 2.09 1.84

No changes wete made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years

Contingent liabilitics and commitments

Contingent liabilities

() There are no claims apainst the Company not acknowledged as debt as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Corporite g given torelated party (Refer note 34) 52.50 -

Total 52.50 -

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related assets ate recognised
Commitments - There are Capital commitinents amounting to Rs. 8,00 Mn as on March 31, 2025 (Maich 31, 2024- NIL)

Audit Trail

(a) The Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all the iansactions recoided in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, Additionally, the audit trail of the preceding year, has been preserved by
the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the accounting software.

(b) In respect of Ingwenya Mineral Tech Private Limited (associate), accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the software, Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of the
preceding year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention

(c) In respect of Ardee Yantiik Private Limited (associate), the books of account for the period from November 27, 2024 to March 31, 2025 wete entirely maintained manually by the Company
and has not used any accounting sofiware for the said period for maintaining its books of account, hence requirement of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is not applicable,

Subsequent events
Pursuant to approval of Board and and Shareholders vide meetings dated July 4, 2025 and July 9, 2025 1espectively, the company has issued 410,000 equity Shares on preferential basis at the

issue price of Rs. 425/- per equity share having Face value of Rs. 5/ per equity share (i.e, including Securities Premium at Rs. 420/- per equity share),

The management has assessed the subsequent events to the reporting period and is of the view that there are no material events which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements

except as disclosed in financial statements.

Other regulatory information

Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder

Borrowings secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings secured against current assets and statements of cunent assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts




Ardee Engincering Limited

(formerly known as Ardee Engincering Piivale Limited)

(CIN: U29100TG2020PLC 141953)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are Rs. in Million. except for shate and per share data and whete otherwise stated)

(idi) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank ot financial institution or other lender

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company does not have any telationship with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers presctibed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 1ead with Companies (Restiction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017

(vi) Undisclosed income
The Company does hot have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sunendered of disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income-tax Act,

1961

(vii}  Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto curiency or virtual currency during the current petiod or pievious years

(viii)  Registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(ix) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in the cunient or previous financial year

(x) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the [ntermediary shall:
a. directly oc indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the

Company shall:
a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

44 The Code on Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazetle of India, However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

45 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classification/disclosures

46 These Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for Issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on August 29, 2025,

As per our report of even date attached

For C Venkat Krishna & Co For M S K C & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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